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STIPULATION AND RECOMMENDATION 

Pursuant to Rule 4901-1-30 of the Ohio Administrative Code, Centerior Energy 

Corporation, on behalf of The Toledo Edison Company (TE) and The Cleveland Electric 

Illmninating Company (CEI) (collectively referred to as the "Companies"), the Staff of the 

Public Utilities Commission of Ohio (Staff), and The Ohio Consumers' Counsel (OCC) and The 

Ohio Valley Coal Company (Ohio Valley) (collectively referred to as the "Signatory Parties") do 

hereby stipulate and agree to resolve all issues in the above-captioned proceeding in the manner 

set forth below. While the Signatory Parties hereto recognize that this Stipulation and 

Recommendation (hereinafter "Stipulation") is not binding upon the Public Utilities Commission 

of Ohio (PUCO or Commission), it is the position of the Parties that the Stipulation is the 

product of lengthy, serious negotiations undertaken to settle this case, that such Parties represent 

a range of interests, that the Stipulation is supported by good and sufficient data and information, 

that it represents a just and reasonable resolution of the issues resolved in this proceeding, and 

that, accordingly, the Stipulation is entitled to careful consideration and should be adopted in its 

entirety and without modification by the Commission. Accordingly, the Signatory Parties —^ -̂

stipulate, agree and recommend as follows: 

1. This Stipulation is entered into by and among the Companies; the Staff of the PUCO 

("Staff); the Office of the Ohio Consumers' Counsel ("OCC"); and Ohio Valley; all of whom 

have signed this Stipulation. The Industrial Energy Consumers, The City of Cleveland, 

Northwest Ohio Providers Coalition and Ohio Environmental Counsel neither oppose nor 

support this Stipulation. 



2. The Companies are operating subsidiaries of Centerior Energy Corporation and are 

Ohio corporations engaged in the business of supplying electricity within the state. As public 

utilities within the definition of § 4905.02, Ohio Rev. Code, electric light companies within the 

definition of § 4905.03(A)(4) Rev. Code, and "persons" within the meaning of §§ 4935.04(A)(2) 

and 4906.01 Ohio Rev. Code, the Companies are subject to the jurisdiction of the Commission. 

The Companies have one or more generating units affected by the acid rain control requirements 

under Title IV of the "Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990" 42 U.S.C.A. 7651 (hereinafter "acid 

rain control requirements". 

3. On February 17, 1993, the Commission approved Centerior's 1992 Environmental 

Compliance Plan ("ECP") in Case No. 92-1123-EL-ECP as constituting a reasonable and least 

cost strategy for compliance with the applicable acid rain control requirements. 

4. Centerior's approved ECP contemplated the fuel switch of several generating units to 

lower sulfur coal beginning in 1995 in order to comply with the acid rain control requirements. 

A resulting emission allowance reserve by the end of Phase I followed by more fuel switching to 

lower sulfur coal and/or the purchase of emission allowances would allow for compliance with 

the acid rain control requirements in Phase II (beginning January 2000), while deferring or 

eliminating the need for a flue gas scrubber. 

5. By Opinion and Order dated July 20, 1995, the Commission approved an imopposed 

partial stipulation in this proceeding. In the stipulation, the signatory parties agreed that the 

Companies' approved environmental compliance plan (ECP) continued to be appropriate and met 

all of the criteria of Section 4913.04(A), Revised Code. The signatory parties also recommenced 

that the Commission defer any decision as to changes in the amount of high sulfur coal being 

burned at the Ashtabula Units 5-9 and Eastlake Units 1-5, until the Companies completed and 

filed a supplemental study. The Commission specifically noted that any party should file 

comments regarding the supplemental study on or before December 1, 1996 and Centerior could 

file a reply on or before December 31, 1996. 



6. In compliance with the terms of the approved stipulation, Centerior timely filed the 

supplemental study on October 1,1996. On December 1, 1996, Ohio Valley filed comments. 

On December 30, 1996, Centerior filed a reply to Ohio Valley's comments. 

7. By Entry dated January 28, 1997, the attomey examiner found that a revised study 

should not be conducted and that the supplemental study should not be adopted outright. Instead, 

the attomey examiner scheduled an evidentiary hearing for March 18,1997. The hearing was to 

be limited to whether changes in the amount of high sulfur coal being burned at the Ashtabula 

Units 5-9 and Eastlake Units 1-5 are appropriate. 

8. By Entry dated March 17, 1997, the attorney examiner continued the hearing until 

April 18, 1997, and by Entry dated April 17, 1997, the examiner again continued the hearing 

until May 28,1997. 

9. Both The Cleveland Electric Illuminating Company ("CEI") and The Ohio Valley 

Coal Company ("Ohio Valley") wish to avoid any need for any further litigation between the 

parties vnth respect to CEI's Environmental Compliance Plan; 

10a. Other than the State Implementation Plan limits, there is not currently any 

environmental restriction that would prevent CEI from continuing to bum Ohio coal at the 

Eastlake Plant, Units 1-5, ("Eastlake 1-5"), and Ashtabula Plant, Unit 5, ("Ashtabula 5") during 

the last quarter of 1997, calendar year 1998 and/or calendar year 1999. 

b. Its current projected allowance bank shown in the supplemental study appears to-b^^-

adequate to cover its projected SO2 emissions at its affected Phase I and Phase II units and to 

cover the use of Ohio coal at it's evaluated cost pursuant to paragraph 16 of this Stipulation, 

provided it allows CEI to meet its corporate objectives of least cost compliance with the 

applicable acid rain control requirements. 

11. CEI's commitment to allow Ohio Valley to bid on all CEI solicitations for proposals 

for delivery of coal to CEI's plants and to fairly consider and evaluate all responses to CEI's 



solicitations was a basis for Ohio Valley's willingness to terminate its original coal sales 

agreement with CEI, effective as of April 1,1996, and substitute a new Coal Sales Agreement. 

12. CEI has represented to Ohio Valley that it currently has uncommitted coal 

requirements at both Eastlake 1-5 and Ashtabula 5 throughout the twenty-seven month period 

starting October, 1997. 

13. Prior to entering into any new commitment to purchase coal for use at either Eastlake 

1-5 or Ashtabula 5 or both at any time between the date of this Agreement and December 31, 

1999, CEI will solicit offers to supply coal produced in Ohio for use at one or both plants, in 

quantities up to the maximum amount of such coal which can be utilized at the unit or units for 

which coal is being procured, as part of a mixture with other lower sulfur coals (at Eastlake) 

without violating the applicable SOj emission limitation or any other state implementation plan 

requirement applicable to the unit or units for which coal is being procured while meeting all 

outage limitations, unit loading, and operational limitations of those units. 

14. Ohio Valley shall remain an eUgible bidder for purposes of any such solicitation. 

CEI shall be under no obligation to afford Ohio Valley any preferential or special treatment in 

connection with any such solicitation. 

15. For purposes of evaluating any such bids, CEI shall use the same "evaluated cost" 

methodology which it currently uses to evaluate other bids to supply Eastlake, Ashtabula and 

other CEI plants, affected by Phase I and Phase II of the Acid Rain Compliance Plan. 

16. In evaluating any such bids: 

a. Ohio Valley's coal shall be priced at (i) $18.90 per ton F.O.B. Mine in 1997; 

(ii) $19.20 per ton F.O.B. Mine in 1998; (iii) $19.49 per ton F.O.B. Mine in 1999; or, at Ohio 

Valley election, at such lower price per ton as Ohio Valley may chose to bid, for the purposes of 

any bid solicitation for which Ohio Valley chooses to submit a lower bid; 



b. CEI shall use a transportation cost, for transporting coal from the Powhatan 

No. 6 Mine and all other mines to CEI's plants, equal to the lowest cost transportation available, 

including the use of CEI's fleet trains of owned/leased locomotives and/or rail cars, if CEI has 

any such locomotives and/or rail cars in operation during the period for which coal deliveries are 

being solicited; 

c. Ohio Valley's coal will be assumed to have a maximum sulfur content of 6.63 

lbs. SO2 per MMBTU (subject to the provision for adjustments set forth in paragraph 20 below); 

maximum moisture content of 6.5%; maximum ash content of 9.75%; and minimum heating 

value of 12,500 BTU/lb.; 

d. SO2 allowances will be assumed to have a value for use on the CEI system 

equal to the then current market price of SO2 emission allowance, i.e., the SOj emission 

allowance price at the time of CEI's bid evaluation, or, at Ohio Valley's election, the price at 

which Ohio Valley is willing to supply allowances to CEI. 

e. For purposes of any alternate buming of coals with different sulfur contents 

considered at Eastlake, CEI shall consider the altemative coal or coals which maximizes the 

amount of Ohio coal which can be burned at Eastlake and minimizes the evaluated cost, 

including adjustments for heating values, ash, and sulfur content and operational considerations. 

17. In applying its evaluated cost methodology, CEI will not make any other adjustments 

in the amount of Ohio Valley's bid, based upon the composition of Ohio Valley's coal or any 

other factor, except for adjustments made in the same manner and using the same criteria use^R) 

evaluate bids by other vendors to supply coal to other CEI plants. CEI further agrees that no 

such adjustment will be made in a manner which varies from the manner in which CEI evaluates 

other bids. 

18. Based upon the application of this methodology, CEI will continue to use coal 

produced in Ohio, in lieu of other coals, up to the maximum quantity permitted consistent with 

applicable environmental restrictions (taking into account CEI's ability to alternately burn 



different coals) in any instance in which the "evaluated cost" of continuing to use such coals is 

not greater than the cost of using other coals. For purposes of applying this requirement, the cost 

of continuing to use coal produced in Ohio, as evaluated using CEI's evaluated cost 

methodology, shall not be considered to be greater than the cost of using other coals imless its 

evaluated cost is higher than the evaluated cost of the best altemative coal available to CEI. 

19. In choosing among coals produced in Ohio, CEI shall choose the lowest cost coal 

available, using the same methodology and the specific assumptions regarding Ohio Valley coal 

set forth in paragraph 16 above. In comparing other Ohio coals, no special preference shall be 

given to coal from Powhatan No. 6 Mine. Instead, CEI shall select the lowest cost coal available 

from Ohio mines, using its "evaluated cost" methodology and the same assumptions just 

described if any Ohio coal is least cost. 

20. To the extent coal supplied by Ohio Valley varies from the assumed sulfur content of 

6.63 lbs. SO2/MMBTU, no adjustment shall be made in the amount of CEI's payments to Ohio 

Valley, except that Ohio Valley coal will be penalized for exceeding the sulfiar content specified 

in paragraph 16(c) based on the price for SO2 allowances specified in paragraph 16(d). 

21. Nothing herein shall preclude CEI from conducting test bums at any time at any of 

its generation units with coals from any source. 

22. Centerior and Ohio Valley agree that it would be in their mutual interest to avoid 

non-competitive two line rail hauls of coal delivered from Powhatan No. 6 and other mines to 

Eastiake 1-5 and Ashtabula 5. -^^^^ 

23. The Signatory Parties recommend that the Commission find and determine that the 

Centerior ECP continues to be appropriate and the supplemental study filed October 1, 1996 

meets all the requirements of the Commission's Opinion and Order of July 20, 1995, the 

Centerior ECP is in accordance with the Commission's Opinion eind Order in Case No. 92-1123-

EL-ECP, meets all the criteria of §4913.04(A) Ohio Rev. Code, and there is no basis under 



§4913.05(D) Ohio Rev. Code for the Commission to withdraw its approval of any portion of 

Centerior's ECP. 

24. The Signatory Parties agree that the supplemental study and all testimony filed in this 

proceeding will be submitted into evidence without objection and all parties waive cross-

examination. This Stipulation shall be submitted into evidence as Joint Exhibit One. 

25. The Signatory Parties agree that should the Commission or any appellate court reject 

all or any part of this Stipulation, or impose any conditions thereon, the assent of the Signatory 

Parties is deemed withdrawn and this Stipulation shall be null and void. In such event, any party 

may reopen this proceeding and present such testimony and cross-examine witnesses and fully 

pursue its rights as if this Stipulation had not been executed. The Signatory Parties agree that the 

Stipulation has been entered into only for the purpose of this proceeding. The Signatory Parties 

agree and intend to support the reasonableness of this Stipulation before the Commission and 

will not support any appeal from the Commission's approval of this Stipulation. This Stipulation 

shall not prejudice any of the positions taken by any party on any issue before the Commission in 

any other proceeding, is not an admission of fact by any Signatory Party, and shall not be 

introduced as evidence in any other proceeding before any commission or court of law. 

26. If a dispute between the Companies and Ohio Valley arises out of any provision of 

this Agreement, either the Companies or Ohio Valley shall give written notice to the other, at any 

time before such dispute is resolved, to the effect that if such dispute is not resolved within 60 

days after the mailing of such notice to (or if not mailed, the actual receipt of such notice by) the 

other party, then such dispute shall be submitted to final and binding arbitration upon the req^st 

of either party. Such a request for arbitration shall be in writing, setting forth in detail the claim 

or claims to be arbitrated, the amount involved, if any, and the remedy sought. It shall be 

delivered to the other party within 90 days after the mailing (or receipt) of the 60-day dispute 

notice described above. Any failure to so request arbitration within such 90-day period shall be 

deemed a waiver of the right to assert the claim upon which the dispute is based. Any arbitration 

under this Section shall be conducted at Cleveland, Ohio, before an arbitrator mutually 

acceptable to the parties; provided, however, that should the parties be unable to agree, the 



arbitrator shall be selected by the Senior United States District Judge for the Northern District of 

Ohio, Eastern Division. Each party to the arbitration shall pay its own expenses and pay one-half 

of the fee and expenses of the arbitrator. It is mutually understood that the existence of a dispute 

which could or has become the subject of an arbitration under this Section shall in no way excuse 

Ohio Valley or the Companies from performing its obligations under the Agreement, and it shall 

continue to perform such obligations in accordance with the terms of the Agreement, irrespective 

of the existence of any such dispute. 

27. The failure of either party hereto to insist in any one (1) or more instances upon strict 

performance of any of the obligations of the other pursuant to this Stipulation to take advantage 

of any of its rights hereunder shall not be construed as a waiver of the performance of any such 

obligation or the relinquishment of any such rights for the fiiture, but the same shall continue and 

remain in full force and effect. 

28. The terms of this Stipulation have been arrived at after mutual negotiation and, 

therefore, it is the intention of the parties that its terms not be construed against either of the 

parties by reason of the fact that it was prepared by one of the parties. 

29. Any notice required to be given to the Companies hereunder shall be deemed to have 

been properly given if mailed by United States mail to: 

The Cleveland Electric Illuminating Company 
c/o Centerior Service Company 
P.O. Box94661 

, Cleveland, Ohio 44101 -4661 _ ^ ^ 
Attn: Fossil Fuel Supply Manager 

and any notice required to be given to Seller hereunder shall be deemed to have been properly 

given if mailed by United States mail to: 

The Ohio Valley Coal Company 
56854 Pleasant Ridge Road 
Alledonia, Ohio 43902 
Attn: Robert E. Murray 

with a copy to: 



Ohio Valley Resources, Inc. 
Suite 111 
29525 Chagrin Boulevard 
Pepper Pike, Ohio 44122 
Attn: Robert E. Murray 

or to such other address as Ohio Valley or the Companies, respectively, shall designate in writing 

to the other. 

30. This Stipulation shall not be assignable by either party without the written consent of 

the other, except that (a) Ohio Valley may assign this Agreement to any affiliate of Ohio Valley 

controlled by Robert E. Murray, and (b) the Companies may assign this Stipulation in connection 

with the merger, consolidation or sale of substantially all of the assets of tiie Companies. 

31. The validity, construction and performance of this Stipulation shall be determined in 

accordance with the internal laws of the State of Ohio applicable to agreements made and to be 

performed in that state. 

32. If any part, term or provision of this Stipulation is held by the courts, or by any 

agency having jurisdiction over this Stipulation or the parties hereto, to be unenforceable, illegal, 

against public policy, or in conflict with any federal, state or local laws, such part, term or 

provision shall be considered severable from the rest of this Stipulation. The remaining portions 

of the Stipulation shall not be affected. The rights and obligations of the parties shall be 

construed and inferred as if the Stipulation did not contain the particular term, part or provisions 

held to be invalid unless the invalid provisions contain the material financial terms of this ^ 

Stipulation, or, when considered in the aggregate, render the administration of this Stipulation 

unreasonably burdensome, in which case this Stipulation shall terminate. 

33. This Stipulation is not intended to, and shall not, create rights, remedies, or any 

benefits of any character whatsoever, in favor of any person, corporation or other entity other 

than the parties hereto, and the obligations herein assumed are for the use and benefit of the 

parties, their successors in interest, and permitted assigns. 

9 



34. The term of this Stipulation shall commence on the date that this Stipulation is 

adopted by the Commission and shall continue until December 31,1999. 

10 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Stipulation has been agreed to thisZ7^,day of May, 

1997. 

Robert E. Murray 

/ 

President and Chief Executive 
The Ohio Valley Coal Company 
56854 Pleasant Ridge Road 
Alledonia, Ohio 43902 

-t-. A^^*^ ̂ (l^tJi 
Mr. Frank R. Stead 
Director - Supply Chain 
Centerior Energy Corporation 
P.O. Box 94661 
6200 Oak Tree Boulevard 
Cleveland, Ohio 44101-4661 

p e a T6>V£PVsOi^ C5\*^AfcJJV.' 

Ajidrew D. Weissman, Esq. 
Mark L. Perils, Esq. 
Dickstein, Shapiro, Morin & 

Oshinsky, L.L.P. 
2101 L Sfreet, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20037-1526 
Telephone: (202) 828-2233 
Facsimile: (202) 887-0689 

Attomeys for The Ohio Valley 
Coal Company 

Michael C. RegulinskifSsq. 
Mark R. Kempic, Esq. 
Centerior Energy Corporation 
6200 Oak Tree Blvd., IND450 
Independence, Ohio 44131 
Telephone: (216) 447-2191 
Facsimile: (216) 447-2592 

Attomeys for The Cleveland Electric 
Illuminating Company and 
The Toledo Edison Company 

Colleen L. Mooney, Esq. 
Office of Consumers' Counsel 
77 Soutii High Street 
Columbus, Ohio 43266-0550 

Attomey for OCC 

Thomas W. McNamee, Esq. 
Assistant Attomey General 
Public utilities Commission of Ohio 
180 East Broad Street 
Columbus, Ohio 43266-0573 

Attorney for PUCO Staff 

s\legal\mike\ecp8.doc 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that on M a y ^ t j , 1997, a true copy of the foregoing 
document was served by fax (to OVCC, PUCO and OCC) and by first class mail upon all of the 
following parties of record: 

Andrew D. Weissman, Esq. 
Mark L. Perils, Esq. 
Dickstein, Shapiro, Morin 
& Oshinsky, L.L.P. 

2101 L Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20037-1526 

William M. Ondrey Gruber, Esq. 
Chief Assistant Director of Law 
City of Cleveland 
City Hall, Room 106 
601 Lakeside Avenue 
Cleveland, Ohio 44114 

Attomeys for The Ohio Valley 
Coal Company 

Attomey for City of Cleveland 

Thomas McNamee, Esq. 
Assistant Attomey General 
Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 
180 East Broad Sfreet 
Columbus, Ohio 43266-0573 

Attomeys for PUCO Staff 

Maureen R. Grady, Esq. 
Hahn Loeser & Parks 
10 West Broad St, Suite 1800 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

Attomey for Northwest Ohio 
Providers Coalition and 
for Ohio Environmental Council 

Langdon D. Bell, Esq. 
Bell, Royer & Sanders 
33 South Grant Avenue 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

Attomey for lEC 

Colleen L. Mooney, Esq. 
Office of Consumers' Counsel 
77 South High Street 
Columbus, Ohio 43266-0550 

Attomey for OCC 

Michael C. Regulinski, Esq. 
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Robert J. Rua & Associates 

' u t i t c UTILITIES coanissiaii OF OHIO 

in t h * Natt.r of th« ) 
T«o-Taar R tvUw o f ) 
c o n t o r t o r Energy ) 
C o r p o r a t i o n ' s EnvlronoantaL ) -easa Ho. 94-16«ft-EL'ECP 
Cospltanea f l a n Pursuant ) 
to Sac t lon «91 ] .0S . aavtsad > 

_ - _ 
Oopes t t lon o f HICHAEL A . KOVACH, a u l t n a s s ealLad 

f o r tha purposa o f t s s t l f y t n g \n t h * abova a a t t a r , 
ba fo ra aa , ELlan A. H a n c U , Rag ls ta rad FrefaaslonaL 
Rapor tar and Rotary RubUc w i t h i n and f o r tha Sta ta 
o f Ohio, a t tha o f f l c a s o f Can ta r l o r Enargy c o r p o r a t i o n . 
«200 Oat Traa t o u l a v a r d , Indapandanc*. Ohio on 
F r i d a y , tha 21st day o f na rch , l<9 r a t 2 : IS p . * . 
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. . . 
MICHAEL A. KOVACH, of towful age, 

called by the Ohio Valley Coal Company 
for the purpose of testimony in this 
matter, being by me first duly sworn, 
as hereinafter said as follows: 

EXAMINATION OF MICHAEL A. KOVACH 
BY MR. WEISSMAN: 1 
Q 
A 
Q 

A 

Q 

A 
Q 
A 

Good afternoon, Mr. Kovach. 
Good afternoon. 
^^^^^ f^m ^^» »^#» »—^^^".^ • 

Could you please - could you please 
describe what your role was in preparing 
the Supplemental Fuel Switching Study 
submitted to the Ohio Commission on 
October Ist of last year? 
Basically my role was reviewing the study 

that was done from the Fuel Procurement's 
perspective. 
What specific issues did you attempt to 

review? 
The pricing that they were using. 
The pricing they were using for coal? 
I'm Sony, for the coal; the different S02 

q>ecifications of coal. 
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AFFEARANCES: 
NIchaaL c. R a g u U n s k l , Esq. 

Sanlor CounsaL 
6200 Oak Traa iouLavard 
Indapandanc*, Ohio Ai131 
(2 ia iA« r -2S*2 

on baha l f o f Can ta r l o r Enargy Corpo ra t i on 
D i c k s t a i n , Shap i ro , Her in 4 Oshinsky, by: 
AndrsM 0, walssoan, ESQ. 
2101 L S t raa t HW 
Washington, DC 2D037-1S2« 
(202IS2S-22] ] 

on baha l f o f tha Ohio v a l l a y coa l 
cmpany , and Robart Hurray 

Coklaan L . Hoonay. Esq. 
A s s i s t a n t Consuaar 's counsal 
TT South High S t raa t 
15th F loor 
Coluabus. Ohio A52M-0550 
S t u a r t H. S l a g f r l a d 
Fat Sarvar 
F u b l l e u t l l l t l * * Coaailsslon o f Ohio 
160 East i r o a d s t r a a t 
co luabus , Ohio AJTab-OSr] 

ALSO FRESEllT: Hs. Hancy Caaaar, Rataa A a s l s t a n t 
Rr. Richard S. Hoag 
Rr. Frank R. Staad 
Hr. Charlaa Rann. a l t h Hr. ualssaan 
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Q 

A 
Q 

A 

Q 
A 

Q 

Okay. So is it basically the study 
used - the study conuined estimates of 
the price for coal with different sulfur 
contents? 

Yes. 
And you attempted to - you reviewed the 

reasonableness of the estimates that were 
used? 
Well, reasonableness of the estimates and 

where the estimates came ftom as far as. 
you know, the traceabiHty of the 
estimates also, yes. 
How were the estimates developed? 
A buyer in our section used the - an 

estimate from EVA pricing coupled with 
some of his experience as far as the FOB 
fine pricing estimates and then the 
tranqMrtation estimates I believe would 
be, if there was actual rates like a 
contract in effect. That's what they 
would have used in absence of some actual 
contract value that they could use. They 
would have used an EVA estimate. 
Who was the individual who did that 

analysis? 

RoiMit J. Rna & Anodates 



Robert J. Rna & Associates 
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in 
[2] 
[3] 
[4] 
[5] 
[6] 
[7] 
[8] 
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[23] 
[24] 
[25] 

A 
Q 
A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Joe Lang. 
And did you review his work? 
Yes. 
Do you know what the approximate date was 

of the EVA stu«iy that he used? 
No, I don't recall right now. 
And I guess I'm a little bit unsure. Did 

Mr. Hoag develop estimates with you which 
you then reviewed, or did you - did your 
group provide input to Mr. Hoag? 
Mr. - I'm sorry, I don't understand. 

Mr. Hoag as far as what estimates? 
On the cost for coals with different 

sulfur content for delivery at Eastlake 
and Ashtabula, who provided the initial -
I think I misunderstood one of your 

questions, as far as the costs for coal 
with different sulfur content. 

What I had meant was here's the cost 
that the Fuel Procurement was using for a 
six pound coal. This is the cost we're 
using for 2.5 pound coal. That estimate 
in the table would have been produced by 
Mr. Hoag, if that's what you're referring 
to; that combined S02 ubie, S02 delivered 
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Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 
A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Did you or anyone else in your section 
review any other aspect of the work - of 
the supplemental study that was being 
prepared by Mr. Hoag? 
As far as review, we would have read the 

entire report. Is that what you're 
asking? Did we review the whole report? 
Yeah, I would have read the whole report 
before it went in. 

Were you asked for comments on any other 
issues that were raised by the report? 
I provided comments whether I was asked or 

not. 
What issues did you comment on? 
I don't recall. I know I probably had 

some comments. Nothing major that stands 
out, that I would remember that I 
provided. 
Okay. Do you know who else was involved 

in either preparing or reviewing the 
supplemental fuel switching study? 
No, maybe Mr. Hoag would be better to ask 

that. I'm sure there were other people 
though, but I don't know at this time. 
Okay. 
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fuel price table that was in the study. 
That would have been done by Mr. Hoag. 
Okay. So would this be correct that the 

Fuel Procurement section provided the coal 
related component of the figures that were 
used by Mr. Hoag? 
Yes. 
And then Mr. Hoag provided the S02 

allowance component? 
Correct. 
And then Mr. Hoag basically added the two 

figures together in order to come up with 
the estimated all-in number for both coal 
and S02 allowances? 
Yes. 
That's a Mr description of the process? 
Yes. 
Okay. So that at least one role that your 

section performed was to provide the coal 
related input into those numbers? 
As far as fuel and tranqwrtation pricing, 

FOB mine transportation price and 
transportation price which was delivered 
price of the different fuel 
specifications. 
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I don't remember. 
I planned to ask him, as well. You would 

assume on something like this that there 
would be a number of people involved? 
Right. 
Just because of the importance? 
Importance and the accuracy, correct. 
When did - to the best of your 

recollection, when was the issue of 
preparing a supplemental fuel switching 
study first discussed? The study's dated 
October 1st. 

I'm just trying to - did you start 
working on it a week beforehand or a month 
beforehand, or a year beforehand? 
I probably - it could have been in 

process before I was even in Fuel. 
I actually started there as manager 

towards the end of September, and it could 
have been in progress before that. You 
know, could have been after. I'm not 
quite sure when Rich's section started 
preparing that study. 
Okay. 
You have to ask him that. As for as Fuel 
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Procurement, the pricing information that 
they were using was basically the same 
information that's in the corporate model 
so that would have been prepared around 
the beginning ofthe year sometime so that 
information was definitely before a week 
before, I think, but the rest of it, I'm 
not sure. 

You'd have to ask Rich. The fuel 
pricing would have been sometime in the 
beginning of that year. 
Beginning of? 
'96. 
Prior to the - just to back up, I'm 

sorry. 
As I understand, it was sometime in 

late September when you became manager of 
Fuel Procurement? 
Mm-hmm, yes. 
What was your position prior to that? 
Well, I was on a rotation of assignment 

working on a fossil operation performance 
improvement program for a while and at 
that time, I was also the manager of 
Resource Planning. 
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No. 
Okay. Did you attempt to evaluate the 

reasonableness of the input that Mr. Lang 
provided for use by Mr. Hoag regarding 
coal prices? 
Yes, with Mr. Lang. 
With Mr. Lang? 
Yes. 
How did you go about trying to review the 

input Mr. Lang was providing? 
Basically, discussed with him where the 

estimates came from, and how he went about 
deriving that, and basically how they 
compared to current pricing. 
So essentially, you were just getting 

started in Fuel Procurement at that point. 
correct? 
Correct. 
And what you were doing was trying to make 

sure that somebody who had more experience 
in the area seemed to be going about 
developing estimates in a reasonable. 
orderly way? 
Correct. 
Were you concerned at all by the fact that 
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For how long had you been manager of 
Resource Planning? 
Maybe four or five months. 
Before that, what position did you hold? 
I was a senior engineer in System 

Planning. 
And for how long did you hold that 

position? 
Couple years, maybe. 
Okay. In your position as a senior 

engineer in System Planning, did you have 
any responsibility for coal procurement? 
No. 
Had you had any responsibility for coal 

procurement before you became an 
assistant —A-senior engineer in System 
Planning? 
No. 
In your position as manager of Resource 

Planning, did you have any responsibility 
for coal procurement? 
No. 
Do you have any prior training or 

experience or have you taken any course 
work relating to coal procurement? 
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he apparently was using an EVA report that 
was - had been prepared quite a number of 
months earlier? 
I'm not sure how much earlier it was 

prepared but no, I wasn't. 
I thought you indicated that your 

recollection was that it was prepared 
towards the beginning of the year. 
Right, but I'm not sure. I said the 

forecast. I don't know when the EVA 
report was prepared. 
So the forecast -
That we were using. 
- was prepared towards the beginning of 

the year? 
Right. 
Do I understand correctly that it, in 

turn, was based on an EVA report that 
might have been somewhat old? 
Correct. It could have been. 
Do you know how much older it was? 
No. 
Was that - was that a potential concern? 

Were you worried that the estimates might 
be based on stale data? 
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No. 
Why not? 
I wasn't concerned. 
It just wasn't -_ 
I don't know. I don't know. It wasn't a 

concern. 
It just wasn't an issue you really 

focussed on? 
It wasn't an issue that raised concern in 

me. 
Well, did you have any specific reason to 

believe that the use of earlier estimates 
was still reasonable? 
I was relying on the opinion of my 

workers. 
Did you ask Mr. Lang whether he was 

concerned at all regarding the potential 
staleness of the data that he was using? 
No, no. 
Okay. So you don't know whether he was 

concerned one way or the other? 
No. 
Okay. Do you know whether there's been 

any volatility in the relevant coal 
markets during the course of the last year 
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there may have been other inputs, but I 
don't know who it would have been. 
To your knowledge, was there any kind of a 

task force or review comminee that was 
involved in preparing or reviewing the 
study? 
I don't know. I don't remember. You'd 

have to ask Rich. 
Okay. In reviewing the study, did you 

attempt to go back and look at the order 
that was issued by the Commission in 1995 
with respect to the company's 
Environmental Compliance Plan? 
I can't remember if I did pull that out 

again. I may have looked at that before I 
reviewed it. I don't remember. 
Do you remember the major issues that were 

raised back then about the adequacy of the 
company's earlier Environmental Compliance 
Plan? 
I could summarize for you what I thought 

the main issues were. 
Please. 
Or I mean issue. 
Please do. 
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or two? 
My understanding is within the last year. 

prices have been spiking. 
Do you know why that's been occurring? 
I've heard numerous issues relating to a 

certain utility buying a lot more coal due 
to poor nuclear performance, lowering of 
coal inventories amongst different 
suppliers; things along those lines. 

So that your understanding is that any 
spikes are due principally to poor 
performance at some nuclear units in the 
region? 
Could be, yeah. Amongst probably some 

other things. 
And therefore, you expect that they'll be 

temporary in nature? 
Yes. 
I may have asked this already, in which 

case I apologize, do you have any 
knowledge regarding other inputs? That is 
inputs other than yours that Mr. Hoag may 
have obtained in preparing the 
supplemenul study? 
Oh, I think I said I'm not sure. I'm sure 
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The way I understand basically the issue 
surrounding that is we were dealing in 
this study with strictly the replacement 
of the 1.2 million tons of higher sulfur 
coal. 
Mm-hmm. 
And the general effect on that. 
And what factors were relevant to take 

into account in determining whether to 
replace the 1.2 million coal? 
There was a list of issues in that 

stipulated agreement. 
Do you recall what any of those issues 

were? 
No, not off the top of my bead. 
In your judgment, is it appropriate for 

the company to make a decision about 
whether to replace that 1.2 million tons 
based solely on the use of the evaluated 
cost methodology described by Mr. Stead? 
Yes. 
Just for clarity of the record, am I 

conect that you were present throughout 
Mr. Stead's deposition? 
Yes. 
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Are there - in your mind, are there any 
concerns as to whether there might be 
something missing if the company made its 
decision on whether to replace the 1.2 
million tons based solely on the use of 
the evaluated cost methodology? 
No. I mean you never say never, but at 

this time, nothing comes to mind. 
Do you think that - as a person with a 

lot of experience in planning, do you 
think that uncertainties regarding 
allowance prices are relevant in choosing 
between different coals for purposes in 
connection with an acid rain compliance 
program? 
Well, let me answer that two ways because 

I'm not quite sure. I know what you're 
asking but I mean when Rich's section 
actually does - runs - I'm assuming the 
Promod runs they did in the - they would 
look at the certainty or uncertainty of 
S02 allowance cost. 

I'm certain they would do that, but 
as far as fuel procurement when we're 
doing it at our evaluated cost, we would 
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probably middle of "94. 
When is the first time you looked at an 

allowance price forecast, for example? 
Probably the '93, '94 timeframe. 
What's the general pattern been in terms 

of the accuracy of allowance price 
forecasts for that time period through the 
present? 
My general impression in the beginning, 

they were much higher than they turned out 
to be right now. The forecasts are 
probably pretty close is my general 
impression. 
I'm sorry, I'm not sure I heard that 

correctly, excuse me if I repeat a little 
bit. Hearing I have a hard time 
compensating for. 

Were you saying that the price 
forecasts in "93 or "94 were about the 
same as they've turned out to be or fairly 
different? 
No, I'm saying back in the beginning, like 

mayt>e the '93 timeframe or maybe even 
sooner than that, it appeared that in the 
beginning, the allowance forecasts were 
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A 

also like look at a base allowance price. 
high and low allowance price saying that 
high allowance price, low allowance price 
to see if it has any affect in our 
evaluation. 

And Rich would also supply us, you 
know, a high, low base forecast for 
allowances. 
Okay. What happens if it does have an 

affect on your decision? 
We probably discuss it, but it really 

didn't in this evaluation that we had 
done. 
Do yon recall for the last quarter of "97, 

what the range was between the base, the 
high and tb«Jow? 
No. 
Was it significant? 
I don't remember. It couldn't have been 

that significant because I don't remember. 
WeU, am I correct that it's been a 

number of years that you've been having at 
least some involvement with issues 
pertaining to allowance prices? 
As far as I was in System Planning since 
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much higher than the prices actually -
real prices actually turned out to be, and 
if you look at 1996, 1997, it appears the 
forecast prices are probably closer to 
what's really happening. 
What happened the last time the company 

submitted an Environmental Compliance Plan 
to the Commission? Were the allowance 
price forecasts used then accurate? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
relevaiKe. If you can answer that 
question. 

I don't know what you're asking. 
With your system planning background, when 

you reviewed the "96 study, did you go 
back and look at whether the assumptions 
used in doing the earlier study were 
accurate? 
No, I didn't. 
Do you know whether anybody else did? 
I'm not sure if Rich would have or not. 

You'll have to ask him. 
Would it bother you if the assumptions 

that were used eighteen months earlier 
turned out to be off by a factor of 50 
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percent? 
MR. REGin-INSKI: Objection. 

The wimess has already indicated 
that he did not consider the 
forecast. That that was done by 
another individual. 

MR. WEISSMAN: I'm trying to 
take advantage of the individual's 
background in System Planning, and 
really ask him with your System 
Planning background -

MR. REGULINSKI: And I have a 
witness who is going to respond to 
the emission allowance price 
forecast which your witness by the 
way said was not unreasonable, by 
the way. 

You weren't there at that 
time when he told me that the 
forecast was not unreasonable. 

MR. WEISSMAN: Actually I 
was, but he didn't think I was 
listening. 

MR. REGULINSKI: You were 
sleeping, weren't you? 
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mind, sensitivity in analyses are pretty 
important to making sound decisions. 
aren't they? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
relevancy. Can you tie this into 
the issue before the Commission? 

MR. WEISSMAN: Yes. 
MR. REGULINSKI: Please do. 
MR. WEISSMAN: We think that 

the company has Mled to 
adequately take into account 
uncertainties regarding allowance 
prices in its decision-making. 

I'm trying to explore with 
the witness whether in making 
proper planning decisions, it's 
important to take into account 
uncertainty. 

BY MR. WEISSMAN: 
Q Uit? 
A I think it is important to look at 

different levels of uncertainty, yes. 
Q In your experience as a system planner. 

how often did price forecasts tend to fall 
by 50 percent over a space of 18 to 24 
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From a System Planning perspective, is it 
important to do sensitivity analyses? 
From the System Planning perspective, I 

would say yes. 
Okay. 
I'm liere representing the fuel perspective 

also. 
Is the policy within the company that 

every individual should be blind to 
anything other than the responsibility of 
his or her section? 

MR. REGin-INSKI: Objection. 
Can you rephrase the question. 

Is it or isn't it? 
-MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 

Can you rephrase the question for 
me, please? 

I'm trying to understand, do you feel an 
obligation to take into account your prior 
experience and expertise in reviewing 
decisions or studies in which you were a 
participant? 
Yes. 
And with your system planner experience in 
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months for any input? 
I don't remember. 
Can you recall off hand any instance in 

which a forecast was that far off? 
I don't remember right now. 
Did you have occasion to examine in any 

way at any time the accuracy of the 
company's allowance price forecasts in 
successful environmental compliance plans? 

MR. REGin-INSKI: Objection, 
previous environmenal compliance 
plans is outside the scope, 
according to the examiner. 

MR. WEISSMAN: I'm not asking 
anything about the recommendations 
in those reports. I'm asking the 
witness about whether there were 
any - whether he has reviewed 
prior allowance price forecasts 
and if so, whether he draws any -
would draw any conclusions from 
that review regarding the level of 
confidence that the company should 
have in its current forecasts. 

MR. REGULINSKI: This is 
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A 

regarding emission allowances? 
MR. WEISSMAN: That's 

correct. 
MR. REGin-INSKI: Okay. 

As far as review, I've never been 
responsible, you know, solely respoitsible 
for doing emission allowance forecasts. 
All I can say is my general impression of 
different forecasts. Is that what you're 
asking for? 
Yes. 
Okay, I feel right through they're pretty 

accurate. I mean, there's no reason to 
really doubt them now and as I stated 
earlier, it seems like in the past. 
consultants were projecting very high 
allowance prices and those really didn't 
materialize. They were lower. But as far 
as now, I feel they're pretty accurate. 
Do you have any assessment of why the 

earlier forecasts didn't materialize? 
No. 
Why do you have confidence in the current 

forecasts? 
I just feel based on my own assessment. 
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next five years, the next ten years, the 
next fifteen years? How do you go about 
making that decision? 
All those factors that I just mentioned, I 

basically would put them into a diq>atch 
model and see what develops as the least 
cost plan. 
Help me. How would a diq>atch model -
Well, using some sort of a dispatch tool 

such as Promod might help as to give you 
projected allowance levels, things along 
those lines and let you know what the best 
combination of fuel prices, allowance 
prices, and, you know, unit firing rates. 
things like that produces. 
Okay. Are you aware in connection with 

the preparation of the supplemental study, 
of any effort to examine the impact of 
maintaining or displacing the 1.2 million 
toits of high sulfur coal on the size of 
Centerior's allowance bank? 
I believe that, yes, they did do a run; a 

study on that. 
When you say "they," who are you referring 

to? 
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that they're pretty close to where the 
allowance - I mean they're closer to 
where allowances are selling. 

There's a real market that's 
developed now and it seems Hke earlier 
there was no true market. You know, back 
I guess in the '91-92 timeframe. 
In connection with the preparation of the 

'96 smdy, the '96 supplemenul study, are 
you aware of any effort to review the 
appropriateness of the size of Centerior's 
allowance bank? 
No. 
Do you have any views as to what 

criteria - in your judgment, what 
criteria shooM the company uke into 
account in determining the appropriate 
size of its allowance bank? 
Cost of coal, cost of allowances, unit 

dispatch levels, unit availabilities. 
Should the company retain -
Load. 
Is the right thing to retain enough 

allowances to cover potential needs for 
the next three months, the next year, the 
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Rich's section. 
Rich's section. And when you say a study. 

is that something different than the table 
that shows the -
No. The ubIe that was in the study. 
That shows the size of the bank? 
Mm-hmm. 
Are you aware of any discussion that 

occurred internally as to whether the bank 
that resulted from displacing the 1.2 
miUion tons of high sulfur coal was -
I'm tempted to say too hot, too cold or 
just about right - essentially too large. 
too small or just about exactly optimal? 
Not that I recall. 
Do you have any judgments on that issue? 
No. 
Did you or Mr. Lang attempt to - in 

connection with the preparation of the 
supplemental study, did you or Mr. Lang 
attempt to evahiate the potential impacts 
of displacing the 1.2 miUion tons of high 
sulfur coal on the Ohio coal market? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Could you tie that into one of the 
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seven items listed in the 94-1698 
order issued by this Commission on 
July 20, 1995? 

MR. WEISSMAN: Sure. If it 
would help, I'd be glad to. 

MR. REGULINSKI: Maybe number 
6? 

MR. WEISSMAN: The order is 
in this pile? 

MR. REGULINSKI: I'U tell 
you what. We can break -

MR. WEISSMAN: I don't really 
prefer to break. If you wouldn't 
mind, if you could show me. 

(Shon interruption had.) 

[18] BY MR. WEISSMAN: | 
[19] 
[20] 
[21] 
[22] 
[23] 
[24] 
[25] 

Q My apologies for the delay. One of the 
factors that the company is required to 
consider in preparing its supplemenul 
study under the Commission's July 20, 1995 
order is, "A consideration of the impact 
of reduced consumption of Ohio coal and 
the resulting impact on Centerior's 
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relevant is relevant under the 
stipulation that we're proceeding 
imder. 

Would you mind amending your 
questions to suy relevant under 
the stipulation? 

MR. WEISSMAN: I disagree 
with your legal assessment. I'll 
be glad to modify the question. 

BY MR. WEISSMAN: 
Q Do you think it's relevant under the 

stipulation to consider the potential 
impact on the long term production 
capability of the Ohio mining industry 
that might result from displacing 1.2 
mUlion tons of Ohio coal? 

A It could be relevant as far as the fuel 
projections that we're using. 

My understanding is that, you know. 
they would have some kind of projection in 
there as far as how that affecu price 
when we go out, yeah. 

0 Are there circumstances in which the 
company might want to increase its 
consumption of high sulfur coal in the 
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customers." 
Can you tell me what steps, if any. 

you or anyone else in the Fuel Procurement 
section took to evaluate the potential 
impact of displacing the 1.2 million tons 
of Ohio coal? 
We looked at that six pound estimate as 

represenutive of an Ohio high sulfur coal 
estimate, so as far as how that was 
integrated into the study that Rich did, 
he can answer that. 
Did Fuel Procurement try to assess whether 

there would be any potential impact of 
displacing - did the Fuel Procurement 
section try to assess whether if the 
company displaced the 1.2 million tons of 
Ohio coal and switched to an out of sute 
coal, that there might be any impact on 
the number of surviving mines in the Ohio 
coal industry? 
Not to my knowledge. 
Do you think that's a relevant hctot to 

consider under the sutute? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 

The question I think which is 
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future? 
There would be. 
Would any set action or set of actions 

that diminish the long term supply of high 
sulfur coal potentially diminish the 
options available to the company in the 
future? 
It could. 
Do you know whether over the last several 

years, there have been agnificant 
declines in demand for high sulfur coal in 
this region? 
No, I'm not aware of any significant 

declines in demand. 
Would it surprise you if there's been a 

very significant drop off in demand for 
higii sulfur coal over the last four or 
five years? 
No. 
Would it - do you think there's any 

reason to think that there might be major 
problems for the company and for its 
customers in the future if some of the 
existing Ohio mines were to shut down? 
There could be. 
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What kinds of problems might occur? 
If all the mines would shut down. 

potentially that could have less suppliers 
and raise prices. _ 
Could the impacts be significant? 
They could be. I don't know. 
Have you made any impact - any effort to 

study that issue? 
No, I have been there. I have not studied 

that issue. 
Do you know whether anyone associated with 

the company's fuel procurement activities 
has attempted to assess the company's 
potential long term need for high sulfur 
coal? 
I don't know. 
Do you know whether anyone has attempted 

to assess the risk that a significant 
number of high sulfur coal producers in 
the region will be required to shut down 
their activities, their mines? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
I don't think - I think we've 
gone weU beyond the scope of this 
proceeding when we surt ulking 
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Yes. 
And is high sulfur coal one of those 

fuels? 
Yes. 
Since you became responsible for fuel 

procurement, what steps, if any, have you 
Uken to assess the adeqtucy of the long 
term availabUity of high sulfur coal? 
Well, first of all, in our bid proceeding. 

we did ask for high sulfur coal bids which 
as you know, we are planning on pursuing 
one for the fourth quarter of 199/. 

And secondly basically, I read, you 
know. And for example, like Ohio Valley, 
I've been reading that they've been 
securing a lot of tonnage, so, you know, I 
would assume that mine wUI be very 
valuable in the future. 
Do you have any idea whether some of that 

tonnage resulted from other mines being 
shut down? 
No. 
Would that be relevant in your opinion? 
It could be, yeah. 
If it turned out that long term reliance 
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about shutting down of Ohio mines. 
That question is not before the 
Commission. 

I think we've gone too far 
beyond. I've given him some 
leeway, but you've gone 14 
sentences beyond the scope of this 
proceeding. 

MR. WEISSMAN: We just 
disagree. Are you instructing the 
witness not to answer? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Cm we have 
the question re-read? 

(Record read.) 
— . . . 
MR. REGin^INSKI: The 

objection stands. I'U ask the 
witness to answer, if he can. 

No, I don't recaU. 
In your responsibility as fuel - in your 

position as fuel manager, do you believe 
you have any responsibiUty to assess the 
adequacy of the long term supply of the 
fuels that the company's currently using? 
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on high sulfur coal were an important 
option for the company, and might well be 
the most cost effective but there were 
real questions as to whether an adequate 
number of mines would remain open to 
provide that coal, wouldn't that 
potentially be a very major concern in 
terms of the availabihty to produce 
electricity at the lowest cost? 
It could be. 
Is anybody looking at that issue 

internally within the company? 
Not to my knowledge. 
Do you know whether anybody has looked at 

it at any time over the past two or three 
years? 
I don't recaU, no. 
Did System Planning ever ask that 

anybody - during your tenure in System 
Planning, did anyone ask that issue be 
assessed? 
I don't know. No, I don't remember ever 

asking that. 
Okay. Were you involved in fuel 

procurement at the time the company made 
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its decisions regarding sources of coal 
for Eastlake and Ashubula 5 during the 
fourth quarter of '97? 
Yes, as far as tbey relate to the 

soliciution that was sent out in October 
so, yeah. 
What was your role in making that 

decision? 
I had people that worked for me do the 

evaluation and then we presented the 
results of the evaluation to Frank, and 
discussed which bids we would award and 
pursue awarding. 
Did you give your suff any guidance as to 

what foctors they should consider in 
evaluating the different bids? 
As far as which criteria we would evaltute 

them on? 
Right. 
Yeah, yes. 

We discussed which would be the best 
criteria to evaluate by and, you know. 
came iq> with a list of things we wanted to 
use. 
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the evaluation with the high and low price 
of allowances as well as the base price. 
Do you know in looking at future 

altematives with respect to Eastlake 4 
and 5, for purposes of the supplemenul 
study, did the company look at all of 
the - at the possibility of continuing to 
bum the same quantities of high sulfur 
coal that it's currently buming at 
Eastlake 4 and S? 
I don't recall anything that was just done 

for Eastlake 4 and 5, no. 
Is there any reason that you're aware of 

not to took at the option of continuing to 
do exactly what the company is doing now 
in terms of the quantities of high sulfur 
coal bumed at Eastlake 4 and 5? 
No. 
Was the company - was the Fuel 

Procurement section asked to provide 
estimates for the delivered cost of high 
sulfur coal at Eastlake 4 and 5? 
We provided high sulfur coal at Eastlake 4 

and 5. We provided estimates of the 
different coals at the different plants. 
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What were the -
Which were, okay, BTU evaluation. We used 

S02, ash, grind, moisture, and seemed to 
me there could have been one more? 
It's the same factors that Mr. Stead 

described earlier today? 
Yeah, right; same procedure Frank 

described. 
In other words, what you're describing are 

the qiecific components that were uken 
into account in the evaluated cost 
methodology? 
Mm-hmm. 
And am I correct in assuming that there's 

no component in the evaluated cost 
methodology for allowance price volatility 
or the size of the bank or uncertainty 
regarding allowance prices? 
You're correct. There's no component for 

that. 
Were those factors considered in any other 

way? 
As far as I think I said this earlier. 

that Rich provided, yon know, a base; a 
high and low forecast, and we did look at 
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and they ran the study based on the coal 
prices that we provided. I mean, which I 
guess I'm not sure exactly what the 
question is leading to. 
Just trying to determine if you recaU 

whether there were inputs used regarding 
high sulfur coal at Eastlake. 
Yeah, I don't recaU. 
Okay. Can you teU me when you reviewed 

the estimates of delivered fuel costs for 
different fuels that Mr. Lang provided to 
Mr. Hoag, if you recall the questions I 
asked at the outset of your deposition. 
did you make any effort to compare 
Mr. Lang's estimates with retpcct to 
compare Mr. Lang's estimates with bids 
that the company was receiving for 
delivery of the same types of coals to the 
same plants? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
No objection. May I just have 
that question re-read? No 
objection. 

(Record read.) 
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No, I did not. 
Okay. Do you know whether there were 

significant differences between the 
estimates used for any particular type of 
coal in terms of sulfur content, and the 
bids that the company had recently 
received for delivery of the same types of 
coals to the same plants? 

Can I have that question? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Yes. 

(Record read.) 

Nothing significant that comes to mind. 
If the company received bids for any 

particular - for coal with any particular 
levels of sulfur that were significantly 
lower than the estimates that Mr. Lang had 
been - had developed, would there be any 
reason not to use the lower actual bids? 
What do you mean, not to use the lower 

actual bids? 
For purposes of evaluating acid rain 

compliance, for purposes of developing an 
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So I mean -
In your judgment, would it have been 

desirable to elicit such bids? 
It could have been. You know -
What about -
Could have been. 
What about for 1999? Do you know whether 

prior to preparing the supplemenul study. 
the company soUcited bids for the 
deKvery of high sulfur coal to either 
Eastlake or Ashubula in 1999? 
No, I don't know. 
If offers to seU such coal were made for 

aU of '98 or all of "99, would there be 
no reason not to use - would there be any 
reason not to use the bid that was 
actually made in applying the cost 
evaluation methodology and comparing 
different compliance options? 
Yeah. Not to use it, yeah. 
And what would the reasons be? 
One bid doesn't necessarily represent 

what, you know, what you would see from 
everyone else. 
W e U -
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acid rain compliance plan. If you have an 
estimate and an actual bid for the same 
product delivered to the same plant, and 
the actual bid is significantly lower than 
the estimate, is there any reason not to 
use the actual bid? 
Tliat depends on the circumstance. 
What circumstances might cause you not to 

use the actual bid? 
What was the actual bid for? You know, if 

the actual bid was for one quarter, does 
one quarter represent a 20 year forecast. 
you know. You have to ask questions Uke 
that. 
Prior to finalizing the supplemenul 

study, did^tlie company seek bids for 
delivery of high sulfur coal to Eastlake 
or Ashubula 5 during 1998? 
Not to my knowledge, no. 
Why not? 
I don't know. 
Did you - did anyone ask you whether it 

would be useful to solicit such bids? 
I wasn't down there at the time. 
In your judgment -
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And in that, you know what I'm saying? 
Like if one 2.5 pound person gives you 
this price, that doesn't mean you would 
get everyliody at that same price range. 
Does that matter? I mean isn't the only 

question what's the lowest cost for 
getting a particular fuel delivered to 
that particular plant? 
When you actually go for bids, yes, but 

you're asking in context of this long 
range smdy. 
Right. 
And I'm saying I wouldn't necessarily just 

because you have one quarter or one year 
or two years of one low bid in a ceruin 
S02 q>ec, I wouldn't just change all 20 
years worth of d a u based on that one bid. 
What's the longest term commitment that 

the company has for the purchase of coal 
for use at Eastlake? 
Probably at this point, through the end of 

•97. 
Your belief is that there are no 

commitments for the purchase of coal at 
Fjistlake after "97? 
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Nothing I can recall, no. 
What about at Ashubula 5? 
Ashubula 5, ho. I mean, no, nothing I 

can recall. 
What about at other coal fired units? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Is that necessary? 

MR. WEISSMAN: Td Uke to 
have some sense of whether there's 
something special about Eastlake 
or Ashubula. 

MR. REGULINSKI: It's before 
the Commission. That's what makes 
it so special. 

MR. WEISSMAN: I actually 
also would Uke the witness to be 
the person who answers questions. 

MR. REGULINSKI: WeU, I'm 
asking you to withdraw the 
question. WiU you withdraw it? 

MR. WEISSMAN: No. 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 

If you can answer the question, go 
ahead. 

Well, for Bay Shore, we are pursuing 
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Anything more than five years, I don't 
think I would pursue. 
Why not? 
I just think the electric market right now 

is too volatile. 
'Why is that relevant? 
I don't know. The onset of different 

reuiling aspects, things like that, I 
would, you know, be less apt to go for a 
longer term contract now. 
There's just too many unceruinties as to 

what the company wiU be doing five years 
from now? 
Probably, yes. 
And too many unceruinties about what the 

toul coal consumption wiU be; is that 
correct? 
Mm-hmm. 
And what fuel prices will be Uke; is that 

correct? 
Mm-hmm. 
And whether there will be regulations? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
We've gone way beyond the scope. 
I know you think it's in the scope 
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western coal contracts, but to convert the 
plant over to westem coal which I'm sure 
you're aware of that, but as far as Uke 
Eastlake and Ashubula, '98, I don't know 
of any commitments. 

Avon, you know we do have a long term 
commitment at that plant. Actually two 
contracts. 
Over the roughly two and a half years 

since you became Fuel Procurement manager. 
have there been any new long term coal 
commitments made? 

MR. REGULINSKI: At any 
units, Mr. Weissman? 

MR. WEISSMAN: Yes. 
HIR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 

to relevance of the question, but 
without waiving the objection. 
I'U ask him to answer. 

Since I became manager, no, not since I 
became manager. 
As a general matter, do you think it's 

desirable to avoid long term commitments? 
Depends on your definition of long term. 
Let's say five years or more. 
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before the Sute Commission. 
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we're way out there now. 
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Is one of the uncertainties whether we'll 
continue to have the current form of 
comprehensive cost of service regulation. 
or whether there wiU be some form of 
reuil competition? 
Yes. 
Is it fair to say that we're facing an 

unusual high level of unceruinty as to 
what the electric utility will be like? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
relevance. Don't answer the 
question. 

MR. WEISSMAN: I think what 
might be most efficient at this 
point would be if we could break 
for five or ten minutes or so. 

MR. REGULINSKI: Yes. 

(Shon recess had.) 
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. . . 
(At this time, Mr. Siegfried 

and Mr. Sarver left 
the depositioaat 3 JO p.m..) 

. . . 
MR. WEISSMAN: I'd Uke to 

show the witness and ultimately 
ask for return of, a document 
entitled Environmenul Compliance 
Plan Review, Supplemenul Fuel 
Switching, confidential 
information filed under seal. 

I'm going to show the witness 
the doctunent solely for the 
purposes of allowing him to have 
in front of him Ubies 2 and 3 of 
that document while I ask ceruin 
questions, but I intend to ask the 
questions in a maimer that wUl 
avoid any need to create a 
confidential transcript. Is that 
permissible? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Yes, that's 
my preference, as well. 

[25] BY MR. WEISSMAN: 
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look at any given number on the chart. 
that it wiU indicate to me for the year 
that I've chosen, and the pounds S02 per 
million BTU that's pertinent, it will 
indicate the toul of the estimated 
delivered cost for the coal, and plus the 
estimated value of the S02 allowances 
needed to offset the sulfur in the coal; 
is that correct? 
Yes. 
Okay. And do you know essentially with 

req>ect to the S02 component, is the cost 
figure that is used the cost figure 
necessary to essentially zero out the 
sulfur? 
Okay, I don't know that. There's a couple 

ways you could have done these. You could 
have just Uken 1.2 as the zero reference. 
You could have Uken anything as a zero 
reference. Zero is a zero reference. I'm 
not sure how we did these ubIes. 
If I rephrase your sutement by saying 

that you could use any reference point you 
wanted, as long as you used a consistent 
reference point? 
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Here is the document. And really, my only 
reason for showing it to you is to ask a 
question - a series of questions 
conceptually regarding how the numbers on 
the ubles were prepared. 
Sure. 
If I ask you to look at any particular 

number, if we could just pick as an 
example, the year 1999, vahie. I'd Uke 
to refer particularly to UbIe 2, just as 
an illustrative example, which I believe 
peruins — I believe this is an 
indication on the top. 

It peruins to the Eastlake plant and 
another noution on the top that sutes. 
"DelivereifTtwl costs phis S02 costs." 

First of aU, am I correct that what 
the UbIe inchides is the numbers that 
were actually used for purposes of the 
study in evaluating the different fuel 
choice alternatives for the Eastlake plant 
in different years? 
Yes. 
Okay. And would it also be correct that 

the numbers on the chan basically, if I 
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Right, whether you're going above or 
beyond it, right. I'm not sure how he did 
this UbIe. You'd have to ask Rich. 
You're not sure what the exact reference 

point is? 
Right. 
If I pick the number, for example, in the 

column that's labeled 3.8 pounds S02 per 
million BTU for the year 1999, can you 
describe your understanding as to what the 
components are that were used to develop 
that number? 
It's the deUvered cost of fiiel in 1999 

and an allowance adder which would have 
been equivalent in die sense of BTU that 
Rich would have added onto here. 
Is there any other cost element included 

for any other adjustment based on the 
characteristics of the coal? 
No, not that I know of. 
Okay. Is there - would the S02 value 

used in calculating that number be based 
upon the uble of allowance - of 
projected allowance prices contained 
elsewhere in the same supplemenul study? 
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Yeah, I would assume so, yes. 
It's something Mr. Hoag is probably better 

able to confirm? 
Yeah, I think s^. 
That's fine. Do you know when the company 

evaluated bids for coal to be delivered 
during the fourth quarter of 1997? 

Did it use the same projected S02 
allowance prices that are contained in the 
uble? 
I don't recall. It could have been 

different. The allowance bid, we actually 
solicited that I think in October, so it 
would have been, you know, maybe a month 
or two after this was tumed in that those 
were evaluated, so it could have been a 
different price. 
What S02 allowance prices do you expect 

the company to use in determining what 
coals it will select for 1998? 
WeU, what we do - it might be none of 

these. We could - we'll ask Rich what 
the most updated forecast is at the time. 
You know, when we're ready to evaltute 
bids, and that's what we would use. 
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Would the transporution cost used in 
evaluating the high sulfur coal, the 6.0 
coal option for Ashubula 5 been based 
upon the EVA report as weU? 
I don't recall, you know. 
Is that something you should -
It could have been. Most Ukely it was 

based on a contract to a ceruin point and 
then went to an EVA projected price. 
Have you attempted to examine - is there 

a - is the coal - is the cost for 
transporting coal from Powhatan No. 6 to 
Eastlake or to Ashubula 5 the same or 
different from the transporution cost 
associated with high sulfiir coal from 
other - obtained from other areas? 
In general, it could be different. 
Was there an effort made to uke into 

account those differences in determining 
the value to be used for high sulfur coal 
at Ashubub 5? 
Not to my knowledge. 
Why not? 
I don't know. 
If there were significantly lower 
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How frequently is the allowance price 
forecast updated? 
You'd have to ask him how often he updates 

it, but for the purposes of any time we 
would be buying coal, we would ask him for 
an update. 
And with respect to the transporution 

cost that's included in each of the 
figures, each of the numbers on this 
chart-
Mm-hmm. 
- would that tranq>orution cost have 

been - what would that tran^>orution 
cost have been based upon? 
You asked me this earUer. I think what I 

had said warif there's an actual contract 
in place for the particular plant, it 
could have been based on that contract. 
and if there was no contract, it was an 
EVA projection of raU. 
If I ask you to turn to Uble 3,1 believe 

it is, that peruins to Ashubula 5. 
Okay. 
There's a column there for 6.0 coal? 
Mm-hrom. 
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transporution costs for coal for Powhatan 
No. 6 or other mines senrable off the same 
rail line, would there be any reason not 
to uke into account those - any valid 
justification not to Uke into account 
those lower transporution costs? 
Just to step back a minute, when we did 

this study, my understanding of how this 
works is you're just uking a 
represenutive range. 

The six pound represenu in general. 
It doesn't represent one in particular 
mine, or two mines; just represents, you 
know, here's a represenutive example of 
what, you know, a six pound coal could be 
delivered to. 
If there were a mine with inherently lower 

tranqKirution costs that was wiUing to 
make an offer to provide coal at a 
delivered cost - on a delivered cost 
basis that reflected that transporution 
cost advantage, shouldn't that be Uken 
into account? 
WeU, the way I would handle that is when 

we - no, no, I don't think. Not in this 
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study. 
When you solicit the bid, and if they 

tum in a bid and, you know, you put in 
the actual transporution cost and it is 
lower, then it's lower than what this 
projected cost was, but, you know, I 
wouldn't base this cohimn of this study 
for this plant tike I said earUer on one 
particular bid or one particular mine. 
Do you know whether historically the 

transporution costs from the Powhatan No. 
6 mine to Eastlake and Ashubula have been 
lower than the transporution costs 
incurred by most other high sulfur coal 
vendors? 
I don't know off the top of my head. 
Do you know whether there's a reason why 

those costs should be lower? 
One reason the Powhatan - I don't know 

what the other mines were. It's hard for 
me to compare just off the top of my head 
because of the fact that we use our 
private equipment for Powhatan so that 
cost doesn't appear in the sense from the 
BTU, right off the bat, you know. It's 
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then that's what we use in our evaluation. 
Do you do that even if the expected S02 is 

lower? 
Yes. If they guarantee 2.5 pounds, then 

we use 2.5 pounds. 
Okay. Is it your practice to include 

penalties or adjustment fectors baaed 
on - in your bid soliciutions, do you 
specify only a maximum or an average or 
both? 
I can't remember what was in the last one. 

I think there was an average and I don't 
think it went maximum. I don't remember. 
As I undemand it, historically, C.E.I., 

correct me if I'm wrong, but owned the 
trains that were used to haul coal from 
Powhatan to Eastlake and Ashubula; is 
that correct? 
Historically? I'm not positive. I know 

we were using them since I'm there. 
Historically, that's probably conect but 
I'm not positive historically or how far 
back that went. 
They're cunently being used under a lease 

anangement? 
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hard for me to just draw a comparison 
without seeing numbers. 
Is the company — did the company - where 

are we? Does the company plan to continue 
using that same equipment during the 
founh quaner of '97? 
We're evaluating that now. 
Is that an option avaUable to the 

company? 
It's an option available to the company. 
Do I understand conectly that in 

developing the estimates that are 
conuined in the uble, that the figures 
that are used are based upon the maximum 
potential sulfur content under each 
option? -"• 
Are we on uble 3? Basically the S02 

potential is just what we Usted up top. 
I mean we're assuming that is the S02 
potential, basically. 
What about when you evaluate bids, do you 

evaluate -
You adjust. If it's higher or lower, you 

would just put in what they bid. If they 
bid this is our maximum S02 potential. 
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Yes. 
Is there an option to extend that lease 

arrangement? 
Yeah. 
Is there any change in price? What are 

the terms of that option? When does it 
have to be exercised? 
We're cunently looking at that. It's 

pretty soon. 
Do you recall how soon? 
Within the next couple days. 
Within the next couple days? 
Conect, yeah. 
Is there any risk that the company wiU 

forfeit the option of continuing to rettin 
that service? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
I think we're going again fat 
afield of what's relevant to the 
study. We've already indicated 
through this witness that the 
study does not Uke into account 
the different transporution modes 
of using our own equipment, rather 
it has six pound coal as a 
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MICHAEL KOVACH, of lawful age. 
called by the Ohio Valley Coal Company 
for the purpose of testimony in this 
matter being by me first duly swore. 
as hereinafter said as follows: 

MR. PERLIS: This is Mark 
PerUs, counsel to the Ohio Valley 
Coal Company resuming a deposition 
that had been begun by Mr. Andrew 
Weissman of Mr. Michael Kovach of 
Centerior Energy. 

Before we begin, since we 
have people listening on the 
speakerphone, I would appreciate 
it if we just uke a roU call and 
identify everyone who is in the 
room here and on the speakerphone 
at the other end. 

So, for the record, my name 
is Mark L. PerKs, P as in Peter, 
E-R-L-I-S. I'm also an attomey 
with the law firm Dickstein, 
Shapiro, Morin and Oshinsky in 
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AFFEAHAIICES: 
NIchaa l c . R a g u l l n s k I , Esq. 
Sanlor Counsal 
6200 Oak Traa Boulavard 
Indapandanca, Ohio i i 1 3 1 
<2U) * *T -2592 

on baha l f o f Cen te r i o r Energy c o r p o r a t i o n 
D i c k s t e i n , Shap i ro , Nor in « Oshinsky, by: 
Mark L. P a r t i s , Esq. 
2101 L S t ree t HU 
Washington, OC 200 j r -152« 
(202ia2&-2233 

on behaU o f the Ohio v a l l e y coa l 
Coapany, and Robert Hurray 

c o l l e e n L. Hooney, Esq. 
A s s i s t a n t Consuaar 's counsel 
77 South High s t r e e t 
15th F loo r 
co luabus , Ohio t32 t6 -0550 

By te lephone: 

S tua r t H. S i e g f r i e d 
Fat sarvar 
F u b l l e u t i l i t i e s c j n i s s l o n o f Ohio 
ISO East Sroad s t r e e t 
co luabus , Ohio «32i6-0S73 

ALSO F U S E K T : as . Msncy Cesear. aatas A s s i s t a n t 
» r . R ichard S. Hoag 
Kr. Frank Staad 

PAGE 4 
[1 ] 
[ 2 ] 
[3 ] 
[4 ] 
[ 5 ] 
[ 6 ] 
[ 7 ] 
[ 8 ] 
[ 9 ] 
[10] 
(111 
[12] 
[13] 
[14] 
[15] 
[16] 
[17] 
[18] 
[19] 
(201 
[21] 
[22] 
[23] 
[24] 
[25] 

Washington, D.C. and to my right 
is? 

MS. MOONEY: Colleen Mooney. 
I'm with the Ohio Consumer's 
Counsel. 

MR. HOAG: Richard Hoag, 
Production Strategy Manager for 
Centerior Energy. 

MR. STEAD: Frank Stead, 
Director of Supply for Centerior. 

MR. REGULINSKI: Mike 
Regulinski, counsel for Centerior. 

THEWllNESS: Mike Kovach, 
Manager of Field Planning and 
Supply. 

MS. CESEAR: Nancy Cesear, 
Regulatory Afbirs, Centerior 
Energy. 

MR. REGULINSKI: You guys on 
the phone are up. 

MR. SIEGFRIED: My name is 
Stuatt Siegfried, 
S-I-E-G-F-R-I-E-D, and I'm with 
the Commission Suff. 

MR. SARVER: Pat Sarver, 

Robert J. Rna ft Associates 



Robert J. Rua & Associates 

PAGE 29 
[1] 
[2] 
[3] A 
[4] 
[5] 
[6] 0 
[7] 
[8] 
[9] A 
[10] Q 
[11] 
[12] 
[13] 
[14] 
(151 
[16] 
[17] 
[18] A 
[19] 
[20] 
[21] 
[22] Q 
[23] 
[24] 
[25] 

anticipate that that soliciution would 
cover? 
If I had to say at this point, I would 

just go for one year in quaner 
increments. 
Is Centerior actively negotiating today 

with any coal suppliers for the supply of 
coal to Eastlake after January 1, 1998? 
No, not that I know of. 
Why not? Have you made - for the record. 

the counsel hasn't answered the question. 
Do you intend -

MR. REGULINSKI: The witness. 
MR. PERLIS: The witness, I'm 

sorry, excuse me. 
MR. REGULINSKI: Let's give 

the witness some time. 
You know, well, we just went through a 

merger and we're basically waiting to see 
what happens with that, and we wiU most 
likely solicit as First Energy. 
Why does the merger affect how Centerior 

Energy wiU pursue coal supply for 
Eastlake? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 
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in better opportunities for the purchase 
of coal? 
More buying power. 
Is that because Ohio Edison also purchases 

subsuntial quantities of coal in the 
similar grades that Centerior does? 
I don't know what they - yeah, I don't 

know. 
Where does the additional buying power 

come from, if not for their purchase of 
coal of similar quality and 
characteristics from Centerior's needs? 
I'm ulking toully on a tonnage basis; 

volume tonnage. 
Is there some possibility that the 

utilization requirements at Eastlake 
and/or Ashubula would change as a result 
of the First Energy merger? 
I don't know. It could, I don't know. 
How could those utilizations change as a 

resuU of the merger? 
They could go up or they could go down. I 

don't know. 
Why might they go up? 
There could be - I don't know. I'm just 
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to relevance. Without waiving the 
objection, let the witness 
respond. 

There could be more opportunities under 
the combined companies. 
Do you mean by that, more cost effective 

opportunities? 
Yes. 
Could that in pan l>e because the partner 

in your merger may have other supplies of 
coal that could be made available to 
Centerior? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Same 
objection, and a continuing 
objection to the relevance of the 
FirstEnergy merger questions and 
the impact of the First Energy 
merger in this proceeding. 

Without waiving the 
objection, let the witness respond 
to the best of his abiUty. 

Yeah, I don't know what they have that we 
could use. 
So why do you believe that Centerior -

that the First Energy merger might result 
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saying it could go up or down. I don't 
know. 
Can you provide any factors that you might 

expect would cause it to go up or down? 
I don't know. Are we Ulking about 

Eastlake here? 
Yes. Let's stan with Eastlake. 
WeU, Eastlake is a more efficient plant 

than one of theirs and it could 
potentially go up. If Eastlake's a lesser 
efficient plant, than there's - it could 
go down and it could suy the same. 
And by efficiency, what do you mean? 
Toul cost. 
Per kilowatt produced? 
Cents per kilowatt hour. 
So in terms of cents per kilowatt hour, do 

you have any idea how Eastlake sucks up 
against any of Ohio Edison's plants? 
Yeah, I'm not sure. 
Do you have any idea how Eastlake sucks 

up with respect to the industry in 
general? 
I'm not - I don't recaU at this time. 

no. 
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Do you believe that the cents per kilowatt 
hour for Eastlake is above average or 
below average? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 
to relevance to this line of 
questioning. Would you care to 
rephrase that question? 

MR. PERLIS: Are you 
instructing the witness not to 
answer it? 

MR. REGULINSKI: I'm asking 
if you can make the question 
relevant for him. 

MR. PERLIS: I guess I don't 
see why the question is not 
relevant. 

MR. REGULINSKI: Without 
waiving the objection, the witness 
can answer. 

Above average to what? I don't know what 
you mean. 
Above average to other coal fired 

generating facilities. 
In the United SUtes? I mean, in where? 

Makes a big difference. 
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soliciution that would cover both 
Eastlake and Ashubula? 
Or any other requirements we determine we 

have on the system. 
And with respect to Ashubula, are there 

particular characteristics, fuel needs 
that you project in 1998 that would 
differentiate it from Eastlake? 
No. I mean, could you be more specific I 

guess? 
Does the company - is the company 

considering some possibiUty of reduced 
utilization at either Eastlake or the 
Ashubula units? 
Ashubula units now? We were Ulking just 

about 5. 
Ashubula Number S. 
Not that I'm aware of on Ashubula 5. 
Any - is the company considering any 

closure of either of these plants? 
Not that I'm aware of. Once again, we're 

just ulking about 5 and Eastlake? 
Right. 
No, not that I'm aware of. 
And no reduction in the operations, the 

PAGE 34 
[1] 
( 2 
[ 3 
( 4 
( 5 
( 6 
[ 7 
[ 8 
( 9 
(10 
[11 
(12 
[13 
[14 
[15 
[16 
[17 
(18 
[19 
[20 
(21 
[22 
(23 
[24 
[25] 

Q 
A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 

Q 

Let's say just in Ohio. 
Just in Ohio, I don't know. 
What about in the mid-west? What about in 

the region extending from any adjacent 
sute to Ohio, including Ohio? 
My thought is it would be in the top half. 
By that, do you mean the more expensive 

half? 
No, the least; the less expensive half. 
Now with respect to Ashubula, are you 

aware of whether there are any commitments 
for the purchase of coal for the Ashubula 
5 unit that extend beyond December 31, 
1997? 
None that I'm aware of. 
And how do you anticipate that Centerior 

will meets its-fuel needs at Ashubula 5 
in 1998? 
Once again, if you're referring to, you 

know, to get coal for - once again, when 
we send out an RFP, we would do mostly 
what we did the last time. Just one 
system RFP specifying aU our requirements 
and soliciting bids at that time also. 
So you would intend to do a joint 
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type of operations? 
Yeah. As I said eartier, I don't know. 
What about other coal fired generating 

faculties? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 

to relevance. 
I don't know. I'm not doing - you know. 

I'm in fuel. I'm not doing system 
studies. 

Okay. Mr. Kovach, how much high sulfur 
coal is cunently being bumed at 
Eastlake? 
I believe about 7 - depends on any given 

year. I mean, with the loads, given 
loads, I would think it's somewhere 
between 600 and 850,000. 
And at Ashubula 5? 
Once again, depending on the different 

loads, I would think it could be anywhere 
between 350, and 500,000; somewhere in 
that ballpark. 
And is aU of that high sulfur coal from 

Ohio sources? 
I believe so. 
How many different mines supply Ohio high 
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Right, and your answer was that he 
prepared the fuel price forecast for the 
1995 study. 
No, I was ulking about the '96, who 

prepared the "96.' 
So Mr. Lang prepared the fuel price 

forecast for the '96 study? 
Conect. 
And did you review that fuel price 

forecast? 
Yes. 
And do you know how Mr. Lang - the 

evidence on which he relied upon in making 
that fuel forecast? 
Yes. 
And what was that, sir? 
He used an EVA study as the premise and 

then be adjusted that based on bis 
knowledge of what he knows going on in the 
market; makes minor adjustments to that. 
I'm now making reference to the reqionse 

of Centerior Energy to the Intenogatories 
and document production, number 8 in which 
Centerior suted, "The coal price forecast 
used in the Supplemenul Fuel Switching 
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There's rail conttacts that are in there. 
We had spot bids. I mean, they would have 
had that in the projections. 
The response says long term coal supply 

contract prices. Do you consider bids. 
spot bids, long term coal supply contract 
prices? 
No. I mean the response might not be -
Well, it might not be what, sir? 
I'm not responsible for these, right? I 

was not the -
You said you reviewed Mr. Lang's coal -
Price forecasts, yeah. 
Then how would you characterize the basis 

for the coal price forecast? 
I would - as I suted earlier, it was 

basically a projection by EVA which he had 
done some tweaking to for the coal price 
forecast, but any contracts would have 
been - any contracts we had in place 
would be pan of that. 
When did EVA produce this foreca.st? 
I don't recall. 
And what do you think EVA based their 

forecast on in the absence of long term 

PAGE 46 
[1] 
[2] 
[3] 
[4] 
[5] 
[6] 
[7] 
[8] 
[9] 
[10] 
[11] Q 
[12] 
(131 
[14] 
(151 
(161 
[17] 
[18] 
[19] 
[20] 
[21] 
[22] 
[23] 
[24] A 
[25] 

Study was developed based upon C.E.I.'s 
long term coal supply contract prices in 
place on the date the forecast was 
prepared." 

Then, "Coal contract prices are 
escalated through the term of each 
conttact at an assumed annual escalation 
rate." 

MR. REGULINSKI: It also says 
in addition, a reference -

"A market price for FOB mine coal prices 
is developed based upon information 
provided by Energy Ventures Analysis known 
as EVA." 

With that in mind, Mr. Kovach, you've 
previously stated that for Eastlake and 
Ashubula, there are no long term coal 
supply contracts in place. So could you 
please teU me how it is - on what basis 
the Supplemenul Fuel Switching Study 
determined coal price forecasts when there 
are no long term contracts for Eastlake or 
Ashubula? 
WeU, this study was done in 1996 and we 

had a raU contract in 1996, you know. 
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conttacts? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 

That's the EVA's forecast. I 
don't know if this witness is 
competent to testify as to what 
EVA did. 

Let me rephrase the question. In your 
review of the coal price forecast, would 
you have just accepted the EVA analysis 
without inquiring into the basis for the 
EVA'S price forecast of what Centerior's 
coal price costs were going to be? 
There is a basis in the repon. 
Did you inquire into what that basis was? 
I looked at it. I don't know if I 

thoroughly inquired though. 
And do you recaU what that basis was? 
No. 
I asked you before whether Mr. Fink was 

at all involved in the 1996 Supplemenul 
Fuel Switching Study. Was he? 
Once again, I have to say what his 

involvement was before I came down there. 
I don't know. You know, he could have 
easUy been involved. You'd have to ask 
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And are you referring here generally to 
what might be called integrated resource 
plan models? 
Yes. 
And PROMOD, dispatch models? 
That's one of them. 
And there are other models as well? 
Yeah, there's a lot. 
And you would have expected all of those 

models to have been utilized in the 
preparation of the 1996 Supplemenul Fuel 
Switching Study? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Objection. This is not the 
witness that prepared or 
coordinate the '96 study. What he 
would expect to have been used is 
not relevant, and I believe you're 
badgering this witness now asking 
him questions that do not relate 
to the study. 

The witness is available for 
deposition who coordinated and 
prepared the study and is 
responsible for that study. 
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And would you have expected the 
projections of load growth for the company 
to have changed between January 20, 1995, 
and October 1, 1996? 
I don't know. 
Would you have expected there to have been 

any factors that might have affected load 
growth projections, cause them to change 
between January 20, 1995 and October 1, 
1996? 
I don't know. I don't know. 
Well, what are the major factors that 

determine load growth projections for 
a company? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Relevance. Without waiving the 
objection. 

I'm not here to ulk about load growth. I 
don't know. 
Mr. Kovach, does the load growth factor 

into the supplemenul - does the forecast 
of load growth factor in at all in the 
Supplemenul FUel Switching Study? 
Yes, I would think it factors in. 
And why would it factor in, sir? 
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MR. PERLIS: WeU, I intend 
to ask Mr. Hoag a question along 
the same lines for what he did. 
but I'm asking Mr. Kovach to 
elaborate on his earlier response 
that he would have expected all of 
the required updates to be 
underuken, given that he was the 
coordinator of the first repon. 

I think it is fair to inquire 
of him as a witness what he would 
have expected to have been 
analyzed. 

MR. REGULINSKI: May we have 
the question re-read, please? 

— 
(Record read.) 

MR. REGULINSKI: Without 
waiving the objection, let the 
witness answer. 

Not aU of them. There's a lot of models. 
You pick one or two you use in your 
company, so whatever he used, I would have 
expected would have been updated. 
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Amount of tons of coal would give - it 
would affect tons of coal burned. 
And that would in turn affect perhaps the 

number of allowances the company needed to 
have? 
It could. Yeah, it could. I don't know. 
Okay. So what are some of the factors 

that you would expect to influence load 
growth projections for the company? 
I don't know. 
Would projections of consumer demand for 

power be one such foctor? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 

asked and answered. He said he 
doesn't know. 

Let me rephrase it. When you said you 
don't know, you don't know because you are 
unfitmiliar with the foctors that might 
effect load growth, or you're just not 
sure which ones have been evaluated for 
the 1996 study? 
I'm not the witness on that. 

MR. PERLIS: Can we go off 
the record for a moment? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Yes. 
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. . . 
(Shon recess had.) 

. . . 
Mr. Kovach, we've returned after a brief 

recess, and I would like to renew a line 
of inquiry with a new question if I might. 

In your capacity now as Manager of 
Fuel PUmning and Supply, do you have 
occasion to inquire as to the company's 
projections of load growth? 
There could be occasions. I haven't since 

I've been down there inquired into their 
projections of load growth. 
In your prior capacity as the Manager of 

Resource Planning, would that have been an 
area within your expertise and competence. 
the evaluation of load growth forecasts of 
the company? 
Maybe. I'm not quite sure how to answer 

that. 
Well, Mr. Kovach, could you describe for 

me some factors, the major fiu:tors that 
you think affect forecasts of load growth 
for Centerior Energy Corporation? 
I could give you some thoughts I had. I 
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effects of competition on that that may 
emerge on load growth? 
It could be, you know. 
What about the ability of Centerior to 

purchase power from other sources, in 
effect displacing its own generation? Was 
that a factor that would be considered in 
projection of load? 
No, I don't know why. 
What - how do you define the term load? 
The load; the electricity use within your 

defined service territory. 
How do you define electricity produced at 

your generating plants? 
Generation. 
Okay. Do you believe that the 

availability of purchased power would 
effect the utilization of generation 
facilities of Centerior? 
Yeah, it could affect your generation. It 

has nothing to do with your load forecast. 
I mean, I didn't understand what you were 
asking. 
Perhaps my question was inartful. 

Do you believe that both - that load 
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mean I'm not sure they're right. 
Yes. 
I would think population of your service 

territory is one of them. If you know of 
any potential new development coming in. 
as far as industrial development. 
something along those Unes. Those are 
probably two of the biggest, I would 
think. 

Do you believe that the onset of 
competition is another foctor that would 
be relevant to determinations of load 
growth? 
It depends on what kind of load forecast 

you're doing I guess. I'm talking about 
the service^territory load forecast, so -
Right. With respect to the Supplemenul 

Fuel Switching Study, does it rely on a 
projection of load over the fuU 20 year 
period of the study? 
Yes. 
So, in the context of a 20 year load 

growth analysis, do you consider it — to 
the best of your knowledge, do you 
consider it relevant to consider the 
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growth wiU affect the amount of emissions 
that the company system-wide would have? 
It could. 
And also the level of generation, the 

operation of the generating facilities 
would affect the level of emissions? 
Yeah. Once again, it could, yeah. 
Is there any way in which the capacity 

utilization of your generating plants 
would not affect the output of emissions? 
Well, I could think - yeah, off the top 

of my head, I don't know what was done. I 
could just give you a case where, for 
example, you raised the capacity factors 
on non-phase one effective units and 
lowered them on phase one effective. 
That's a case right there where, you know. 
in the same proportion where it could have 
no effect at all on what went on. 
But in terms of the toul generating 

capacity, the toul generating utilization 
of generating capacity, that would affect 
emission levels? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 
to relevance on total generation. 
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We are focussing on two generation 
facilities. Without waiving the 
objection, I'll let the wimess 
respond. 

Again, I didn't r- could you repeat the 
question again? 
Let me approach it from a different 

direction. The emission allowance needs 
of Centerior are determined on a unit 
basis, or on a system basis? 
System. 
So looking at the systems needs for 

emission aUowance, is the systems needs 
affected by system generation levels? 
Yeah, it should be. 
Can you identify any significant factors 

that you think are likely to affect the 
level of generation production at 
Centerior's plants? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Can we have 
that question read back to us. 
please? 

(Record read.) 
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And do you believe that the - to the best 
of your knowledge now, do you believe that 
the Supplemenul Fuel Switching Study 
could uke into account the likely effects 
or possible effects of competition on the 
ability of Centerior to seU power in 
other jurisdictions? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 
to relevance. Without waiving the 
objection, I'U let the witness 
respond. 

I'm not sure to what extent it was uken 
into account. 
Do you believe that it should have been 

Uken into account? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Same 

objection. Without waiving. 
I don't know. 
WeU, Mr. Kovach, if the toul level of 

generation matters to the allowance needs 
and competition affects - both 
opportunities and challenges affect what 
your generation level might be, isn't it 
son of obvious that the presence of 
competition wiU have an affect on the 
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I don't know. I don't know. 
WiU load growth be such a factor? 
Yeah. Our load growth could be, yeah. 
Could competition be such a factor? 
I don't know. 
If Centerior's service territory is opened 

to other competing suppliers of power, 
might that affect the level of both the 
load as Centerior's load as well as its 
generating? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 
to relevance. Without waiving the 
objection, the witness can answer. 

It could. It could go up or it could go 
down. 
How might it go up? 
If our service territory was opened up, I 

would assume everyone arotmd us was and we 
would have the oppominity to seU there. 
I mean so it could actually iiKrease. 
And would that be most likely to happen if 

your costs were such that you could offer 
the power at atttactive prices in other 
utility service territories? 
It could. 
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allowance needs for the company? 
It could. As we said, I mean it could. 

You could need more allowances, you could 
need less. It just depends on what's 
going to happen. 
You might need more, you might need less 

but do you not think that the company 
should determine whether it's going to be 
more or less under different scenarios? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
This question's been asked and 
answered. The witness has 
reqionded he doesn't know. 

MR. PERLIS: Michael, he 
just — 

MR. REGULINSKI: Without 
waiving the objection, we wiU let 
the witness req>ond again to the 
same question. 

Could you repeat the what the question 
was? 

(Record read.) 

Yeah, I don't know. It could be looked at 
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as an unceruinty analysis. I'm not sure. 
You'd have to ask Rich if he had done that 
or not. 
Okay. You mentioned before that one 

possible scenario~is that Centerior would 
be able to sell power in other 
jurisdictions. 
Yeah, yeah. 
And do you think that the potential for 

sales by Centerior wiU depend upon the 
cost structure of the generating 
facilities and their fuel costs? 
That would be a factor, yeah. 
And do you know how Centerior's - do you 

know how the EastUike plant's cost 
structure compares to - let me rephrase 
this question. Let me stan over again. 

Earlier you sUted that you thought 
that the Eastlake plant had below average 
costs compared to the region of sutes 
adjacent to Ohio. Do you recall giving 
that answer? 
I don't know if it was in those exact 

words, but eluding to the fact that if. 
you know, I would guess that they're in 
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steps in making sales of power to recover 
the costs of emission allowances 
associated with those sales? 
I don't know. 
Would you say that the potential for 

sales, either wholesale or reuU outside 
your service territory are significant? 
Once again, what do you mean by 

significant? 
Do you believe that in the future, the 

advent of competition wiU increase the 
significance of outside sales of power 
either at wholesale or at reuil? 
Yeah, I would agree it will increase in 

significance. Wherever that level is now. 
I don't know. 
As it increases in significance, will that 

affect the allowance requirements of 
Centerior? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Yeah, it could. 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 
to relevance. Without waiving the 
objection, I'U let the witness 
respond. 
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the better half, I mean. 
That's Eastlake; what about Ashubula? 
I'm not sure about that. 
Unit 5. What don't you know about 

Ashubula that you do know about Eastlake 
that allows you to say that Eastlake would 
be in the better half, but you're not sure 
about Ashubula? 
I'm giving you my basic feeUng and in 

general, it seems that the overall fuel 
cost at Eastlake was lower than Ashubula 
in the past or numbers I may have seen. 
Now to the extent that Centerior would 

seU power in other jurisdictions to other 
customers, would Centerior expect its 
customersoa^pay for the emission 
allowance requirements associated with 
that power? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 
to relevance and speculative 
nature of the question. Without 
waiving the objection, I'U let 
the witness answer. 

I don't know what we would, you know. 
Do you know if the company has uken any 
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It could. I don't know. 
You suted before that you thought 

Ashubula's costs were above Eastlake's in 
the past, conect? 
Yeah, I'm not - once again, I'm not sure 

those were the exact words but — 
What about Centerior's other pbints. 

Bayshore and Avon Lake, I believe they 
were? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Avon Lake. 
Objection as to relevance. 
Without waiving the objection. 

I'm not sure. 
You're not sure about either one of them 

and where they compare in costs? 
Not really, no. 
Do you believe that in the world of more 

competition, that Centerior might be 
purchasing power from increasing the 
significance of purchase power from other 
sources? 
They could be. I don't know. 
If Centerior were to increase its 

purchases of power from other sources, 
would that affect the allowance 
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requirements of the Centerior system? 
If they did, it could affect the allowance 

requirements, yeah. 
So do you think that in preparing the 

supplemenul - a_20 year - in preparing 
a 20 year forecast of emission allowance 
requirements, that you would Uke into 
account the Ukely significance of 
increased purchases of power from outside 
the Centerior system? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
relevance. Without waiving the 
objection. 

That could be an unceruinty. Once again. 
I'm not sure what they look at. 
With the advent of competition, do you 

believe that it becomes more Ukely that 
Centerior wiU reduce utilization of its 
generating facilities? 
As I said earlier, I don't know. It could 

increase. I don't know. 
As to the higher cost of Centerior 

facilities as opposed to the system wide 
ones, looking at it system wide, just 
considering the higher cost of the 
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which C.E.I, might consider retiring coal 
fired units because costs were too high? 
There could be. 
To your knowledge, has C.E.I, considered 

such retirements of any of its coal fired 
generation facilities? 
My undeistanding is we are mothballing a 

unit at Avon Lake and at Ashubula C 
plant; ceruin units at Ashubula C plant. 

And is that because their costs were too 
high relative to the costs of other units 
and the system load? 
Yeah, I don't know the exact reason. A 

lot of it was age of units, is what I 
would guess. The age of the units. 
Was there a reduced need for those units? 
Not that I'm aware of, no. 
Were there - do you think there is any 

Ukelihood that additional coal fired 
units might be retired or subsuntially 
reduced in utilization in future years? 
As I said, and I keep saying, I don't 

know. They could increase, they could go 
down. I don't know. 
When you prepared the 1995 - when you 
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Centerior facilities, do you think it's 
more likely that they would increase their 
production level or decrease with the 
advent of competition? 
They could increa.se. I mean when I'm 

Ulking about this, I'm looking at, you 
know, thinking of historical costs, and 
those included, you know, some higher 
price fuel connacts that are ending or 
over with, so, you know, that's what I'm 
looking back at. As far as how it looks 
now, I'm not sure what would happen. 
Based on historical coal prices, and some 

escalation of those coal prices, do you 
think that the higher price - the higher 
cost Centerior units would face increased 
utilization or-decreased utilization with 
the advent of competition? 
I don't know. 
What factors might C.E.I, consider in 

determining whether or not to reduce 
utilization of a particular plant, coal 
fired plant? 
Toul cost, I would think. 
And would there be circumstances under 
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coordinated the 1995 Environmenul 
Planning Review, did the company look at 
the size of its emission allowance bank? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 
to relevance. Without waiving the 
objection, let the witness 
respond. 

I'm sure it was looked at, yes. 
And what were the factors considered in 

determining the appropriate emission 
allowance bank? 
I don't recaU. Rich Hoag had done that. 

And, you know, that's a question more 
appropriate to ask him. I don't remember. 
Do you recall whether outside experts or 

consultants were reuined to assist the 
company in evaluating its aUowance bank? 

MR. REGULINSKI: For the '95 
study we're stiU ulking about? 

MR. PERLIS: Yes. 
I don't remember. There could have been. 
Do you know how C.E.I.'s emission 

allowance bank compares to other coal 
fired utilities? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
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relevance. Without waiving the 
objection. 

No. 
Do you know what steps, if any, the 

company has Uk^n to re-evaluate its 
emission allowance bank since the January 
20, 1995 smdy? 
No, I don't recaU at this time and once 

again. Rich might be able to teU you all 
that. 
Which other individuals within the 

Centerior company are familiar with the 
allowance banking decisions in the 
company? 
Once again, that's a question Rich would 

ask - you'd be able to ask him. I'm not 
sure who he discusses that with. He is 
the allowance manager also of the 
corporation. 
Do you have any knowledge or view on 

whether C.E.I.'s bank in the first decade 
of phase two is greater or less than any 
other Ohio utility? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
relevance. Without waiving the 
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A 

Are there other people within the company 
who you think might be able to evaluate 
Centerior's emission allowance banking 
sttategies as compared to other utiUties' 
banking sttategies? 
Yeah, Rich might do it, I would think. 
Other than Mr. Hoag? 
I don't know of anyone else. 

MR. REGULINSKI: Can we go 
off the record for a moment. 
please? 

MR. PERLIS: Yes. 
. . . 

(Discussion off the record.) 

MR. PERLIS: We're back on 
the record. 

BY MR. PERLIS: | 
Q Do you have any knowledge or views as to 

whether C.E.I.'s emission allowance bank 
at the end of phase one would be 
significantly greater if the fuel 
switching that is recommended in the study 
is underuken as opposed to the continued 
buming of high sulfur coal at cunent 
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objection. 
No, I don't know, and I don't really have 

any view. 
Compared to any other utiUties east of 

the Mississippi River? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 

relevance. Without waiving the 
objection. 

No, I'm not sure. I've never seen a layed 
out projection for the utiUties of what 
their banks are in each year, at least 
that I can recall. 
Can you identify any factors that you 

think might justify C.E.I, having the 
largest bank of allowances of any phase 
one u t i l i t y ^ 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Assumes a feet not in evidence. 

Well, let's assume that that were the 
case. Can you imagine what the factors 
are that would cause C.E.I, to have among 
the largest banks of emission allowances? 
No, I can't identify them right now. And 

once again, I would think that would be a 
question Rich could answer. 
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leveU? 
No. What do you mean by views? I mean 

can you be more - I don't know. 
Do you believe that C.E.I. wiU have a 

significantly larger emission allowance 
bank at the end of phase one if as 
recommended in the Supplemenul Fuel 
Switching Smdy, C.E.I, switches to lower 
sulfur coal coals in place of the high 
sulfur coals that it's historically been 
using? 
Yeah, I don't know how to answer that. My 

thought would be whatever was in that 
smdy reflects the fuel switching. 
And I'm asking you whether you think that 

is a significant increase in the bank as a 
resuU of that fuel switching? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Compared to 
what the Commission has reviewed 
previously? Compared to what? 

MR. PERLIS: No, I'm asking 
for Mr. Kovach's characterization 
as to whether he views the bank 
increase as significant. 

I don't even recaU the numbers, but just 
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How much this effects that or not. 
I'm not ulking about the SIP limits. 

Let's just Ulk about the smdy, the 1996 
smdy. 

Doesn't the 4996 smdy show that the 
delivered cost of lower sulfur coal is 
higher than 6.0 coal? 
Yes. 
Those higher coste for purchasing the low 

and medium sulfur coal are incuned in the 
year in which you make the fuel switch; is 
that not conect? 
Yes. 
And the allowance - the increase in 

allowances that that provides for your 
bank, those allowances might not be used 
until some future year; is that not also 
conect? 
Might. I'm not sure, you know. 
To the extent the allowances were used in 

some fumre year, is there not a carrying 
cost, an implicit cost of funds incuned 
by the company to switch the fuel to build 
the bank? 
There could be a carrying cost. I'm not 
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be in a position to change back and fonh. 
if that's possible. 
So you want to make the comparison on a 

year by year basis rather than a five year 
or a ten year at a time basis? 
WeU, we want to position ourselves to be 

able to, you know, uke advanuge of any 
changes, if that's possible. 
So in some fumre year, if you find in the 

fumre year that the evaluated cost of the 
higher sulfur coal is cheaper than the 
evaluated cost of the lower sulfur coal. 
you would want to be able to purchase the 
higher sulfur coal? 
If possible, yeah. 
An when you're making the comparison of 

the evaluated costs of coal, you would 
like to make it as of the year in which 
you are purchasing the coal? 
I'm not sure I understand that one, what 

you were saying there. 
When you make your decision — let me 

rephrase the question. 
When you make the decision today as 

to whether or not you're going to fuel 
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familiar with it. I don't know what that 
is, and once again, maybe Mr. Hoag can 
answer that. 
The repon focuses on evaluated cost of 

coal. Would you please describe what 
evaluated cost, how it differs from 
delivered cost? 
For the terras of this repon, I believe 

evaluated cost was putting in an emission 
allowance adder. And, you know, doing BTU 
equivalents of all, you know, the 
different types of coals. 
And do you understand the repon's basic 

conclusion to be that if the fuel 
switch - if the evahuted cost of ftiel 
switching of the lower sulfur coal is 
lower thanlHe evaluated all-in cost of 
the higher sulfur coal, then the fuel 
switch should be made? 
Almost. I agree with that up to a point. 
What point don't you agree with it? 
As we suted in the repon, we also want 

to remain flexible to things that can 
happen. Therefore you don't - if you see 
a changing from year to year, we want to 
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switch, are you projecting the evaliuted 
cost against the evaluated cost today for 
high sulfur coal, or the evaluated cost in 
fumre years for the high sulfur coal? 
I'm not sure how to answer that. When 

we're using those projections, each year 
has its own projection and as fitr as the 
smdy, I think what was done and once 
again, you'd have to ask Rich what they 
looked at just for a 20 year period. Does 
that answer what you're asking? 
I'm not asking so much with respect to the 

smdy. I'm asking in terms of the 
planning process, should evaluated cost of 
coal, comparing the low sulfur option with 
the higher sulfur option today, are you 
comparing the evaliuted cost of the high 
sulfur coal or rather of the allowances 
using the today's allowance prices, or 
future years' allowance prices? 
Assuming I understand what you're asking. 

you would be using today's allowance 
prices; the most cunent allowance 
projection. 
When you increase the bank of allowances. 
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some of those allowances are going to be 
used in a fumre year, are they not? 
Yeah, I would assume. 
And the cost incuned to increase that 

bank was a cuneTit fuel cost. The higher 
fuel cost for the lower sulfur coal, the 
delivered fuel cost, than the higher 
sulfur coal, conect? 
If it was necessarily that case? 
Yes. 
Once again, Uke I said, I'm not sure it 

necessarily has to be that case. For this 
smdy it's that case, but when you 
actuaUy solicit bids we go outs and we 
get a whole range and they do not just 
faU in the order, so I mean I've said 
that numerous times now. 
For the allowances that are being banked 

and to be used in future years, wouldn't 
you consider the allowance prices in the 
fumre years to be the relevant factor in 
determining the evaluated cost of a high 
sulfur coal option rather than today's? 
WeU, we're going back to two questions 

before I think and I'm stiU not sure I 
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projection of future market prices of 
allowances? 
That's not my area but I'll say, yeah. I 

mean we would probably do it based on 
fumre projected prices but once again. 
you'd have to ask Rich. He's really the 
one doing that. 
So if today's emission allowance prices 

were less than present value terms, what 
you would expect allowances to be wonh in 
the fumre, or to cost in the fumre. 
should C.E.I, be making a decision to 
purchase allowances to build the bank? 
I'm - I don't know. I'm not sure. 
Would the decision be any different than 

the decision made to fuel switch to be 
able to build the bank? 
Yeah, it could be. I'm not sure. 
What factors might affect it? 
I don't know. 
Is the decision to buy an allowance any 

different in economic terms than the 
decision to incur additional delivered 
fuel costs today to obuin the benefits of 
an increased bank of allowances? 
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understood what you were ulking about. 
We have an allowance projection in 

each year, and you have a fuel projection 
in each year and you're going to use that 
projection in each year when you're 
evaluating that year. Is that what you're 
asking? I'm not -
No, I'm asking -
- understanding. 
I'm asking that if you think emission 

allowance prices in the future are going 
to be very expensive compared to today. 
that is, they increase at a faster rate 
than your coal prices are increasing. 
would that affect the way you evaluate the 
coal optioQSjoday? 
The only way I can answer that, it could 

be because if that's what you truly 
believe that it was going to escalate at a 
much faster rate than it is, then that 
would be in your base projection and 
that's what you'd be working off of. 
Do you believe that C.E.I, should be 

making decisions on whether it purchases 
or sells emission allowances based on its 
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Once again, I'm not exactly sure how it's 
tteated economically, so I don't know. 
You've previously agreed that there may be 

under some circumsunces higher delivered 
fuel costs for the medium and low sulfur 
coal. 
Could be. 
Than for the higher sulfur coal. 
Right. 
And that incurring that cost allows you to 

have a greater bank of allowances for use 
in the fumre, conect? 
Mm-hmm. 
Another way to get a greater bank of 

allowances for use in the future is to 
purchase allowances in the market? 
Right. 
Economically, is the decision to buy an 

allowance versus the decision to incur 
increased delivered fuel costs any 
different economically? 
I don't know. It could be. I don't know 

what the - let me say, I'm not toully 
familiar. I don't have memorized what the 
recovery mechanism is for allowances and 
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how that's treated. If you're just asking 
pure analysis wise, it could be, but, you 
know. 
In a world in which your rates were not 

regulated as a cost of service matter, 
would there be any difference economically 
between buying an allowance to increase 
your bank or incurring higher delivered 
mel costs to increase your bank? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
relevance. Without waiving the 
objection. 

I don't know. There could be. 
What might that be? What differences? 
You know, I don't know what the situation 

is. 
Well, earlier you said that the one 

difference you could imagine was the way 
in which the allowance purchases were 
tteated for rate purposes, and whether 
that was different from the delivered fuel 
costs. Assuming we're not in a regulated 
environment, what difference might there 
be? 
I don't know what kind of deal you could 
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and Ashubula separately, although the 
answer may be the same. 

Does that apply both for high sulfur 
coal as well as low and medium sulfur 
coal? That there are no longer term low 
or medium sulfur coal contracts that will 
be in place after December 31, 1997? 
Unless I'm forgetting something, there's 

nothing at Ashubula that I know of. 
And same with the Eastlake? 
There's no conttact for Eastlake plant. 

no. 
And when you say Ashubula, does that 

refer to 5 through 9 or just unit 5? 
I'm thinking in terms of 5. 
Right. With respect to Ashubula units 6 

through 9, those are phase two units. 
conect? 
Yeah. 
Do they have any long term coal conttacts? 
No, not that I'm aware of. 
They, too, have no in place conttacts that 

WiU be in effect after December 31, 1997? 
No. 
Okay. Thank you. Do you know if 
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have worked out. If you're just giving 
cash for each right up at the same time. 
there probably won't be a difference. 

MR. PERLIS: Now I think 
we're pretty close to 12:25, 
probably a little past it, so 
perhaps this is when we should 
Uke a break. 

MR. REGULINSKI: Off the 
record, please. 

(Luncheon recess had.) 

MR. PERLIS: We're resuming 
the deposition of Mr. Kovach. 

^IHE WITNESS: Kovach. 
[17] BY MR. PERLIS: | 
[18] 
[19] 
[20] 
[21] 
[22] 
[23] 
[24] 
[25] 

Q I want to retum to one question that I 
asked son of at the outset this moming. 
but I want to make sure I asked the right 
question and for the answer that you gave. 

You suted earlier that Centerior has 
no coal conttacts for Eastlake or 
Ashubula 5 after December 31, 1997. That 
is for - I'm asking this now for Eastlake 
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Centerior has any formal guidelines 
goveming when it would purchase or seU 
emission aUowances? 
I believe we have guidelines, but once 

again, that's Rich's area and, you know, 
he would be able to let you know if we 
have them and what they are. 
But for the environmenul compliance 

planning process that's before the Public 
Utilities Commission, does Centerior have 
guidelines as to determining when you will 
switch fuels from one grade of sulfur to 
another? 
Are you asking does the PUCO have 

guideUnes? 
No, does Centerior have guidelines for 

criteria for switching fuel other than 
what's been presented in the Supplemenul ' 
Fuel Switching Smdy to PUCO? 
Other than what's been presented, our 

guideline is to make sure we're complying 
with clean air in the most effective way. 
Assuming you are complying with the clean 

air, I'm presuming there would be multiple 
ways you could comply with SIP limits with 
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different mixes of coal at different 
units; is that not conect? 
You could. 
Okay. Does Centerior have any written 

guidelines that govern the fuel choices. 
fuel switching, if you will, fuel 
switching opportunities, if you will, that 
are aU within the SIP guidelines? 
We have a procedures manual which, you 

know, outlines some things but baacally 
the guideline is you procure the most cost 
effective manner looking at an evaluated 
cost for coal. 
And by evaluated cost, you mean what for 

in this context? 
Evaluated, the way I look at it can mean a 

couple things and you would probably want 
to evaluate things a couple different 
ways. 

Like in the context of this repon. 
we said earlier that the uble of 
evaluated cost took into account luder 
evaluated cost for BTU evaluation. When 
you actually get into bids, you actually 
have ash, you might throw in grind, you 
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what is our philosophy and what should it 
be. 
Do I uke it from the fact that Eastlake 

and Ashubula units have no conttacts 
going out after December 31, 1997, and 
today being April, 1997, that the 
company's philosophy now is disfovoring 
longer term commitments and is more 
focussed on spot opportunities in the coal 
market? 
I don't know if that would be a sole 

conclusion. 
Has there ever been a time in the past 

that you're aware of when either the 
Eastlake plant or any of the units at 
Ashubula have been without coal conttacts 
covering at least a portion of their needs 
that extend for more than 12 months? 
I don't know that. I'm not aware of that. 

you know. 
Why is it that the company is - seems to 

be focussed more now on spot purchasing of 
coal rather than longer term commitments? 
WeU, as I suted earlier, with the 

upcoming merger, there could be more 
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might throw in moisture or numerous other 
things. 
And do criteria - does Centerior have 

criteria guidelines or manuals that 
provide criteria for determining whether 
you wiU enter into long term versus shon 
term versus spot conttacts for your 
purchasing sttategy? 
That's one of the things we're looking at 

now as far as -
My question is do you have those written 

guidelines now. 
I'm not sure if there's written 

guidelines. 
You've ^>oke in answer to a previous 

question about a procedural manual. Do 
you have a procedural manual that relates 
to criteria for determining whether you 
purchase coal on a shon, medium or long 
term horizon or a spot basis? 
Yeah, I'm not exactly sure what's in that 

manual as I suted earUer. I mean I 
don't recall exactly what's in there but 
that's one of the things that we're 
looking at it right now is re-evaluating 
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oppormnity, we feel. 
Do you feel that that merger will be 

consummated before January 1, 1998? 
Oh, I have no idea. I don't know. 
If you were to go into the market for spot 

bids for coal, starting for the year or 
for the first quaner in 1998, when would 
you anticipate having to issue those 
RFP's? 
We were thinking sometime in July, June 

July, timeframe. 
Do you believe that the merger wiU be 

approved by aU regulatory authorities and 
in effect by June or July, 1997? 
I have no idea. I don't know. 
Has anyone in the company given you any 

reason to believe that the merger will be 
consummated by June or July, 1997? 
Not that I can recaU. 
So does that mean then that you would 

expect to have to go out for bid as 
Centerior alone without First Energy or 
Ohio Edison? 
That's a possibility, yes. 
Is it fair to say that it's a sttong 
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UkeUhood? 
It could be. 
Could be a sttong Ukelihood? 
Yeah. 
Do you know tITe sums of the merger 

application at this time? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 

relevance. Without waiving the 
objection. 

No. 
If you were to go out on your own, is 

there any way that the buying power of 
Ohio Edison and Centerior could be 
combined before the merger becomes 
effective? 
I have no idea. I don't know. 
Has Centerior ever purchased cxial with 

another company? 
Not that I have knowledge of. 
Do you think -
You mean in combination with Uke another? 
Right. 
A joint? 
Joint purchase of coal. 
Not that I recaU, no. 
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to be focussed on a shon term horizon a 
spot horizon for coal? 
I guess you said there's - can you repeat 

what you said? 
Yes, let me rephrase it. That was a very 

lengthy sutement in the form of a 
question. 

When I asked earlier as to what the 
basis was for the company's decision — 
seeming decision to focus on spot 
purchases of coal rather than longer term 
purchases, the first factor you mentioned 
was the possibility of the merger, the 
First Energy merger providing 
oppormnities. 

In subsequent questioning, you suted 
that it could be substantially likely that 
the merger wiU not occur by the time that 
you have to prepare your first bid. 

That being so, what other factors are 
there that would cause the soliciution to 
be a shon, spot term spot soliciution? 
Increased flexibility. 
What do you mean by increased flexibility? 
Having more options available to you 
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Have you ever gotten counseled that that 
would be legal for the company to combine 
with another? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
MR. PERLIS: I'm simply 

asking if he's received advice of 
counsel on this, not what the 
counsel's advice is. 

MR. REGULINSKI: With that 
clarification, HI permit the 
question. 

No, I've never ulked to anybody about 
that. 
So let me retum then to the question as 

to why the company is more focussed on 
shon term.purchases, q>ot purchases in 
particuUtt in one year horizons, rather 
than longer term horizons for the purchase 
of coal. 

You suted that it was in pan 
because of the First Energy merger. It 
now seems it could be substantially likely 
that that merger won't occur. 

Let's assume it doesn't occur. What 
other reasons would there be for Centerior 
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instead of being conttacted long term. 
And what would the advanuge of that those 

options be? What's the advanuges of the 
flexibility? 
You could be more responsive to changing 

market conditions. 
More responsive in terms of making 

commitments of cash that's required to 
purchase the coal? 

Yeah, that definitely could be one thing. 
yes. 
And why in the past do you think the 

company may have thought that conditions 
were appropriate for longer term purchases 
of coal? 
I don't know. 
Can you imagine any factors why Centerior 

might in the fumre want to look at longer 
term purchases of coal? 
None come right to mind, but I'm sure 

there are some reasons. 
And why is it advanugeous to the company 

not to have to make long term commitments 
of cash? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
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relevance. Can you tie that into 
coal buming? 

Yes, to make commitments of cash for the 
purchase of coal. 
If there's a decrease in coal prices, then 

you don't Uke advanuge of that. 
And has there been volatility in coal 

prices in the recent past? 
Yes, there seems to be. 
Do you have reason to believe that there 

will remain volatiUty in the coal price 
markets in the future? 
It could. 
By volatility, do you mean that prices 

tend to go up and down? 
WeU, up and down, or go down while your 

conttact price suys up. 
Mm-hmm. 
Things along those lines. 
Now, the company is regularly making 

forecasts of fumre coal prices. 
WeU, what do you mean regularly? 
Does the company make forecasts for 

intemal planning purposes, fuel 
purchasing decisions, make forecasts of 
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In your experience, would you say that the 
projections are accurate at least within 
10 or IS percent when you're looking at 
only a one year or two year horizon ahead 
of you? 
One year, I don't know. I don't know. 
Is there reason to believe though that 

sometimes the forecasts - the market 
changes in a way that the forecasts didn't 
anticipate? 
Oh, sure. 
Sure. Now are you aware of - you said 

you were not aware of any written 
guidelines on when to purchase or sell 
emission allowances. You're not aware if 
the company has any such guidelines? 
I said we could. You'd have to ask Rich 

about that. 
Right. Now, if the company were to 

develop such guidelines or evaluate the 
guidelines that it has, would you expect 
those guidelines to Uke into account 
volatility in emission allowance prices? 
Yeah, it could be one consideration. 
Would you expect it also to Uke into 
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fumre coal prices? 
Yes. 
Does the company rely on outside 

consultants to do that on a regular basis? 
For input, yes. 
And one such consultant's forecast was 

utilized in the 1996 supplemenul smdy; 
is that conect? 
Yes, as I suted, EVA. 
Were there other aUowance - I mean other 

coal price projections made by outside 
consultants that were avaUable but not 
used in the Supplemenul Fuel Switching 
Smdy? 
There could have been, yeah. 
With respect to those projections that are 

made, I assume the company's been 
making - having projections made for a 
number of years now. 
Yes. 
Do you ttack the accuracy of the 

projections to what actually turns out to 
be the case and how accurate the 
projections tend to be? 
I have never done that, no. 
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account the reliability, the ability of 
forecasts to actuaUy ttack what happens 
in the fumre? 
That could also be something, yes. 
When the company makes fuel purchasing 

decisions, does it ever explicitly uke 
into account the company's cost of capiul 
for incurring higher cosu today for some 
future benefit? 
Not that I'm aware of. 
Do you know what the company's cost of 

capiul is? 
I'm not sure. I think it's about 10 

percent. 
Do you know if Centerior enters into any 

long term power sale agreements? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 

Relevance. 
MR. PERLIS: Because power of 

sale agreements depend upon the 
cost of fuel, I want to see 
whether or not there is a 
consistency in the planning 
horizon as utilized by the 
company. 
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MR. REGULINSKI: I'll allow 
the question. 

We have a wholesale power section, so 
hopefully they are pursuing long term 
sales. I don't know what any of them are 
though. 
Do you know if the company has any long 

term - you don't know if the company has 
any long term power -
I think we have some. I don't know what 

they are though. I think there's a 
couple. 
And when the company considers underuking 

long term power sale commitments, is the 
Fuel Department consulted as to the 
ability or benefits of such commitments 
based on the fuel price projections? 
I don't undersUnd the question. 
When the company considers underuking 

long term power purchases or power sales. 
is the Fuel Department and are you as the 
Fuel Manager consulted so as to bring to 
bear on that power sale or power purchase 
decision expertise that you have regarding 
directions of coal markets? 
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October 1, 1996? 
Absolutely. 
Since of that time, whenever it was, has 

there been any subsequent EVA smdy 
commissioned? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Relevance. 

MR. PERLIS: Let me finish 
the question. 

MR. REGULINSKI: I know, I'll 
let you finish the question. 

Have there been any subsequent EVA 
forecasu commissioned with respect to 
determine or to predict crisis in the coal 
markets in 1998? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Same 
objection. Without waiving, the 
wimess can answer. 

Yeah, I'm not sure. There might be 
another projection. If there is, I'm not 
using it, or we're not using it for 
anything. 
Why would you not be using it? 
If there is one, I'm not sure when we 

would have gotten it at that time. 
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We're consulted as far as providing the 
fuel forecasts that is used in the 
analysis and it's really Rich's section 
that does the analysis. 
Your section provides the fuel forecasts? 
Forecasts, yes. 
When you provide those fuel forecasts. 

what do you base those fuel forecasts on? 
Same things as we've said before. Usually 

what we would use is the EVA projection 
with some minor changes to it. 
Has EVA made a coal price projection for 

1998? 
Well, in terms of the forecasts we have. 

it does have a projection for 1998. Is 
that what yau mean? Is there a brand new 
forecast? 
When was that EVA forecast made that 

conuins the projection of 1998? 
You asked that earlier. I'm not sure what 

the date of that forecast was. 
That's the same EVA forecast that was 

utilized in the October 1, 1996 smdy? 
Yeah, to the best of my knowledge. 
So that forecast had to have pre-dated 

PAGE 108 
[1] Q 
[2] 
(31 
[4] 
[5] 
[6] 
[7] A 
[8] 
[9] 
[10] 
[11] 
[12] Q 
[13] 
[14] 
[15] 
[16] 
[17] 
[18] 
[19] 
[20] 
[21] 
[22] 
[23] 
[24] 
[25] 

So you're going forward, your department's 
going forward in iu forecasu in 
evaluation for the bids, the RFP that 
might be put out in Jtme or July without 
any EVA projection that's more recent than 
the one that was utilized in the smdy? 
I didn't say that. I said there could be. 

you know. If we do that in July, we would 
pursue something. If we don't have 
something newer, we would pursue something 
for that. 
Can you teU me again why, if at all, you 

think the decision to bank allowances for 
the long term is different from the 
decision to purchase fuel for the long 
term? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Asked and answered. Is there 
something about his answer you 
didn't understand, or we need to 
go over this again? 

MR. PERLIS: I think I should 
be given a leeway. I don't 
believe I asked the question 
exactly this way, and we're son 
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of getting close to summing up 
right now. 

MR. REGULINSKI: Okay. Go 
ahead. 

Could you repeat that? 
Yeah, is there any reason why you believe 

that the decision to bank allowances over 
the long term should be any different than 
the decision, the criteria used for making 
a decision to purchase coal over the long 
term? 
I have no reasons I can give you right 

now. 
So that reasons of volatiUty and inherent 

unreliability of forecasts might equally 
apply to allowance prices as they do to 
coal prices? 
It could, yeah. 
And the flexibility that is much wanted by 

you for coal could exist just as much for 
banking allowances? 
It could. 
Do you beUeve that it's possible within 

three to five years that Centerior Energy 
or First Energy, if the merger goes 
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A It was a little different set up because 
Rich was in my section at that time so he 
basically did all that, kind of as an 
independent. Once again you can ask him 
for more deuils on how it went and then 
when I left, he just mainuined aU the 
responsibilities and so it was more at a 
manager level when Rich took over. 

Q Was there a reason why one person was now 
being asked to Uke on multiple 
responsibilities that had been shared by 
different people in the prior regime? 

A We're aU being asked to u k e on more 
responsibility the way I see it. Yeah, I 
don't know. There's less people and the 
same amount of work. 

O Why are there less people and the same 
amount of work? 

A It just seems Uke there's less people. 
Q Has the company been trying to reduce the 

number of managerial employees relative to 
the work load? 

A I'm just looking at relative sutistics. 
I think about four or five years ago we 
had 10,000 employees and we're down to 
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through - let's assume the merger goes 
through - that if the merger goes 
through, is there any possibiUty in your 
mind that the generation and distribution 
functions of the company would be 
effectively disaggregated? 
That could, yeah, that could happen with 

or without a merger, I would assume. 
Do you think there's some possibility that 

if there were no merger, Centerior would 
not be in the generation business three to 
five years from now? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
relevance. Without waiving, the 
wimess can answer. 

Well, I woMld say, no, we would always be 
in the generation business, but I mean I 
don't know that. 
Can I ask you who replaced you in your 

position in power planning as Manager of 
Resource Planning, I think you caUed it? 
That's right, yeah. Rich Hoag. 
So when you were in that position, you 

didn't have responsibility over aUowance 
banking decisions, and pbuining? 
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6,200 now. 
Q So is it fair to say that you're all 

spread a little thinner now than you were 
before? 

A You could say that. 
Q And the size of the suff in the Fuel 

Planning and Supply area of the firm, has 
that similarly undergone a change where 
before, there used to be several people 
and now there are fewer people doing the 
work? 

A Seems that there - I don't know that far 
in the future, but seems it's about the 
same level as it was before. 

Q I've seen reference in your earlier 
depositions to Mr. Salowitz and Mr. Fink. 

A Mm-hmm. 
Q Do you perform work that each of those ' 

gentlemen used to do? 
A I could. I mean basically Frank would be 

analogous to Mr. Salowitz and Fink. Yeah, 
I would be performing a lot of those 
duties. 

Q And how much experience did you have 
buying coat before you assumed this 
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position? 
Buying coal, I had no experience buying 

coal. 
And Mr. Fink bad quite a number of years 

buying experience buying coal. 
I'm not aware of his experience. I 

couldn't tell you. 
Are there other people in your department 

junior to you who have extensive 
experience ui buying coal? 
Basically, everyone in our department has 

extensive experience buying coal. 
Do they have extensive experience in 

preparing projections of coal prices? 
Some of them do, yes. 
Who would some of those individuals be? 
Well, as I relayed earlier, Joe Lang was 

the one that did this, and I think he 
would be the one that has the most 
experience as far as putting together 
forecasts. 
Do you believe you had more or less 

experience than Mr. Fink in coal 
purchasing? 
I honestly don't know. I said I don't 
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I don't recall. 
Do you have any idea what the - how EVA 

goes about forecasting coal prices? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
MR. PERLIS: I'm not quite 

sure what the grounds for the 
objection is. 

MR. REGULINSKI: This witness 
doesn't work for EVA. It's a 
forecast supplied by an outside 
consultant. I don't know if -
I'm ceruin this wimess isn't 
competent to testify as to EVA's 
actions nor is it relevant to this 
proceeding. 

MR. PERLIS: He hires them. 
he oversees them. He has some 
ability to comment upon what he 
knows about EVA's basis. 

MR. REGULINSKI: They're also 
a nationally recognized consulting 
firm. 

MR. PERLIS: I don't dispute 
that. I'm just asking this 
individual management employee 
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know what his experience was at fuel 
before he came there. 
Do you know if other utilities have 

similarly inexperienced coal buyers 
managing their fuel departments? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
relevance. 

MR. PERLIS: The wimess 
shook his head saying no. If you 
just give me a moment, I'U see if 
I have anything else. 

(Shon recess had.) 

MR. PERLIS: I do have 
anotbsr question. 

Earlier after the lunch break, I asked you 
whether EVA had conducted a forecast 
subsequent to the one that was relied upon 
in the 1996 smdy. 
Mm-hmm. 
With respect to the EVA forecast that was 

relied upon in this smdy, do you recall 
whether it provides projections of spot 
coal prices for 1997, 1998, and 1999? 
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Q 

A 

Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 

what his knowledge is of EVA's 
basis for their fuel price 
projections. 

MR. REGULINSKI: I'll allow 
the question. 

I do not know their exact basis for their 
fuel price projections. 
If you were going to project fuel prices. 

what would you look at? 
Meaning if I was a consultant, what would 

I look at? 
No, in your capacity as signing off on the 

company's fuel price projections, do you 
just automatically send down the road 
whatever EVA says? 
No. 
You exercise some independent judgments 

along with aU the other individuaU Uke 
Mr. I.ang and others within your company in 
your department. 
Mm-hmm. 
As you exercise that judgment, what are 

the factors that you look at for making 
coal projections? 
WeU, I would look at coal publications 
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A 
Q 
A 
Q 

A 

Q 

that give you some indication of what some 
pricing is. Basically, you could look at 
some of your past soliciutions, Ulking 
to people, you know. 
When you received the results of the 1996 

soliciution for fourth quaner 1997 of 
coal - let me stan that question over 
again, please. 

I don't recaU the date for when you 
issued your RFP, but with respect to the 
RFP that you issued for founh quaner. 
'97 coal deliveries, what forecasts did 
you have in you ptace for coal in that 
period? As you went about setting the 
RFP, what coal price forecasts did you 
have or did you rely upon? 
We were using this EVA forecast. 
The same EVA one that's in the 19% smdy? 
Yeah, that I recall, yeah. 
And as you evaluated - did you evaltute 

the results of the RFP and compare them to 
that coal price forecast? 
That may have been done. I did not do 

that myself, no. 
Do you have any knowledge as to whether or 
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A 

Q 
A 
Q 
A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 
A 
Q 

me if for asking. Bear with me if I ask 
it a second time. 

Do you know what the embedded 
ttansporution costs are that were assumed 
for purposes of the delivered cost of coal 
in the 1996 smdy? 
Yeah, you did ask me that before and I 

said I wasn't sure exactly what was used 
in there. 

You have some rough sense of it? 
Of the exact numbers? No. 
Yeah. 
I don't. 
Do you know whether it's ten dollars a 

ton, or five dollars a ton? 
No. 
Do you know whether the raU 

ttansporution cosu for unit 5 at 
Ashubula is different from the Eastlake 
plant? 
My recollection is it's different, yeah. 
How much? 
I don't know. I know it's different. 
What about the difference between 

Ashubula 5 and Ashubula units 6 to 9, is 
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 
Q 

not the prices for the winning bidders 
came in above, below or right at what EVA 
forecasted for 1997 prices to be? 
I looked at that. I don't recaU - no, I 

don't recaU at this time; don't know. 
Is that something that you would consider 

an important evaluation to make as you go 
forward into the next RFP bid process? 
Yeah, yes, to look at that in handling 

that. 
And your knowledge and your expertise and 

the expertise in your whole department. 
are there reasons that you have to believe 
that coal prices may be going down for the 
'98 bid compared to where they are for 
year '97 bWJ. 
I don't know. They could be going down 

and they could be going up. I don't know. 
Do you have any reason to believe that 

whatever differential there is between the 
high sulfur coal and the medium and lower 
sulfur coals, that that differential wiU 
either widen or nanow? 
No, no, nothing that comes to mind. 
I think I asked this before, but forgive 
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there any difference in the tran^Kirution 
costs for those uniu? 

A I would say, yeah, because Ashubula 5 
right now is rail or truck, and I thought 
C plant is aU truck, so just in that fact 
itself. 

Q I'm sorry, which plant is aU truck? 
A You said the smaUer, right? C plant is 

truck delivery. 
Q Is that the same thing as Ashubula units 

6 through 9? 
A Yeah. We caU that C plant. 
Q C plant as in the letter C? 
A Yeah. 
Q So Ashubula C is all truck and not rail? 
A Mm-hmm. 
Q And so you would expect that 

tranq>orUtion cosu for that anangement 
to be different than for the raU? 

A Right. 
Q And Ashubula unit 5 is a mixnue of truck 

and rail? 
A It's basicaUy rail. I think it could be 

either though. 
Q Looking back at Uble 2 from the 
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confidential version -
MR. PERLIS: Can we go off 

the record for a minute, please? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Yes. 

. . _ 
(Shon recess had.) 

. . . 
MR. PERLIS: We're back on 

the record now. 
Tuming your attention to Uble 2, revised 

that was provided as OVCC-27 in the 
document production, we're going to try to 
ask this question in a way that doesn't 
require you to disclose any confidential 
information on that Uble. 

So please, in giving your responses. 
keep that in mind. Looking at the bottom 
of the page, the foomote that is 
associated with the column for the 
delivered coal cost plus S02 cost for a 
3.6 pound coal blend, or mix, I'm not -
the foomote says, "This is based on 
alternating bum at 58 percent 2.5 pound 
coal, 16 percent 3.8 pound coal, and 26 
percent 6.0 pound coal." 
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necessary applicability in the fumre? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 

The difficulty with responding to 
that question is that Mr. Kovach 
has only before him the uble that 
was provided to OVCC counsel under 
number 27, and not the question 
nor the answer for OVCC number 27, 
and I'm wondering if counsel 
wouldn't mind, I can show it to 
him now the question for OVCC 
number 27 and the response to the 
Ohio Valley Coal Company 
Intenogatory number 27. 

MR. PERLIS: WeU, I'm not 
asking the question that was put 
in the question 27 of this 
wimess. I'm asking a different 
question. 

MR. REGULINSKI: Yeah, I 
thought it was the same question. 

MR. PERLIS: No. I'm asking 
a very different question. 

MR. REGULINSKI: Could you 
resute the question for me. 
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A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

And I u k e it from the next sentence 
in this foomote that these percenuges 
are based on historical 1996 mixtures at 
Eastlake of coal of these different 
percenuges; is that conect? 
Yeah, as far as - yeah, as far as I know. 
And those coals were purchased in 1996 

under conttacu that will not be in effect 
after September 30, 1997; is that conect? 

Yeah, as far as I know, yeah. 
So, going forward, there's no reason to 

believe that these percentages wiU 
necessarily be the same in future years 
when you do your spot purchases, wiU 
they? 
No, could be higher or lower. 
For e a c h ^ t h e three componenu, but for 

what the PUC decision might be? 
Right. 
They could be higher or lower for any of 

the sulfur content of coal? 
(Indicating yes.) 
So what is the utility of presenting a 

projection as your sole projection that's 
based on percenuges that have no 
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please? 1 
MR. PERLIS: Right. 1 

BY MR. PERLIS: | 
Q 

A 
0 
A 

Q 
A 

Q 

My question is since these petcenuge 
allocations of coal between 2.5, 3.8 and 
6.0 coal are not necessarily going to be 
applicable in the future as you purchase 
on a spot basis, why should they have been 
used in any smdy of evaliuted coal cosu? 

Is that it? 
Yes, that's the question. 
Okay. There's an infinite - like you 

said earlier, I think infinite number of 
combinations that could make up this. 
And in your -
And I'm not sure any one in particular is 

relevant. My understanding is the reason 
why this was done is because we were asked 
to produce an example and one was 
produced. 
Well, looking at the question 27 now that 

your counsel called to your attention 
before, that question doesn't ask for the 
1996 historical allocations of coal, does 
it? 
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MR. REGULINSKI: WeU, the 
question wiU speak for itself. 
Can you formulate another 
question? 

On its face, thaf s all I'm asking since I 
don't want to read the question for the 
record, on iu face does question 27 refer 
to 1996 historical experience of -
My interpreution is yes, it does because 

it asks for a continued use. To me that 
implies doing what's going on right now so 
whoever answered this probably would have 
done it the same way. I would have done 
it the same way. 
I see. So when the company makes its 

recommendation in the Supplemenul Fuel 
Switching Smdy that it prefers to have 
the flexibiUty of the fuel switch rather 
than continued buming of high sulfur Ohio 
coal, that judgment is simply that you 
prefer the flexibility over the cunent 
allocation in the fumre of 6.0 versus 2.5 
and 3.8 pound coal? 

MR. REGULINSKI: That's 
a long question. Can we have that 
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combinations of things that could have 
been done. This was one way to do it and 
that's how Rich's group chose to do that. 
Could another combination of continued use 

of Ohio high sulfur coal been aU 6.0 and 
3.8 pound coal and some percenuge to meet 
the SIP limiution? 
It could have been. 
And as far as you know, there's no 

environmenul reason why Centerior 
couldn't limit itself to 3.8 and 6.0 pound 
coal and meet the SIP limiutions? 
Not that I know of that are in the right 

combination to make sure you're always 
mainuined under that SIP limit. 
And when you received the bids for the 

founh quaner 1997, were they in the 
allocation of 58 percent 2.5 coal, 16 
percent 3.8 pound coal and 28 percent 6.0 
pound coal? 
I don't know what allocations they were. 

We were just looking at first evaluating 
lowest evaluated cost and then looking at 
the SIP limit. 
Starting then on Uble - the third page 
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question read? 

(Record read.) 

I'm not sure I would agree exactly with 
what you said. What we said in the 
Supplemenul Fuel Switching Smdy is that 
we wanted to remain responsive and 
flexible, and therefore different 
combinations of coal, sulfur content 
buiKhed with emission aUowaitccs and what 
appears in the smdy could be burned. 
Right, and the company concluded that the 

flexibiUty from doing the fuel switching 
was better than the continued use of coal 
at the htstOQf 1996 allocation 
percentages. Isn't that in effect saying 
that the substance of the req>onse to 
question 27 is? 
No, I don't know. I have to read this. 

Once again, I'd say, I thought this 
was done because of what was asked, you 
know. 
WeU, do you think -
There could be a lot of different 
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that OVCC-14, keeping in mind that I'd 
like to keep this on the record, and not 
require you to disclose any confidential 
number. 

If I should misq>eak, we'U uke it 
off the record, or put it in the 
confidential portion of the record. 

As you look down OVCC-14 and the 
Eastlake 1997 coal bids, you say that they 
were put in order of evaluated cost. 
meaning that the lowest cost comes at the 
top. 

As you look at those evaluated cosu. 
do you see any bids or combination of bids 
that result in allocations similar to 58 
percent 2.5, 16 percent 3.8 and 26 percent 
6.0? 
I don't know. Something could come up to 

that. We didn't look at that when we did 
this to come up with this. 
Do you know how many, if any, of these 

bids the company intends to proceed to 
conttact with? 
Yes, some of them. I don't know the exact 

ones but some of them. 
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[ 1] know, my predecessor most Ukely would 
[ 2] have had the conuct or whenever the 
( 3] projection was developed. 
[ 4] 0 But do you know that just in general. 
[ 5] whether there are separate coal price 
[ 6] forecasts done for spot versus long 
[ 7] term -
[ 8] A No. 
[9] Q - conttacts? 
[10] A I don't know. I would think there could 
[ll] easily be, but I haven't used any. 
[12] MS. MOONEY: Okay. That's 
[13] all I have right now. Thank you. 
[14] MR. REGULINSKY: Ut's Uke a 
[15] shon break before we sun with 
[16] Mr. Hoag. 
[17] 
[18] 
[19] 
[20] MICHAEL KOVACH 
[21] (Deposition concluded. 
[22] Signamre not waived.) 
[23] 
[24] 
[25] 
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) 
COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA ) 

I, Ellen A. Hancik, a Notary Public 
within and for the Sute aforesaid, duly 
commissioned and qualified, do hereby certify 
that the above-named MICHAEL KOVACH, was by 
me, before the giving of his deposition, first 
duly swom to testify the truth, the whole 
troth, and nothing but the troth; that the 
deposition as above set forth was reduced to 
writing by me by means of stenotype, and was 
later ttanscribed into typewriting under my 
direction; that said deposition was Uken in 
aU respecu pursuant to the stipulations of 
counsel herein conuined, and was completed 
without adjournment; that the foregoing is the 
deposition given at said time and place by said 
MICHAEL KOVACH; that I am not a relative or 
attomey of either party or otherwise interested 
in the event of this action. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my 
hand and seal of office, at Cleveland, Ohio, this 
9th day of April, A.D., 1997. 

Ellen A. Hancik, RPR, Notary PubUc 
My commission expires: 2/10/98 
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FRANK R. STEAD, of lawful age. 
called by the Ohio Valley Coal Company, 

for the purpose of testimony in this 
matter, being by me first duly swom. 
as hereinafter said as follows: 

MR. WEISSMAN: Mr. Stead, by 
way of inttoducrion, my name is 
Andy Weissman. I'm an attorney 
with the lawfirra of Dickstein, 
Shapiro in Washington, D.C. 

I'm here representing Ohio 
Valley Coal Company in connection 
with the present matter before the 
Public Utilities Commission of 
Ohio, and what I'd like to do this 
morning is ask you what I expect 
will be a relatively small number 
of questions peruining to the 
company's Environmenul Compliance 
Plan, and the role that you may 
have performed in connection with 
developing that plan, and some of 
the assumptions that were used in 
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the company's analysis. 
. . . 

EXAMINATION OF FRANK R. STEAD 
BY MR. WEISSMAN: | 
Q 

A 

Q 
A 
Q 

A 

Q 

A 

With that, with that general background. 
can you please sute for the record what 
your cunent position is with the company? 
My cunent position is the Director of the 

Supply Department. 
And when did you assume that position? 
December of 1995. 
Could you describe - just describe 

briefly for the record what the scope of 
your responsibilities are in that 
position? 
In that responsible area, I'm responsible 

for the purchase of materials, and 
services and fuel for Centerior Energy 
Companies which are Cleveland Electric and 
Toledo Edison. 
How many individuals repon directly to 

you in that position? 
The department consisu of about 236 

individuals doing supply chain activities. 
you know, covering entire scope of supply 

Robert J . Rua ft Associates 



Robert J. Roa & Associates 

PAGE 13 
[1] 
[21 
[3] 
[4] 
[5] 
[6] 
[7] 
[8] 
[9] 
[10] 
[11] 
[12] 
[13] 
[14] 
[151 
[16] 
[17] 
[18] 
[19] 
[20] 
[21] 
[22] 
[23] 
[24] 
[25] 

A 
0 

A 

Q 

A 
Q 

A 

Q 

A 

determination was made as to whether to 
engage in additional fuel switching at 
either Eastlake or Ashubula? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 
to relevancy, but I'U let the 
wimess answer. 

I would expect that they would be. 
Why? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Same 
objection, if you can answer. 

I would think that the purchasing 
individuals might have infonnation that 
might be relevant to the smdy. 
What son of infoimation might they have 

that might be relevant? 
Projections of cost of fuel. 
Is that the only mformation that would be 

relevant from your perspective? 
That's the only one that comes to mind. 

yes. 
The - do you have any opinion as to what 

long term might be the appropriate fuel 
procurement strategy for either Eastlake 
or AshubuU? 
Yes, I do. 
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a long term basis at either Eastlake or 
Ashubula, or any of the other company's 
generating units? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Let me have 
the question re-read, please. 

. . . 
(Record read.) 

MR. REGULINSKI: General 
objection to other units and then 
ask to clarify what you mean by 
long term basis. 

BY MR. WEISSMAN: 
Q Let me ask another question as a predicate 

to that. 
Mr. Stead, do you believe it's 

appropriate for the company to try to 
develop a long range plan as to what fuel 
or fuels it might use at each of its 
generating uniu? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 
to each of iu generating uniu. 
Go ahead and answer if you like or 
if you can. 

A I guess I have to give a yes and no 
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Q 
A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 
Q 

What is that opinion? 
The one that creates the least cost for 

our customers. 
And what steps have you uken to attempt 

to determine what's Ukely to be the least 

Ashubula? 
I would have looked at the possible 

sources of fuel that could be utiUzed for 
those facilities. 
When you say you would have looked at the 

possible sources of fuel, could you 
expUin in a Uttle bit more detaU what 
steps you have taken to examine the fuels 
that might be used on a long term basis at 
those Ucilitic*? 
We've discussed with the Operations 

Department what range* of fuel that they 
could utiUze at their faciUties. 
Are there any other steps that you've 

uken? 
None that I recall. 
Is there someone reporting to you who has 

principle responsibility for evaluating 
the issue of what fuel ought to be used on 

PAGE 16 
[ 1 
( 2 Q 
[ 3 
[ 4 A 
( 5 
[ 6 

7 
8 
9 

10 Q 
11 
12 
13 A 

(14 
(15 
[16 
17 
18 
19 

[20 
[21 
[22 
[23 
[24 
[25 

answer. 
That's fine. Could you explain what you 

mean? 
One aspect of your question is confusing 

to me because I have no idea what you mean 
by long term and therefore, I'm having 
difficuify understanding what you're 
wanting - what you want me to respond to. 
One year, five years, a hundred years? 

What do you think is an appropriate 
planning horizon as to evaluate fuel use 
at a unit? 
There's two aspecu of that. There's two 

different perspectives on that question 
because it speaks to the other pan of the 
question that you asked me that was 
confusing to - with respect to what 
you're really asking me. 

On the one hand, there are long term 
determinations as to whether or not there 
are fuels avaUable that we'U be able to 
suppon the operation at those units on 
a long term basis. 

There's also very shon term 
questioning with respect to the things 
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that we deal with in terms of our 
procurement cycle. It tends to be a one 
to two, three or four year cycle and what 
we're doing in the immediate fumre, what 
some folks mighrconsider that also to be 
long term because it's more than a one 
year cycle. There are different ways of 
looking at the question, and you get 
completely different answers. 

That's why I asked the question I did and 
I'll now repeat it. What is the planning 
horizon over which you believe the company 
should evaluate fuels to be at particular 
units, and that just to be clear about it. 
it may be that you want to specify more 
than one planning horizon for different 
purposes. 

To try to cut through the fencing 
back and fonh that seems to be occurring, 
I would simply like you to tell me the 
planning horizon or horizons over which 
you believe such evaluation should be 
made? 
WeU, for the purpose of complying with 

the DCP requirements, the horizon is 20 
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Q 
A 
Q 

A 
Q 
A 

Q 

What durations have you considered? 
Time periods from one to five years. 
One to five years. Have you considered 

purchases for periods of more than five 
years? 

No. 
Why not? 
We can't adequately predict where we're 

going with our unit operations, or what 
the market conditions will be. 
What are the unceruinties as to unit 

operations that cause you to limit your 
evaluation to five years? 

MR. REGULINSKI: I'm going to 
object to this line of 
questioning. As you know, the 
focus of the bearing has been on 
two plants, Eastlake and 
Ashubula, and the round of 
questioning that we appear to have 
been discussing are well beyond 
those two particular plants. 

MR. WEISSMAN: If it wiU 
help, I'll be glad to restrict the 
questions to Eastlake and 
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Q 

A 

Q 

A 
Q 
A 
Q 

A 

years. 
For the purpose of making decisions 

for what fuel to bum in 1998, it's one 
year. 
Okay. And are those the only two planning 

horizons that your grovq) uses in 
evaluating fuel procurement options for 
Eastlake and Ashubula? You look at a one 
year horizon, you look at a 20 year 
horizon, but you don't look at anything in 
between? 
That's what we're cunently looking at. 

yes. 
That isn't my question. Are those the 

only two -
The answeus yes. 
- time periods you look at? 
The answer is yes. 
Okay. Have you considered - ha* the 

company considered at any time since you 
assumed your cunent responaibiUtie*, ttie 
possibility of entering into coal 
purchase* for period* of more than one 
year? 
We've considered it, yes. 
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A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

AshubuU. 
MR. REGULINSKI: I would 

appreciate that. Thank you. With 
the understanding that the 
question i* related to Eaatlake 
and Ashubula, can you answer the 
question? 

If you repeat it. 
I'U be glad to rephrase it to save a 

little time. 
Just resute it. 
In looking at fuel procurement for either 

Eaatlake or Ashubula, have you considered 
the possibilify of purchasing coal for 
more than one year? 
Yes, we have. 
And over what duration have you considered 

entering into - let me rephrase that, I'm 
sorry. 

What's the longest term contract 
you've considered entering into during the 
last 15 months with respect to either 
EastUke or AahubuU? 
One year. 
So you've not considered entering into 
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A 

Q 

A 
Q 
A 

Q 
A 

Q 
A 
Q 

conttacts of any longer duration than one 
year, at those two plants? 
I guess I would have to revise my answer 

to say it went from periods of one to five 
years, we've looted at. 
But you've not looked at periods of longer 

than five years; is that conect? 
No, we have not. 
Why not? 
Our experience in the last number of years 

has been that long term contracts have not 
been advanugeous to the company. 
Conttacts that go longer than those 
periods of time. 

There's also a lot of voUtility in 
the cunent market and as a result of 
that, it wouldn't be prodent to try to 
enter into a teim of a conttact much 
longer than that. 
Why is volatility in the market relevant? 
It affects the cunent offers that are 

being made. 
In what ways? 
Tends to make them more costly. 
Tends to make them more costly. Why does 
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A 

Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

Q 

A 

Coals that have sulfurs less than the SIP 
limits now for those plants. Coals in the 
one, two, three, four pound range. 
Are you burning any coals at that plant 

now with sulfur contents in excess of four 
pounds? 

Yes. 
Is there anything in the SIP requirements 

that would preclude you from continuing to 
bum those coals at Eastlake? 
There could be, yes. 
My question is, is there anything in the 

cunent SIP requirements that preclude you 
from continuing to bum those coals? 

MR. REGULINSKI: And he 
answered that question by saying 
there could be. 

MR. WEISSMAN: I'd like to 
repeat the question and ask that 
he answer it. 

Is there cunently anything in the SIP 
requiremenu peruining to Eastlake that 
cunently preclude you from buming those 
coals? 
Which coals? 
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A 

Q 
A 

Q 

A 
Q 

A 

Q 

volatility by itself make an offer more 
costly? 
Well, in the shon period of time, the 

last 15 months, there's been considerable 
pressure on the coal market because of 
some things that have happened in the 
industry that's caused some of the coals 
in the ridge in the grade* that we uae 
them to become in somewhat shon supply 
and that's put the price up. 

And therefore, the bidding tends to 
be higher during that kind of a timeframe. 
What coals are you referring to? 
Coal* that we bum at our pUnu at 

Eaatlake and Aabtabula. 
What coalLSre you currently buming at 

Eaatlake? 
Type* of coals, yes. 
What type* of coal* are you cunently 

buming at Eaatlake? 
Coals that have ranges of sulfurs, you 

know, that allow u* to meet our SIP limiu 
for operation at the facUify. 
Can you categorize those for me in any 

way? 
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Q The coals with a sulfur content in 
excess - the coals that you are cunently 
buming with the sulfur content in excess 
of four pounds? 

A Depends on the quantify. And I stand by 
the answer I gave you before. 

MR. WEISSMAN: Can we go off 
the record? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Yes. 
. . . 

(Discussion off the record.) 

MR. WEISSMAN: Let's go back 
on the record. 

Again, we've been off the 
record for an extended time period 
and rather than asking the 
reponer to read back the 
transcript, let me just stan this 
way. 

BY MR. WEISSMAN: 
Q Do you know, Mr. Stead, is the company 

cunentfy buming coal at Eastlake with a 
sulfur content in excess of four pounds 
S02 per million BTU? 
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A 
Q 

A 
Q 
A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 

Q 
A 
Q 

Yes, it is. 
Are you aware at least in approximate 

terms of the sulfur content of that coal? 
Yes, I think so. 
What's your understanding? 
It's basically six pound coal. 
It's basically six pound coal. To your 

knowledge, is there anything in the sute 
implemenution plan limiution currently 
applicable to the EastUke plant that 
would preclude Centerior Corporation from 
continuing to bum approximately the same 
quantities of that coal that it's buming 
now? 
No, I don't know of anything. 
You're not aware of any cunent limiution 

that would prevent the company from 
continuing to use the same quantities of 
that coal? 
In terms of the SIP program you 

referenced? 
Yes. 
Yes. That's ray answer. 
Are there other factors that would - that 

cunently would prevent the company from 
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continuing to bum the quantities of 
roughly 6.0 pound coal that it's using at 
EastUke? 
Are you asking me are there cunent issues 

or are you asking me how I responded? 
I'm trying to clarify your answer. I'm 

just trying to understand. I genuinely 
don't know what the answer is. 

Are there cunently problems that 
exist at EastUke that might prevent the 
company from continuing to bum the same 
quantities of approxiraately 6.0 pound coal 
that it's now buming? 
Not that I know of. 
When you refer to operational difficulties 

that - I don't want to put words in your 
mouth - I'm trying to paraphrase as best 
I can what I understood you to say just a 
few minutes ago. 

If at any point I missute what you 
indicated, please stop me immediately. 

Are there operational issues that 
might prevent the company from continuing 
to bum the 6.0 pound coal in the future? 
Well, again, as I had answered the 
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burning - continuing to bum the same 
quantities of that coal? 
Well, there always are factors. It's not 

particularly that coal but any coal. 
Again, our responsibiUfy i* to procure 
fueling at the lowest cott for our 
customers and that's the ultimate 
determining factor. 
So cost is a determining factor? 
Evaluating cost, ye*. 
Are there other - are there any other 

factors that you are aware of that 
cunentfy exist that would prevent the 
company - that might prevent the company 
from continuing to bum the *ame 
quantitie* aLthat coal at EastUke? 
There are some potential technical issues 

with respect to change* in operation of 
some of the bbUers, and tome coals could 
cause technical problems with operations 
and operations wiU have to advise u* on 
what those are, and what the consequence* 
of tho*e would be. 
Are there problems that cunently exiat 

that would prevent the company from 
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question before in terms of any coal that 
might be bumed in the future, there are 
going to be some physical changes at the 
plant in terms of the way they operate to 
meet other reguUtions, and that could 
require physical equipment changes which 
could affect ceruin coals. 

I can't teU you which ones, but 
those operating conditions would be 
evaluated by the operating folks and we 
would be informed of those. 
So there apparentfy may be physical 

changes at the plant in the future; is 
that conect? 
There could be, you know, to meet other 

compliance requiremenu. 
But the company hasn't determined yet 

whether those change* wUI be nece*sary; 
is that conect? 
I believe there's a plan to make some of 

those changes already. 
What change* i* the company planning to 

make? 
I beUeve we have a project to change our 

bumer* at Eastlake 5 unit sometime in the 
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0 
A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 

next two years. 
Sometime in the next two years? 
Yeah. 
Do you know when that change is planned to 

occur? 
No, I don't. 
Has there been any evaluation yet of the 

affect that that change would have on the 
coals that the company can bum at 
Eastlake? 
I don't know. 
Let's focus on AshubuU for a second. Do 

you know, is the company cunently 
buming - it's probably more than a 
second to be precise. Let's switch focus 
to AshubuU. 

Is the company cunently burning 
coals at AshubuU with the sulfur content 
of six pounds per million BTU or greater? 
Approxiraately, yes. 
Are there any cunent environmenul 

requiremenu that would preclude the 
corapany - that would prevent the company 
from continuing to bum that coal? 
Not that I know of. 
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Q 

A 
Q 

A 

Q 
A 

Q 

content as that coal. No, there wouldn't 
be. 
Are there any other factors other than 

cost that might prevent the company from 
continuing to bum the same coals at 
AshubuU 5? 
During what period? 
Any other factors that you're aware of 

other than cost that at any time in the 
fumre might prevent the corapany from 
continuing to bum the same coals at 
AshubuU S? 
I don't know what the - there may be. 

There may be. 
And what are those? 
There may be future environmenul 

restrictions sometime in the fumre that 
raay change that. 
Are there any such requirements that have 

been proposed by sute or Federal 
officials that are currently pending? Let 
me rephrase that. 

Are there any proposed changes in the 
environmenul requiremenu applicable to 
AshubuU 5 that are cunently pending? 
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Q 

A 
Q 
A 
Q 

A 

Q 

A 
Q 

A 

Are there any other factors, other than 
cost that might prevent the company from 
burning that coal in the future? 
Yes. 
What are they? 
Reduced operation. 
Reduced operation. And how would reduced 

operation - let me back up a second. 
When you refer to the possibilify of 

reduced operation at AshtabuU, what are 
you referring to? 
I'm referring to the company'* pUni to 

stop operating some boUers at Ashubula. 
And if I foctu specificalfy on AshubuU 

5, is the company cunentfy burning coals 
with a sulfiiLContent in excess of six 
point - of six pounds per mUUon BTU at 
AshubuU 5? 
Yes, they are. 
Are there any current environmenul 

requirements that would - to your 
knowledge, would prevent the company from 
continuing to bum the same quantities of 
such coals at AshubuU 5? 
It would have to be the same sulfiir 

PAGE 32 
i ( 1 

[ 2 
( 3 
[ 4 
[ 5 
[ 6 ; 
[ 7 | 
( 8 
[ 9 
[10 
[11 
(12 
(13 

1 [14] 
[15] 
[161 
[17] 
[18] 
[19] 
[20] 
[21] 
[22] 
[23] 
[24] 
[25] 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 
A 
Q 

A 

A 

Q 

Not that I know of. 
Is there the possibilify that AshubuU S 

will be shut down at some point? 
There's a possibiUty of that, sure. 
When might the unit be shut down? 
I don't know. 
Do you know if there's been any 

evaluation, smdy or evaluation or 
analysis of any kind of potentully 
shutting down AshubuU 5? 
I guess I'd rather not answer that 

question. I don't think it's relevant to 
the scope of this discussion. 

MR. REGULINSKI: Can we go 
off the record? 

MR. WEISSMAN: Ceruinfy. 
. . . 

(Discussion off the record.) 
. . . 

(Record read.) 

With reqiect to the ECP work that was done 
and filed, there was no smdies reUted to 
that. 
I'm afraid that's not my question. I 
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MR. WEISSMAN: Yes. 
, - . 

(Discussion off the record.) 

MR. REGULINSKI: Back on the 
record, please. 

[ 7] BY MR. WEISSMAN: 1 
[ 8] Q Mr. Stead, is it important in your | 
[9] 
[10] 
[11] 
[12] 
[13] 
[14] 
[15] 
[16] 
[17] 
[18] 
[19] 
[20] 
[21] 
[22] 
[23] 
[24] 
[25] 

judgment for Centerior Corporation to cut 
costs? 

\ Yes, it is. 
Q Why? 
A Well, I'm assuraing by your question that 

you're speaking to the issue of being 
competitive, and surviving in a 
competitive market. 

Q WeU, I'm just trying to ask the questions 
one step at a time. Is it important - I 
ara just trying to - you've said it's 
important to cut costs. 

I just would apprecute your 
describing to rae why that's important and 
again, I'm not trying to pUy any games. 

I just want to understand the basis 
for your answer. I don't want to put 
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MR. WEISSMAN: On what basis? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Go ahead and 

answer the question, to the best 
of your knowledge. 

My previous answer was in the context of 
any business. 
WeU, I'm asking about Centerior 

Corporation. Centerior Corporation in 
panicuUr. 

Are there any reasons why it's 
important for Centerior Corporation in 
particuUr to try to cut costs? 
I think I just answered that question. 
No, I think you gave me an answer 

regarding businesses generally. I'm not 
interested in that. 

I'd Uke to know whether there are 
any factors that differentiate Centerior 
from other corporations, other utilities 
in the United Sutes, that might make it 
particularly important for Centerior to 
cut cosu. 
Well, Centerior is a high cost producer in 

terras of electricify, you know, in the 
market at least from information that we 
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words in your mouth. That's precisely why 
I'm simply asking what you meant and you 
tell me what it is that you mean and I'm 
trying to give you a fait opportunify to 
simply expUin to me directly as pan of 
the record in this proceeding what you 
meant by what you said, and I'm sure you 
have a perfectly fine answer. I just 
don't want to put words in your mouth 
and -
And your question wa*? 
Why is it important for the company to cut 

cosu? 
In any company, you know, the cost of iu 

product determine* it* abUify to be a 
vuble company. 

In our ca*e, con i« very important. 
You know, to allow u* to have a viable 
product in a competitive market and we're 
preparing ourselves to be in a more 
competitive market. 
Is there any question a* to whether 

Centerior wiU remain a viable company if 
it fails to cut cosu? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
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have. 
Ii it important for a high cost producer 

to cut its costs? 
If it wantt to continue in business, yes. 
Fine. Have there in recent yean also 

been constraints on the funds that are 
avaiUble for capiul expendimres or 
other projects that might be necessary or 
help improve the company's efficiency? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
That's weU beyond the scope of 
this proceeding. 

Mr. Stead, is thi* a company that has 
enough money to do everything that's cost 
efficient for it to do? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
That's well beyond the scope of 
this proceeding. 

MR. WEISSMAN: No, we don't 
think it's inelevant at aU. The 
company's proposing to spend some 
nvenfy mUUon dollars for fuel 
switching at EastUke and 
AshubuU in 1998 and '99. 

It's not necessary for acid 
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rain compliance in those yean or 
for many years to come. 

MR. REGULINSKI: That's 
relevant. Whether the smdy is 
good or bad, that's relevant. 
Whether the company has adequate 
cash to do whatever it wants to do 
is simply not before the 
Commission at this time. 

MR. WEISSMAN: Well, we have 
a different position. We think 
that knowing whether the company 
has adequate cash is relevant in 
determining whether to underuke a 
discretionary expendimre of at 
least ten, fifteen, perhaps twenty 
million dolUrs for fuel switching 
that's not necessary for iraraedUte 
corapliance. 

[20] BY MR. WEISSMAN: | 
[21] 0 
[221 
[23] 
[24] 
[25] 

And therefore, I would Uke to know, does 
the company have adequate funds at this 
point to make aU discretionary 
expendimres that would be cost efficient? 

MR. REGULINSKI: And I object 

PAGE 51 
[1] 
[2] 
[3] 
[4] A 
[5] Q 
[6] 
[7] 
[8 ] 
[9] 
[10] 
[11] 
[12] 
[13] A 
[14] 
[15] 
[16] 
[17] 
[18] 
[19] 
[20] 
[21] 
[22] Q 
[23] 
[24] 
[25] 

confine it to the period since December of 
'95 when you assumed your cunent 
responsibilities. 
No, I have not been. 
There has been enough funding for 

everything you thought was cost effective 
to do; is that conect? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 
to the scope of the question and 
to the relevancy. Without waiving 
the objection, the wimess can 
answer. 

I guess I would have to answer, I can't 
answer the way you ask it because I 
haven't categorized the things I have 
requested in terms of cost effective or 
not cost effective. 

I have not been refused of any 
request that I've made of ray management to 
carry out projecu that were important for 
the corapany. 
In deterraining what mnds to request. 

have - what criteria have you used to 
determine whether to make the request? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
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with respect to relevance and I'U 
ask the wimes* to re*pond to the 
be*t of your knowledge. 

Fine. 
I don t know. 
Has there been any instance in which 

you've been told, "Mr. Stead, we'd like to 
provide you with money to hire additional 
people or underuke a particuUr project. 
We think the project make* «en*e, but 
there aren't fund* avaiUble?" 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection a* 
to relevance, but I'U let the 
wime** answer it to the beat of 
your knowledge. 

I have not been, no. 
You've never been told no to any request 

you've made on the basi* that the funding 
wa* limited? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Same 
objection. 

Well, with reapect m that queation, I 
have worked for thi* company for 31 year* 
and I can give you a long li*t of ca*e*. 
Let's confine - that's ftur. Let's 
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Can we go off the record again. 
please? 

. . . 
(Discussion off the record.) 

. . . 
MR. WEISSMAN: Let's go back 

on the record. Are you going to 
allow the wimess to answer or 
not? 

MR. REGULINSKI: U t ' s Uke a 
ten minute break, if we can. 
collect our thoughu. 

MR. WEISSMAN: Ceruinly. 
MR. REGULINSKI: Thank you. 

. . . 
(Shon recess had.) 

. . . 
[18 BY MR. WEISSMAN: | 
[19 Q 
[20 
21 
22 A 
23 Q 
24 
25 

Mr. Stead, is Centerior Coiporation 
cunently considering a broad range of 
option* m cut co*ts7 
Yes, we are. 
Is it foir to say that that's because 

Centerior, its management believes that 
it's particuUrfy important for Centerior 
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criteria to be. As you understand it. 
does the corapany have any flexibility or 
discretion or options - let me back up. 
and let rae phrase it this way. 

I believe we've esublished 
previously that there are no factors that 
would immedUtely - that would compel the 
corapany to reduce consumption of high 
sulfur coal at either EastUke or 
AshubuU 5. 

I believe also that you have 
testified that nonetheless, the company 
may engage in additional fuel switching 
based on cost considerations. Could you 
explain to me what that means? 
Whenever we make a decision to procure 

fuel for use at our plants, we do that 
based on evaluated cost. 
When you say evaluated cost, what do you 

mean? 
Evaluated cost is the toul cost of 

getting that fuel to the plant so it can 
be bumed. 
Okay. Do you know - let me ask it this 

way. When you say the cost of getting the 
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Q 
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Q 

the question. 

(Record read.) 

You've got a lot of pre-conditions on the 
question, but if the lowest cost fuel when 
you uke into consideration all of the 
evaluation parameters, the evaluated cost 
as I defined evaluated cost, would 
deterrame what fuel we would purchase for 
use at that plant. 
When you say would deterraine -
For us, you know. When you said required. 

I don't know of anything that requires 
anything. So I guess I don't undersund. 
Well, that's essentially, Mr. Stead, what 

I was trying to get at when I asked you 
ten minutes ago whether the company has 
any discretion in deterraining whether to 
engage in additional fuel switching. 
And I guess my answer to you is we have no 

discretion. Whatever the evaluation says, 
it says, and that's what we do. 
What the numbers say, the company does. 

conect? 
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fuel to the pUnt so that it can be 
bumed, could you please describe to me 
what the componenu are of that cost? 
In the context of evahution, tho«e are 

cost of the coal itaelf from the supplier. 
cost of any tranqMrution, cost of -
well, an evaluation of the sulfur content. 
you know, and other technical factors, you 
know, that appfy to fuel such u ash. 
grindabilify, moiature. Those are the -
all the Uctors that go - I think those 
are aU the factors that go into an 
evaluated cost of getting the fuel to the 
pUnt. 
Is it your position that the company, if 

it i* required to engage in additional 
fuel switching at EastUke and/or 
AahubuU 5, if adding together the 
delivered coat of the coal itaelf, and the 
projected coat of S02 allowance* to oftet 
the emissions assocuted with that coal. 
fuel switchug appears to be cheaper? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Can we have 
that question re-read, please? 

MR. WEISSMAN: I'U rephrase 
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That's conect. 
And those numbers are based in pan on a 

projected value for allowances, conect? 
No. 
No. What are they based on then? 
When I do an evaluation for procurement, I 

uae the acnul bids that are presented to 
me. There's no projections involved in 
that. 

So in deurmining what coal to bum at 
EastUke 4 and 5, for example, what have 
you done to get actual bids for S02 
allowances? 
I don't know. I don't believe we've done 

anything. 
I'm sorry, you said "I don't believe we've 

done anydiing?" 
I don't think we have. 
Then, I guess I'm stiU a little bit 

confused. Let me ask though first, who 
makes the decision as to what coal to bum 
at EastUke 4 and 5? 
WeU, there are a number of people 

involved on making that decision. 
Is there -
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5, or AshubuU 5? 
I guess I'm confused by your question in 

terms of the previous answers I've already 
given. We evaluate proposaU and make 
decisions based on least cost. 
One way to put it, Mr. Stead, and I'm 

trying to understand who the "we" is, what 
the process is, and to try to limit the 
objections, I'm just trying to ask it one 
step at a time. 

I'll be gUd to Stan at the other 
end of the spectrum and rather than asking 
it one piece at a time, could you describe 
for me in terras of the individuals 
involved, what the process is and will be 
internally for deciding whether to switch 
fuels at EastUke 4 and 5 or AshubuU 5? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Relevancy, breadth, scope. You're 
overbroad. It's completely 
inelevant to process and the 
people. 

With that objection, I'll see 
if the wimess can answer. Can 
you answer the question. 
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was ever made as to whether to engage in 
additional fuel switching at Eastlake or 
AshubuU S? 
The smdy that was completed showed that 

there was a particuUr fuel source or type 
rather, that would be optimum from a cost 
sundpoint for the period of the smdy. 
I'm not trying to be difficult. What I 

don't understand is that, is there any 
individual or corarainee within the company 
that raade a specific decision as to -
that looked at the resulu of the smdy 
and raade a specific decision up or down as 
to whether based on the smdy, or in 
whatever other information might be 
relevant, there should or shouldn't be 
additional fuel switching? 
Mr. Hoag, as I earlier suted was 

responsible for that smdy. 
So you assume Mr. Hoag made a decision one 

way or the other as to whether additional 
fuel switching was appropriate? 
The results of the smdy indicated that. 
That additional fuel switching should be 

done? 

PAGE 74 
[1] 
( 2 
( 3 
( 4 
( 5 
( 6 
( 7 
[ 8 
( 9 
[10 
(11 
[12 
(13 
[14 
(15 
(16 
[17 
[18 
[19 
(20 
[21 
[22 
[23 
[24 
[25] 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

Q 

A 

Q 
A 
Q 

. Mr. Stead? 
I don't believe I know at this time. 
Do you know whether any proces* ha* been 

esublished? 
I don't think I know that answer to that. 
Do you know whether prior to -

MR. REGULINSKI: Can we go 
off the record juat a minute. 
please? 

(Diacusfion off the record.) 

Mr. Stead, prior to submitting -
Mr. Stead, to the best of your knowledge. 
prior to submitting iu October 1st, "96 
Environmeatal CompUance Plan Review, did 
the company attempt to engage in any 
specific process to determine whether to 
engage in additional fuel switching at 
EastUke 4 and 5 or AshubuU 5? 
It conducted a smdy to determine if it 

should do that or not. 
Who participated in that smdy? 
Other than Mr. Hoag, I don't know. 
Do you know whether a specific decision 
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That's what the resulu of the smdy say. 
ye*. 
I assume, therefore, that the Fuel 

Procurement Group has attempted to 
implement Mr. Hoag's decision in that 
regard; is that conect? 
We are implementing the resulu of the 

smdy, yes. 
Are you attempting to switch fuels at this 

point? 
We just did that in our most recent 

bidding operation, yes. 
I'm sorry, when you say we just did that. 

could you expUin to me what you mean by 
that sutement? 
Yes, when we went out for our fourth 

quarter bidding for fuel for those pUnu, 
we asked for a range of fuel supplies that 
were, you know, that were addresied in 
that *mdy, and we did the evaluation 
according to the stipuUtion which we have 
entered into, and we made an award to the 
least coat provider of fuel. 
Wa* there just one bidder selected? 
I think there were a number of bidders 
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that were selected to meet the toul 
requirements of the corapany. 
I'm trying to focus now just on EastUke 4 

and 5, and AshubuU 5. For Eastlake 4 
and 5, was there more than one source of 
coal selected? 

No, I believe there's only one. 
And do you know at least in general terms. 

what the sulfur content of that coal is? 
Yes, in general terms I know. 
What was it? 
Greater than six pound. 
Greater than six pounds. So that for the 

founh quarter, I guess, Mr. Stead, it's 
really a very simple question. I'm just 
trying to understand, I really ara. 

Who raakes the final decision - who 
raade the final decision in the founh 
qiuner as to what coals the corapany would 
or wouldn't procure for EastUke 4 and 5? 
I make that decision. 
You made that decision. That's fine. And 

in making that decision, prior to making 
that decision, or as pan of the 
evaluation process, did you elicit bids 
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And do I understand correctly that you 
will do that solely and strictly based 
upon the evaluated cost methodology 
cunently being used by the corapany? 
That's conect, and corapliance with the 

SIP requireraents of that plan. 
And do I also understand correctly that 

you beUeve that you are required to -
rephrase that. 

Do I also understand conectly that 
assuming that the coaU being considered 
are suiuble for complunce with the SIP, 
the S-I-P, and are otherwise technically 
accepuble, do I understand conectly that 
you believe that in every instance, the 
decision as to which coals to purchase 
should be made by applying the company's 
evaliuted cost methodology? 
Yes, that's what we've agreed to in a 

stipuUtion and we'll do that. 
And am I also conect that in applying 

that methodology - I'll rephrase it more 
neuttally. 

Do you intend in the fumre to 
continue to rely on whatever S02 allowance 
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for S02 allowances? 
Not to my knowledge. 
Then what information did you use in order 

to evaluate the cost anodated with the 
difference in sulfur content between 
different coals? 
We were provided information as to what 

values to use. 
By? 
By Mr. Hoag. 
By Mr. Hoag. Do you know whether that 

information was based upon an effon to 
obuin actual bid*? 
I don't know that, no. 
Do you expect that in determining which 

coal* to use^t EaatUke in 1998, that you 
wiU alao make the final deciaion? 
With respect to q>ecific contract awards. 

that's conect. 
Will you make the final decision a* to 

whether to fuel switch - to engage in 
additional fuel switching at EastUke 4 
and 5? 
I wUI make the decision with respect to 

what contracu to award. 
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projections Mr. Hoag might supply to you 
in applying that methodology? 
That's our practice, yes. 
You don't have any present pUns to change 

that practice, do you? 
No, we do not. 
Okay. And am I conect alao that in the 

end, that what you'U do is that you will 
add together the cost, again we're ulking 
about coals that are accepuble, given the 
SIP limiution and other technical 
Uctors, that in the end, that what you 
expect wiU happen is that you wiU make a 
decision as to which coaU to uae by 
adding together the delivered cost for 
each coal, and the values that Mr. Hoag 
supplies to you regarding the projected 
price of allowances? 
And the other factors that are included in 

the evaluation that I told you about 
before. 

AU thoae factors, so that all the 
coal* are considered on an equal and fair 
basis, and the decision wiU be made based 
on least cost to our customers. 
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When you refer to other factors, ara I 
conect that you're referring principally 
to further cost adjustments that are made 
to reflect differences in ash content, and 
other constimenu of the coal? 
Yes, ash, BTU, grindabiUty, whatever. 

All those factors are, so that's it's done 
on a fair basis. 
So that the decision becomes fairly 

mechanical in nature then? 
Well, it's sttaight forward in nature, I 

guess I would say, yes. 
Mr. Stead, and therefore, that you believe 

therefore, as the decision-maker in 
deterraining which coaU to select, you 
beUeve that you are obligated to pick -
to select the coal that has the lowest 
cost under your evaluation methodology. 
irrespective of what the company's needs 
raay or raay not be for S02 allowances? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Can we have 
that question re-read to us. 
please? 

(Record read.) 
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conect? 
In terras of which award to issue, that's 

cortect. 
Will you uke into account in any way the 

year in which the - in determining, will 
you uke into account in any way the year 
in which the corapany is projected to need 
additional allowances to cover iu 
aggregate system wide S02 emissions? 

MR. REGULINSKI: May I have 
that question, please? 

(Record read.) 
, 

Again, answering the questions that you're 
asking me in the context of a decision for 
1998, no. At least I don't know of any 
plans to do that. 
I assume -
I have no plans to do that. 
I'm sorry? 
I have no plans to do that. 
Would you expect to raake the decision -

as of this point in time, you expect to 
make the decision regarding 1999,1 
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— 
I believe that's conect, ye*. 
In making your deciaion a* to what coaU 

to select for 1998, do you intend to Uke 
into account in any way the size of the 
company's allowance bank? 
I don't believe so. 
Do you intend to u k e into account in any 

way potential uncertainties regarding the 
potentul fumre value of S02 allowance*? 
In term* of the evahution of the bid*, if 

that's the question you're aaking me, I 
believe that's stUI the context you're 
asking thi* question? 
Yes, it U. 
No, I do i r t r 
And just to be precise, reaify what I'm 

looking for, in addition to evahute the 
bids, I'm referring specificalfy to the 
decision as to which bid to accept. 

As I understand it, you wUI make the 
decision as to which bid to accept, and in 
doing so, you wiU not u k e into account 
any unceruinties regarding the potentul 
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assume. Would your answer differ in any 
re«pect for 1999? 
WeU, I don't know what basis we might use 

in the fumre, but I can speak to 1998. 
Mm-hmm. But you reaUy don't know what 

the criteria would be for 1999 at this 
point? 
It may change, I don't know. I just don't 

know. 
Do you have any reason to expect that it 

would change? 
WeU, the world changes as time goes on. 

and one of the things that I've leamed in 
thi* job so far is that, you know, you 
need to be very flexible in terms of 
recognizing that the world does change. 
and that you need to use different 
evaluation techniques in the future. 
Doe* the fact that the world change* in 

general mean that shorter term commitments 
are better than longer term commitmenu? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 
to the relevance of the question. 
Notwithstanding the relevance of 
whether a shon term commitment or 
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long terra commitment is relevant 
to the scope of this pr(x:eeding. 
I will ask the wimess if he can 
answer the question, to answer it. 

In terms of ray belief today, shon terra 
coramitments are jtistified rather than long 
terra comraitmenu. However, that could 
change. 
Could you expUin briefly why you think 

that's troe? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Sarae 

objection. If you can answer. 
It's my belief that it's to the company's 

economic advantage, you know, to use 
shorter term contracting at this time. 
Why is that the case? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Same 
objection. 

We have deraonsttated over the last year. 
that we are able to have a significant 
impact on our cost of fuel and ultimately 
cost to the customer by focussing more on 
short terra conttacting. 
That preference for shon term practicing 

is pretty common in - the shon term 
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coramitments? 
I don't know. 
Have you thought about that issue at all? 
No, I don't buy S02 allowances so I don't 

know. 
As far as you're concemed, you don't make 

any decisions that involve the purchase of 
S02 allowances? 
I don't know. 
Would you feel quaUfied to raake that 

decision, do you feel? 
No, I would not. 
Why not? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Objection. Andy, corae on. Corae 
on. This is a professional job 
here. He said he was not 
qualified. He doesn't make that 
decision. Leave it at that. 

MR. WEISSMAN: I want to 
a s k -

MR. REGULINSKI: You don't 
need to dig into why he's not 
qualified. He's not qualified and 
he said he wasn't. Andy, leave it 
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purchases is pretty common in the utilify 
industry these day*, i*n't it? 
Ye*, I think it i*. 
That u) general, that many utiUtie* have 

concluded that in buying coal, it's better 
to make commitmenu on a shon urm basis 
and avoid longer term commitmenu; is that 
conect? 
Because of very bad experience of the long 

term conttacu, yes, in the recent paat. 
That sometime* long term purchase 

commitmenu that looked Uke they were 
good at the time tuned out to be not very 
good decisions. 
That's conect. Particularly the Ohio 

Valley coiSlRet. 
And can you expUtn m me what's different 

between - what, if anything, is different 

of the desirabilify of making - maybe I 
shouldn't even assume it. 

If you were deciding whether to buy 
S02 allowances, would you expect that it 
would also be trae that it's better to 
make short term commitments than long term 
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Mr. Stead, just to be clear, I'm not in 
any way - I have respect for you and I'm 
not trying to in any way impune your 
personal qualification* or credentUls in 
any way. 

What I was really intending to ask 
was just to explore essentully what kinds 
of information or knowledge you feel you 
would need in order to properly - in 
order to be properfy qualified to make 
derisions as to whether to purchase S02 
allowances. 
As in purchasing any item, you'd need to 

know something about the market, iu 
avaiUbilify, price range*. Lott of 
different thing*. You ju*t need to know 
something about that basic item. 

I don't buy that item, not involved 
in buying it. I haven't amdied the 
market or iu motivation*. 
Are you - to the be*t of your knowledge. 

i* there any - ha* the company made any 
decision as m whether it's appropriate to 
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purchase allowances on a long term basis? 
I don't know. 
Are you aware of any effort to evaluate 

whether it's appropriate to raake long terra 
purchase commitments with respect to 
allowances? 
I don't know. 

MR. WEISSMAN: I think this 
might be a good time to break for 
lunch. 

MR. REGULINSKI: Before we 
do, do you think you have more for 
Mr. Stead? 

MR. WEISSMAN: Yes. 
MR. REGULINSKI: Can you tell 

rae how much longer you think -

(Luncheon recess had.) 

MR. WEISSMAN: Back on the 
record. 

[22] BY MR. WEISSMAN: | 
[23] Q 
[24] 
[25] 

Mr. Stead, just to complete some line of 
questioning that we were discussing 
earlier, let me just focus initially on 
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evaluation the S02 adjustment was a 
significant factor, are there 
circumstances - I'm sorry, let rae try 
that over. I'ra trying to find a way to 
frarae that so we'll get around sorae of the 
problems we had in the raoming. 

In your judgment, once you know that 
using the evaluated cost methodology. Coal 
A U cheaper than Coal B, are there any 
other factors that are relevant? 
No. 
So it wouldn't matter from your 

standpoint, for exaraple, if for Coal A, 
you had to pay fifteen million dollan 
more for the coal itself over a two year 
period as corapared to Coal B, that if 
under the cost evaluation methodology. 
after the adjustments for S02, Coal A was 
still cheaper, that would be inelevant 
from your standpouit? 
But you wouldn't be paying more if the 

lowest cost - evaluated cost would be the 
lowest cost. 
That's your understanding of the effect of 

your evaluated cost methodology; is that 
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the decision-making process that you just 
completed in determining which offers to 
accept for coal for the Ust quaner of 
1997 at EastUke and AshubuU. 

Did you, before determining which 
coal to - which offers to accept, did you 
attempt to calcuUte the out of pocket 
expendimre, the actual cash paymenu that 
the company would have to make during the 
last quarter of "97 comparing different 
alternative*? 
No. 
Would that have been relevant to you 

at all? 
Don't know. 

you - it'* conceivable that you might 
conclude - let me withdraw that. 

If, for example, you concluded that 
Coal A was cheaper than Coal B using your 
evaluated coat methodology, but Coal A wa* 
a reUtiveiy low rolfur coal, a* to which 
the adjustment for S02 wa* reUtivefy 
modest, and Coal B the more - was a 
higher sulfur coal, wherein making your 
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conect? 
That's how we make our decision, yes. 
Okay. So that if you pick Coal A, it 

means you're paying less for Coal A than 
CoalB? 
No. 
I'm sorry? 
No, it's the evaluated cost. It's not 

what you're paying for the coal. What 
you're paying for the coal U completely 
separate, you know. 

I mean you - just let me expUin 
again to you what the evaluation process 
is then since you obviously don't 
understand. 
No, I think I do understand it and I'm 

just straggting for a way to frame the 
question that Mr. Regulinaki wUl find 
satisfactory. 

If you were teced with the situation 
in which on an evahuted cost basU, the 
difference between two coaU was very 
smaU, but on a - but that the cost for 
the coal itself, the purchase price for 
the coal and the tranq>ortttion of the 
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coal to the pUot was very different 
between the two coals, would that factor 
be relevant in your decision? 
It has not been^no, so no, it wouldn't 

be. 
It wouldn't be relevant? 
No. 
So if Coal A were a fraction of a penny 

per million BTU cheaper than Coal B on an 
evaluated cost basis, but the cost to 
procure coal for Coal A was several 
million dollars greater than the cost to 
procure the coal for Coal B, that would 
not be a factor? 

Am I conect in undersunding that 
that would not be a factor that you would 
uke into account that you would select 
Coal A? 
Our responsibiUty is to look at toul 

evaluated cost and we would go with the -
with aU other factors being equal, we 
would go with the lowest evaluated cost. 
Well, I'm trying to undersund to what 

extent you look at other factors. 
Well, I was ulking about technical 
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MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
relevance. I'll let the witness 
answer. 

I don't believe so. 
Do you have any contractual obligation 

which, all other things being equal, would 
require you to select - to purchase 
additional coal from Ohio Valley Coal if 
the price for such coal on an evaluated 
cost basis were identical to the price for 
other alternatives? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Same 
objection. I'll let the wimess 
answer. 

I guess I don't know the answer to that. 
In comparing a high sulfur coal and a 

medium sulfur coal, would you Uke into 
account in any way whether the company 
planned to hold the additional allowances 
that might be preserved by using medium 
sulfur coal, or to try to seU those 
allowances in the allowance market? 
That's not a consideration in our 

evaluation. 
Would the existence or absent - absence 
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factors, I'm sorry. There's no - I think 
what you're trying to talk about is caah 
flow difference*. 
Right. 
We do not con*ider any caah flow 

difference*. 
And would you not intend to connder any 

ca«h flow difference* in the future? 
Have no pUn* to do that, no. 
You have no pUn* m. Would you coiuider 

in any way potentul impacu on the local 
coal industry in Ohio? 
For what? 
In deterraining which coaU to select. 
No, no. It's not a Uctor in our 

evaluationr-* 
That's complewfy inelevant for purposes 

of your evaluation, conect? 
That's conect. 
Okay. Are there any specul contract 

obligations that you have to Ohio Valley 
Coal that subsequent u October 1st, 1997, 
would affect in any way your choice 
between coal offered by Ohio VaUey Coal 
and any other vendor? 
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A 

of an immedute demand for allowances be 
relevant in any way in your analysis? 
I don't know what you mean by an immedute 

demand. By what? By what? 
If you had two altematives that were very 

close to one another, and one involved a 
lower or medium sulfur coal, and the other 
invoWed a high sulfur coal, would you 
need - in selecting between those two 
coaU, would you need to know anything 
at aU about whether there was - there 
were buyen to whom the company might be 
immedUtely able to sell the allowance* 
preserved by uang medium sulfur coal? 
That's not a consideration in our 

evaluation. 
So if, in fact, there were no market for 

allowances at the time - mere was - no 
one was interested in buying, mat would 
be inelevant in making die determination? 
Yea, that'* conect, or whether there wa* 

a market and someone wanted m buy mem. 
Either case is inelevant. 
EiAer way, it's irrelevant? 
Ye*. 
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Am I correct that you also wouldn't need 
to know one way or anomer what the 
company needs might be planning to do with 
the allowances preserved by using medium 
sulfur coal, that -
Nor me allowances consumed by using high 

sulfur coal. 
You wouldn't care whether the company's 

plan was to hold the allowances for use at 
a disunt date, or to sell mem 
immedUtely in the raarket; that wouldn't 
affect your analysis? 

No. 
Okay. 
We evaluate, you know, EA's in the 

evaluation. 
Do you try to uke into account voUtility 

in the allowance raarket in anyway in 
raaking your decision? 
I don't. 
To your knowledge, does anyone in the 

company? 
They may. But I don't know if mey do or 

not. 
Do you think it's appropriate to uke into 
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significant differences in the price paid 
for delivery and for purchase and delivery 
of the coal itself, do you intend to u k e 
into account at all the company's 
potential need for cash for other uses? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
relevance. I'll let the wimess 
answer if he can. 

It's not pan of our evaluation criteria 
right now. I have no opinion on that. 
It's not something we do. 
So at least in the last quaner of 1997, 

you didn't uke into account differences 
in me - you didn't u k e into account 
at aU differences in the cash - in the 
cost for the purchase and delivery of the 
coal itself in evaluating otherwise 
comparable altematives; is that conect? 
If you mean the cash flow -
Right. 
And you've said it in kind of a convoluted 

way. If you mean mat, then me answer is 
no, we did not consider that. 
I agree mat was a convoluted way in 

asking me question. I just want to be 
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account the allowance price voUtilify in 
choosing between two altemative* that are 
omerwise Uirly comparable using me 
evaluated cost methodology? 
We do not use that at this time. 
Fair enough. I mink that answers my 

question. Let me ask a sligbtfy different 
question. 

Given your experience in procurement 
matters, including yooi eiqpcrience in coal 
procurement in your earUer commenu 
regarding voUtUity, in choosing between 
altemative A mat involve* medium sulfur 
coal and altemative B mat invoWes high 
sulfur coal, U it your judgment mat 
potentul voUtUify in allowance prices 
should be given some weight in choosing 
between me two altenutives? 
I don't know. 
In choosing between altemative A and 

altemative B, in me Ust quarter of 
1997 - I'm sorry, let me rephrase that. 

In choosing between altematives that 
may be omerwise comparable on an 
evaluated cost basis, but involve 
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absolutely clear, mat both in terms of 
what you did in me last quaner of 1997 
and what you cunently plan m do in 
1 9 9 8 -
Ye*, mat'* conect. 
That if two coal* are omerwise 

comparable, using the evaluated - are 
reaaonably comparable using your evaluated 
cost memodology, your intention would be 
to purchase me coal mat is me least 
expensive, using mat memodology 
inespective of me difference* or 
pountUl differences in me cash flow 
required m pay for me purchase and 
delivery of me coal itself? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
We've aaked and anawered that 
queation. 

MR. WEISSMAN: WiU you allow 
him m answer? 

MR. REGULINSKI: One more 
time. 

Yeah, again, mat's not pan of our 
evahution consideration. 
Okay. So mat in me Ust quaner of '97, 
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you have no idea whemer mere were - let 
rae back up a little bit. 

In '98, in selecting coaU for '98 at 
EastUke an AshtahuU 5, you'll give no 
weight whatsoever to whether there are 
other uses for cash that aU other things 
being equal, raight favor purchase of high 
sulfur coal; is that conect? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
And perhaps we can get around it 
if you could define for rae what 
you mean by omer needs or uses of 
cash. 

Let me ask it this way: Before you make a 
decision in selecting among two omerwise 
comparable coals for use in '98 at 
EastUke or AshubuU 5 -

MR. REGULINSKI: May I just 
ask, this is as a result of a coal 
bid soliciution and mese are 
responses to bids? Is that me 
context of this question? 

MR. WEISSMAN: Yes, and 
basically, let me back up a little 
bit men just to be sure we're 
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that's not yet been covered or has a 
portion of that already been covered? 
I guess I can't answer your question 

because I don't understand why you're not 
concemed about me omer pan of the 
EastUke plant. 
Well, I was just trying to save time. 
But mat does affect the answer. I guess 

the answer is I don't know the answer 
to your question. I apologize. 
To your knowledge -
I don't know me answer. 
Just to try to shortcut a little bit, am I 

conect mat me company has previously 
made commitraents to cover a subsuntUI 
portion of its requireraents at Eastlake 4 
and 5 for 1998? 
We have sorae conttacts to cover sorae 

portion of mat. I don't know if it's 
substantial or not, and I don't look at it 
as just 4 and 5 alone. Again, you're 
asking a question I just don't know the 
answer to, I'ra sorry. 
It's hard m look at coal procurement -

coal procurement decisions with just two 

PAGE 102 1 
[1] 
[2] 
[3] 
[4] 
[5] 
[6] 
[7] 
[8] 
[9] 
[10] 
[11] 
[12] 
[13] 
[14] 
[15] 
[16] 
[17] 
[18] 
[19] 
[20] 
[21] 
[22] 
[23] 
[24] 
[25] 

making the same assumptions here. 
BY MR. WEISSMAN: 
Q Before selecting coab for use in '98 at 

EastUke and AshtabuU 5, do you intend to 
elicit bids? 

A I'm sorry, I'm lost now. Could you 
switch - could you a*k mat queation -

Q Mr. Regulinski was just pointing out mat 
I was making ceruin aasumptions in my 
question, so I'm trying to step back a 
couple pace* and jiut 8«k a very ttnight 
forward queation to make lure we're making 
the same assumption*. 

Namefy, I aamme you've not 
selected - let me make anomer 
assumpnoii:~-Take one more step back. 

Have you selected - have you 
purchased all of me fiiel required for 
EastUke 4 and 5 and AshtabuU 5 in 1998? 

A I don't believe lo. 
Q Have you covered - let me phrase it mis 

way. As between the uniu I've just -
aU of the uniu I've jtist referenced 
combined, is mere stiU at least 1.2 
mUlion tona of expected requirement 
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uniu at EastUke. You really have to 
look at me whole plant? 

A I just can't do mat, I'm sorry. 
Q omer than evaluated cost and compliance 

sttiubUity for compliance wim 
environmenul requirements, and omer 
technical factors, are there any omer 
considerations of any kind that you intend 
to uke inm account in choosing among 
offers to provide coal m EastUke or 
AshubuU 5 in 1998? 

A I don't know of any now. I have no pUns 
for any. 

Q Do you intend to consult with Mr. Hoag 
before selecting among mose offers? 

A I have no plans to do mat. 
Q AU right. Is mere anyone wimin me 

company who you expect to consuU wim 
before selecting among such offers? 

A Ye*. 
Q Could you please identify the individuals 

you plan to consult wim? 
A Mike Kovach and the fuel purchasing suff. 
Q Anyone else? 
A There are several people mat work for 
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Mike; depends on who he would assign to do 
the evaluation. I don't know who that 
would be at this time. 
What information do you expect to request 

that they provide you before you make your 
decision? 
They would provide me me evaluation of 

the bids. 
By that, you raean the evaluation using the 

evaluated cost memodology? 
Yes. 
Do you pUn to seek any other information 

from anyone within me corapany before 
raaking me decision? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
We've gone through this. You're 
asking me sarae questions now. 
These are redundant. They've been 
asked and answered. 

I wiU let him answer this 
but we've gone mrough this three 
times now. We really have. I 
object. It's been asked and it's 
been answered. I'll let him try 
to answer it again, but I won't 
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Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 
A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 

Q 

A 
Q 

Prior to that time, do you intend to ask 
anyone else in the company to evaluate or 
re-evaliute me company's cunent policy 
regarding banking of allowances? 
I have no plans to do mat. 
All right. Is there a cunent policy 

regarding banking of allowances? 
I believe mere is. 
Do you know what it is? 
No. 
Is it fair to assurae you didn't Uke -

haven't Uken it into account in the coal 
procureraent decisions you've made to date? 
That's conect. 
Do you - and do you have any present plan 

to Uke it into account in your decisions 
in '98? 
No pUns to change what we've been doing. 

no. 
Do you personally have any judgment as to 

whether the size of me company's 
allowance bank is appropriate? 
No, I have no opinion on that. 
Do you know of any plans by anyone else in 

me company to funher evaluate me 
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let him go again. One more time? 
I gues* would Uke to add I would alio 

consult with legal. We always consult 
with legal on our conttactt. 
Would you make any effort to obuin 

information about omer needs for cash 
that may exist wimin me organization? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Asked and answered. Don't 
re*poad. 

I Uke it from mat that the anawer i* no? 
MR. REGULINSKI: No. 

Objection. Atked and answered. 
Do not respond. Go off the 
record, please. 

• . . . 

(Discussion off the record.) 

. . . 
Mr. Stead, to your knowledge, let me ask 

you mu. Mr. Stead, when do you expect 
to make a deciaion about what coals you 
wiU select to fill any cunentfy unmet 
requiremenu at EaatUke or AshubuU 5 
for 1998? 
Sometime between now and me end of '97. 
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company's policy with regard to banking 
aUowances between now and me end of the 
year? 

A No, I do not. 
Q Mr. Stead, are you - in recent years, has 

demand for Ohio coal been diminishing? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 

relevance. I'U let me wimes* 
answer me question. 

A I don't know. 
Q So you have no idea whemer mere's been a 

shrinking of demand? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 

Asked and answered. 
A No, I don't. 
Q Is there any reason that mat might be of 

concem to the company? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 

Relevance. I'U let the wimea* 
attempt to anawer me question. 

A I guess I don't know. 
Q Mr. Stead, prior to making yotir decision 

regarding coals to select for use at 
EastUke and AahubuU 5 in me foiuth 
quarter of "97, did you read any of me 
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for purpose of me 20 year smdy, is to 
look - is to do a forecast over a very 
long period of time and come up with a 
basic game plan in terms of what looks to 
be in me best interest of me customer 
but at the same time, as we had said at 
the time of that initui smdy that was 
first discussed in me first hearing, you 
know, the decisions that are made on a 
year by year basis or on an award by award 
basis needs to be based on me actual 
conditions in the coal raarket, EA market 
and all those factors that I've ulked 
about over me last several hours, that 
are present at me time because mat's 
reality. 

The smdy is a smdy and it's only a 
forecast. What's reality is what you 
actually have in your hand at the tirae 
you're going to raake a decision that you 
raake an award, and you ceruinly don't 
want to do soraething mat's going to 
penalize the customer because there's some 
proliferation in me coal market at the 
time you're going to make your decision to 
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the forecast. 
I'm also confused about one thing that's 

reaUy confusing to rae, and that's the 
idea that you don't consider the 
allowances that are needed to bum the 
high sulfur coal when you evaltute the 
bids that you receive. That's so 
confusing to rae. 

I don't understand how you could 
purchase six pound coal, six pound sulfur 
coal in phase one wimout considering the 
allowances needed to bum the coal. 
whemer you've got them banked or whether 
me coal supplier is going to supply them 
to you. 

And I don't understand how you can 
say, so I must be missing something so let 
me tiy asking it this way. 

How would you justify not considering 
the allowances that are bumed up by the 
use of the six pound sulfur coal? 
Okay. We do consider mose and I 

apologize. I must have not been clear in 
my previous discussion, but mere is a 
full consideration of me cost of 
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make an award. 
And mat's what we evaliuted aa fat 

as the every six monm fuel adjustment. 
what was me actual decisions that were 
made reUtive to what could have been made 
and were we doing me best for the 
customer during that time period? Still 
meeting aU me environmental reg lame* 
that have to be met and aU mose omer 
thing*. 
So me leaat cost plan wim me 20 year 

horizon mat's embodied in me *mdy that 
say* mat lower sulfur coal would be 
bumed at AahubuU and EastUke, would be 
overridden say, on a year to year basU 
baaed on A * evaluated cost of me coal; 
is that correct? 
Ye*, mat'* conect. I wouldn't u*e me 

word overridden, mough. You've got to 
make me proper economic decision under 
the reguUtion*, and award contracu baaed 
on evaluated cost. 

Sometimes mose may be different man 
what me long term plan says they could 
have been. Again, me long term plan is 
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allowance* when we do that evaluation that 
I've ulked about in my previou* 
di*cus*ions. It include* a full 
conaideration of me coct of mo*e 
allowances. 

You know, what's not considered is 
whemer we have to go buy new one* or use 
one* we have, okay, but we do consider the 
full cost or fuU value, whichever way you 
want to look at it, of mose allowances 
and make a direct comparison of mo*e 
cosu against low sulfur coaU which would 
not require the same amount of EA's, you 
know, to allow mem to be bumed. 
Okay. So what you don't consider is me 

source of me allowance, but you do 
consider the value of aUowance*? 
Ab*olutefy, mat'* conect. 
And I also believe you said that you 

weren't aware of - didn't consider me 
bank of allowance* mat you have going in 
when you make a fuel procurement decision. 
That you're not considering how many 
allowances you have in me bank. Wa* mat 
correct? 
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RICHARD HOAG, of lawfiil age. 
called by me Ohio Valley Coal Company 

for the purpose of testimony in the 
above matter being by me first duly swom. 
as hereinafter said as follows: 

EXAMINATION OF RICHARD HOAG 
BY MR. PERLIS: 1 
Q 
A 
Q 

A 
Q 
A 
Q 
A 
Q 

A 

Q 
A 

Good aftemoon, Mr. Hoag. 
Good aftemoon. 
For me record, you've sat through aU of 

me deposition of Mr. Kovach? 
That's conect. 
Bom pan*? 
Yes. 
And Mr. Stead's deposition, as weU? 
Conect. 
Thank you. Would you sute for me record 

what your job title is at Centerior 
Energy? 
I am the Production Sttategies Manager, 

and Emission AUowance Manager. 
And what, I'm sorry, me production? 
Sttategies Manager. 
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Q 

A 
Q 
A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 
A 
Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Yeah. And to whom do you report in those 
two roles? 
Eileen BuzzeUi, B-U-Z-Z-E-L-L-I. 
In bom mose roles? 
Yes. 
And do you know to whom she reporu wim 

respect to these items? 
Stan Szwed, S-Z-W-E-D. 
How long have you been me Production 

Sttategies Manager or performed mose 
function* under a different job 
description? 
Since mid January. 
Of what year? 
•97. 
And what was your position during calendar 

year 1996? 
If it'll make it briefer, during the smdy 

period, I was the Acting Manager of 
Resource Planning and the Emiasion 
AUowance Manager. 
And when you say during me smdy period. 

mat includes both me 1995 smdy and the 
1996 supplemental smdy? 
No, just for me 1996 update. I took over 
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Now I've given you some 
Utimde. 

MR. PERLIS: I intend to 
follow pretfy much along the same 
lines. I do not intend this 
inquiry to be even extensive or 
direct into the methodology, 
underlying daU, etc. I'm 
interested primarily in process in 
understanding roles, so wim mat. 
may I proceed with my question*? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Yes, you may 
and I would ask mat you come to 
some conclusion on mis quickfy. 

MR. PERLIS: I wiU try. 
[16] BY MR. PERLIS: | 
[17] Q 
[18] 
[19] 
[20] 
[21] 
[22] 
[23] 
[24] A 
[25] Q 

My understanding from me earUer 
depositions in this proceeding that we're 
focussed on me 1995 smdy was that mere 
was a committee of five including yourself 
mat worked at bringing mat smdy to 
fruition. And would you say mat's a fair 
characterization? 
Yes. 
And that mose individuate were yourself. 
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Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 
Q 

A 

In terms of developing the directives, if 
you wiU, the course of action for how the 
smdy was going to proceed, you basically 
formuUted that yourself? 
No. I used the same methodology that was 

used in me "95. 
I didn't - okay, but who made the 

decision to follow me same methodology as 
was used in 1995? 

I did. Because that was me same type of 
methodology in "92 and "95 and for 
consistency's sake, we did it for "96. 
I tmderstand. You say that what you did 

in 1996 was you sought updated information 
from the fuete and me rates departmenu. 
is mat correct, among other updated 
information mat you may have sought? 
That is conect. 
Were mere omer departmenu wimin 

Centerior mat you sought additional 
information from, daU in preparation of 
this 1996 smdy? 
Okay, information that we would have 

updated for mis smdy would have been me 
fuel pricing, me aUowance pricing, and 
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Mr. Kovach, Mr. - I believe it's Evans 
and Mr. Kroeger and Mr. Fink; is mat 
roughly -
That sounds about right, yes. 
Okay. Now when you undertook the work in 

the 1996 smdy, did you similarly have a 
committee or did you basically Uke most 
of the responsibiUfy that mat committee 
had and undertake it personaUy? 

MR. REGULINSKI: May I enter 
an objection? Just a moment, and 
give me wimess a chance to write 
down me five people who worked on 
the '95 smdy so he can recall 
mem-eonectfy. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 
MR. PERLIS: Okay. 
MR. REGULINSKI: Please 

continue with your questioning, or 
we can read me question back. 

(Record read.) 

I would have to say mat I'd undertook 
most of that responsibUify myself. 
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Q 
A 
Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 
Q 
A 
Q 

A 
Q 

me load forecast. 
Not system utUization? 
What do you mean by system utilization? 
The extent to which me generating plants 

were going to run. 
That would faU out as part of the load 

forecast. 
I see. Did you produce any or seek to 

produce any dau or information regarding 
projected wholesale sales of power or 
purchases of power in connection with me 
1996 smdy? 
No, I did not. That's not our 

standardized memodology for approaching 
smdies. We did everyming on a service 
territory, lutive load customer basis. 
Service territory, native load, and 

customer? 
No, service territory, native load. 
Basis? 
Right. 
And that's the methodology that you'd 

always followed in me past? 
Yes. 
Has the level of wholesale sales and 
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purchases been increasing for Centerior as 
a system? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
relevance.' Without waiving the 
objection, let me wimess answer. 

I couldn't answer that right now. I 
really don't know. 
But you said mat you were in charge of 

the wholesale sales for me company. 
MR. REGULINSKI: He didn't 

say that. I object. That's a 
very bad characterization of the 
earlier wimess's testimony. 

WeU, men let me rephrase the question 
this way. What u your re^Kinsibilify 
wim respect to wholesale sales and 
purchases in the company? 
I provide information to our wholesale 

power ttaders, our wholesale power 
marketers. They acnully make the deals 
and again, I've been doing that since 
January, early January of this year. 
You evaluate all of me deate, and see all 

of me deate? 
No, I provide mera information. 
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Q 

A 
Q 

A 

Q 

A 
Q 
A 
Q 
A 

Q 

A 

Other than mat, did you change the 
methodology in any way from me previous 
smdies? 
Not from the '95 smdy, no. 
And you did not seek omer information. 

Now as you sought that infomution, whom 
did you seek me fuel pricing infonnation 
from? 
We requested mat from the Fuel Supply and 

Planning section of procurement. 
And from whom did you receive me 

information? 
I believe it was Joe Lang. 
And the allowance pricing information? 
I provided mat. 
And the load forecasting information? 
That came from our iwft LirK mat was 

approved by the Commission in May of "96. 
And when you say the load forecast came as 

approved by me Commission, what does that 
mean? Was it a specific set of numbers as 
to what the load was going to be? 
We provide on an annual basU to the 

Commission a load forecast, and mat te 
worked up every year and submitted, and 
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So the power marketers have the aumorify 
to make deate for the company without your 
approval? 
Hiey have meir own person mat they 

repon to. 
Person? 
They do not repon to me. 
They repon to a person wimin C.E.I, or a 

person within me power marketing company? 
Within Centerior's wholesale power 

marketing. 
I see. When you say - when you consulted 

the wholesale power marketers, you mean 
Centerior wholesale power marketers? 
Yes. 
As opposed to outside third parfy power 

marketers? 
Conect. 
I misunderstood mat. So returning men 

to me mree items mat you sought 
additional information for in preparing 
the 1996 smdy, fuel pricing, allowance 
prices and load forecasu, those were the 
three areas you cited, conect? 
Conect. 
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Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

mey approved it, and men we incorporated 
it into our modete. 
And do you incorporate it as me only load 

forecast mat you look at or do you have a 
high, medium and low load forecast that 
were all equaUy approved? 
For thte smdy, it was me only one. 
And over what period did that load 

forecast run? 
It's a 20 year forecast. 
Now when you do your work to prepare load 

forecasts, when the company does iu work 
to prepare load forecasu, for let's say. 
submission to me Commission, you say they 
do mat on an annual basis. 
Yes. 
Do they run multiple computer modete and 

evaluation of possible load forecasu for 
projections? 
I reaUy don't know. 
From whom do you get me load forecast. 

just out of me pubUahed reportt and you 
don't - do yon not deal wim q>ecific -
did you not deal wim q>ecific individuate 
in preparing me "96 smdy? 
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I did not deal with a specific individual. 
Mr. Hoag, with respect to the fuel pricing 

information mat you received from 
Mr. Lang or omers from the Fuel 
Department, or the Planning Department, is 
all of the information that you received 
incorporated into me various Ubles, some 
of which were filed luder confidentUI 
seal in the 1996 smdy or was there 
substantial mformation that you looked at 
and chose not to include in the smdy? 

MR. REGULINSKI: May I have 
mat question re-read, please? 

(Record read.) 

MR. REGULINSKI: Can I ask a 
cUrification question? 
Substantial information not 
included, are you referencing 
loads information, or just fuel 
pricing information? 

MR. PERLIS: That was a very 
lengthy question. Perhaps I 
should just strike it and stan 
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raean that you did not request at that time 
from Mr. Lang in me Fuel Department fuel 
price projections for 6.0 pound coal for 
use at Eastiake? 
That te conect, because 6.0 pound coal if 

bumed exclusively would put us over our 
SIP limit which I believe is like 5.65. 
Now you've heard testimony earlier today 

by your colleague mat in 1996, and as 
reflected in supplemental reqionses to 
document production requesu, mat u 
1996, there was a mixture of fuete at 
EastUke. 

Why did you not request coal price 
projections for different mixes for mese 
different coate? 
Those coate were selected because it's the 

same ranges we have used in the '95 smdy 
and it was information that was avaiUble 
from me EVA smdy. 
Which EVA smdy te mte that you're 

referring to now? 
The one that the Fuel Procurement 

Department used in developing those 
numbers to provide to us. 
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[2] BY MR. PERLIS: 1 
[3] Q 
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Wim respect only to the fuel pricing 
information mat you received from 
Mr. Lang and me Planning Department, did 
they submit to you infomution mat te not 
included in me various ubles that were 
submitted under seal in mte case? 
I'U answer it by saying mat me Fuel 

Supply Planning group provided the 
information we requested which te me fuel 
pricing. If mey provided more, I'm not 
aware of it because the dau did not come 
directfy to me. 
So looking^t Uble number 2, not under 

seal in me smdy, it's me delivered coal 
cost plus me S02 cost for the EastUke 
pUnt. The deUvered coal cost which 
would have come from Mr. Lang and others. 
The only numbers mat you would have 
requested from them would have been for 
1.2, 1.6, 2.5, 3.8 pound foal? 
Yes. 
And under 6.0 you have NA, not appUcable, 

because of the SIP limiution. Does mat 
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Q 

A 

Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 

So when you got fuel pricing information. 
were you getting two separate seU? One 
from Mr. Lang or one was from EVA or was 
it mat Mr. I jing took EVA's and men gave 
you a Centerior fuel price forecast mat 
was based on me EVA numbers? 
Okay, Mr. Lang took me EVA smdy, applied 

hte knowledge to it and gave us me fuel 
price forecast that we used. 

You did not independentiy evaluate the EVA 
numbers? 
No, I did not. I've never seen it. 
You have no knowledge as to whether the 

EVA numbers are based on long terra coal 
conttacu, q>ot contracu, etc.? 
That te conect. 
So again, you felt that in preparing me 

1996 smdy, mat mere was no need for you 
to go outside the bounds of me prior 
study, and aU that was required wa* to 
update the precise factual dau that had 
been included in mat prior smdy? 
That te conect. Based on me years of 

planning that we've done through me Clean 
Air Act up mrough "95, and updating thte 
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smaU portion of our pUn. 
And do you know whether EVA updated their 

fuel price forecast between the 1995 smdy 
and the 1996 smdy? 
No, I do not. 
And did you ask Mr. Lang to make sure mat 

he was relying on up to date figures? 
When I go to a gentleman and ask him to 

provide me a fuel price forecast, what he 
gives me te my up to date numbers. 
Did you have a budget for the preparing 

the Supplemenul Fuel Switching Smdy? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 

Relevance. 
MR. PERLIS: I want to know 

whether or not it was budgeted to 
reuin outside consultants to work 
on me 1996 smdy. 

MR. REGULINSKI: We provided 
req>onses to that already. I'U 
allow thte question but I don't 
think I'U aUow anyming more on 
mte. You may answer mte 
question. 

Let me expUin our budget procedures done 
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A 
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A 

Q 

A 
Q 
A 

Q 

recaU how long it took from when the 
commitment iiist staned meeting to when 
the repon was fintehed? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
relevance. Wimout waiving me 
objection, I'U allow me wimess 
to answer. 

No, I don't remember the time span. 
Do you believe mat working on me 1996 
smdy, you spent more or less time man 
the group ^ent in 1995? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Same 
objection. Without waiving, the 
wimess can answer. 

WeU, since I can't remember how long it 
took in "95,1 reaify can't say whether it 
was more or less now. 
Do you remember how much time it took you 

in 1996 to work on the smdy? How many 
man hours you put in on the smdy? 
I would only be guessing. 
I'm willing to enterUin yoin guess. 
Just wimin my group onfy, I would say 

maybe 160 man hours. 
Now, you took me numbers from fuel 
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in September, October, November. I took 
over in July. Whemer mere wa* money 
included or not, I cannot definitely 
answer and normally that kind of money 
would not be budgeted at my level. That 
would be done in anomer area. In mte 
case, specifically down in Fuel 
Procurement to update a fuel smdy. 
But you made no request of Fuel 

Procurement to retain outside consultanu 
to update me outside consultant's smdy? 
I made a request to Fuel Procurement to 

provide me wim updated numbers for the 
supplemental smdy. 
And however mey chose to do that, mey 

could have chosen to rely on me older 
smdy and just adjusted it from their own 
knowledge of the fuel price market and 
mey could have gone out and hired an 
outaide consultant to have done it; it was 
entirely up to them and you didn't inquire 
as to how mat was done? 
That te conect. 
Now when you worked on the 1995 smdy as 

pan of that committee of five, do you 
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pricing, your group came up wim me 
allowance numbers, and you took me load 
forecast numbers out of me LTFR. Why did 
it Uke even 50 hours to do the smdy? 

MR. REGin.INSKI: I'U object. 
come on. He said mte was a 
guess. He said maybe he'd be 
guessing on the number. 

I'll rephrase me question. What was the 
bulk of me 160 hours q>ent on or whatever 
me number of hours was, what was me bulk 
of it spent on? Producing me aUowance 
forecasu? 
No, you have dau requesu, you receive 

me dau, enter me dau, evaluate 
production ruiu, evaluation. 
When you say evaluate the dau, in what 

sense did your office evaluate the dau 
mat you received from fuel pricing or 
load forecasting? 
WeU, you want to make sure mat the -

mat if the dau te ttending upwards. 
somewhere in the middle, you don't have a 
bogus point that comes down and goes back 
up so it's inq>ection of me dau. 
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A 
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A 

Q 

A 

Q 
A 

Q 

Basically a qualify check, just to see 
that the curve looked Uke it was going in 
the right direction? 
Right. 
Considering that, whemer the number's 160 

hours or 100 hours, did it Uke more than 
a couple of hours to evaluate Mr. Lang's 
d a u to see that it looked like it was 
constetent? Did your office evaluate it 
for any more than an hour or two? 
Again specifically, I can't answer that 

because Mr. Lang's d a u did not come to 
me. It came to a gentleman who worked for 
me. 
So it's possible it went back and forth to 

Mr. Lang a few times? 
Oh, very weU could have. I don't know if 

that's conect or not. 
Who te mte gendeman who worked for you? 
Rob Maninko. 

MR. REGULINSKI: M-A-R-T-
I-N-K-O. 

Now wim respect to me aUowaiKe price 
forecasts mat you produced in your own 
department, conect? 
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Emissions Exchange, and I think the 
publication te me Clean Air Compliance 
Review publication, the EATX, as well as 
market conucu that I've developed 
through being in the position for over 
four years. 
In 1995 with the emission allowance 

forecast, what was that based upon, me 
one used in the 1995 smdy? 

I believe mat was based on an EVA 
forecast that mey prepared for us. 
And did that mm out to i>e accurate or 

off by a fut degree? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 

Relevance. 
Very shon run? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
relevance. Wimout waiving the 
objection, I'U let me wimess 
answer. 

I can't reaify *ay as if I went back and 
CMnpared the market to what Aeir forecast 
was. 
If mey project a fell in 1994, would have 

i>een when they did me projection. 
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A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 

Yes. 
Did you produce mat personally or did you 

rely on others wimin your department to 
produce it? 
No, I produced mat myself. 
Did you rely on omer people wimm your 

department for factual infonnation mat 
you utilized in nuking mat forecast? 
No. 
So you brought to bear your experience 

since 1993 on what you knew about the 
allowance market in coming up wim mat 
allowance price forecast? 
Conect. 
And you did not reuin any outside 

consultant to prepare an allowance price 
forecast for you? 
No. 
Did you look at third parfy projections of 

allowance prices in reaching your 
assessment of future allowance prices? 
Yes, I did. 
Can you teU me whose projections you 

looked at? 
I used Canter Fitzgerald as one source. 
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conect? Did mey project that there 
would be any fall in allowance price* 
between men and 1997? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Thte te for 
me "95 smdy? 

MR. PERLIS: Yes. 
MR. REGULINSKI: Same 

objection. Wimout waiving it. 
Mr. Hoag, you can answer. 

I iton't believe their forecast indicated a 
downward ttend. 
At that time, did you have any reason to 

project for me company's purpose*, that 
mere would be a decline ia emission 
aUowance prices? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Thte te stiU about the '95 smdy? 

MR. PERLIS: Yes, it te. 
MR. REGULINSKI: That's 

enough. 
MR. PERLIS: It's going to 

the relevance of reUabiUfy of 
smdies. 

MR. REGULINSKI: Yes, but 
your wimess has admitted under 
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oath that me forecasu prepared 
are not unreasonable, and I have a 
protective order precluding review 
anafyste, underlying daU and 
smdies in me '95 smdy. 

MR. PERLIS: We're not asking 
the queation as to whether me 
forecast itself was reaaonable or 
unreasonable as a forecast. We're 
asking whether it mmed out to be 
accurate after me fact. 

MR. REGULINSKI: And me '95 
smdy te not relevant to the "96 
smdy. There was a stipuUtion on 
the '95 smdy. I've given you 
Utimde on the "95 smdy but I've 
got a protective order on me '95 
smdy. 

MR. PERLIS: I'll rephrase 
me question in anomer way then 
to avoid mte. 

[22] BY MR. PERLIS: | 
[23] Q 
[24] 
[25] 

Mr. Hoag, you have at least four years of 
experience from 1993 mrough now, 1997, on 
emission aUowance forecasu. Have you 
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As you've looked at all the prior 
ones, had any of them projected a decline 
in allowance prices for the coming year or 
two or mree? 
AU of the previous forecasu mat I've 

ever seen going back to me signing of the 
Clean Air Act where it said $800, and then 
scrabber price* came down to $600 and then 
down to $400, everyming has been ttending 
down. 
Now that's the actual prices? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Forgive rae. 
I don't know if me wimess has 
completed hte sutement and I 
would ask the - I would ask mat 
me attomey wait until me 
wimess has completed hte answer 
before following up wim another 
question. 

[20] BY MR. PERLIS: | 
21] Q 
[22] 
[23] A 
[24] 
[25] 

Excuse me, and please interrapt me if I 
interropt you. 
Those forecasu had been ttending down. 

When we got me EVA forecast, it was 
showing an increase. We went with that 
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Q 
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Q 
A 
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A 
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been preparing annual forecasts each year 
for intemal use here at Centerior? 
Okay, the first forecast mat was used 

with my knowledge because there were ones 
before me, and I can't attest to any of 
their validity, but the first one mat we 
used was the EVA in December of "94. 
And have there been subsequent forecasts 

that you have developed intenully here? 
Yes, I have developed mem internally on a 

periodic or as needed baste dq>ending upon 
what was being smdied. 
Have mere been omer needs man just me 

Supplemenul Fuel Switching Smdy for such 
projection*4o be made? 
Yes. 
And you've always done them yourself? 
Conect. 
You haven't retained omer outside parties 

like you did wim EVA that first time? 
No, mey've ahways been intemal. 
Now as you've Uken aU mose allowance 

projections and forecasu together, do you 
find that mey are - or let me strike 
mat. 
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forecast. Then in "95, based on my 
knowledge of me market, based on 
allowance prices, it was decided to go 
wim our own forecast, and not even in our 
forecast, do we show a decline down. 
In fact, are you aware of Canter 

Fitzgerald or Emission Exchange or the 
other Clean Air Compliance, EATX that 
you've refened to, are you aware of any 
of them having forecasted the decline in 
emission allowance prices that actuaUy 
occuned in 1996? 
That occuned in "96? 
"95 and "%, between me time of the first 

smdy and the time of me second one. 
Long term forecasu, no. Short term, yes. 
Did any - so you are aware of some having 

projected a reduction short term, even 
mough EVA didn't show that in their 
smdy? 
Right. 
Now wim respect to me load forecast mat 

you've gotten out of me 1996 LTFR 
approved by me Commission in 1996, mat 
load forecast teUs - in what way did you 
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use that load forecast? 
I don't see a chart or any uble that 

says load forecaat me way I do for 
allowance prices or coal prices. How did 
you use the load forecast? 
Well, the load forecast gives you a 

projected peak for me month in the energy 
for the month, and men you use that to 
project generation at each plant. 

And what use did you make out of that in 
the 1996 Supplemenul Fuel Switching 
Smdy? 
Well, mat was the load we used for the 

analyste to corae up wim a generation for 
each plant, me fuel mat was bumed at 
each pUnt and be uken back out to get 
the amount of S02 generated and allowances 
needed. 
So te it fair to say that me exclusive 

use of me load forecast information was 
to generate uble 5, me projected system 
EA bank? 

MR. REGULINSKI: May we see 
5, please? 
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Does it affect me delivered coal cost? 
It may affect delivered coal cost but 

those are evaluated cosu in the Uble. 
Right. What does evaluated coal cost 

constet of? Is it not simply me sum of 
delivered coal cost plus me S02 cost? 

MR. REGULINSKI: We've had 
two wimesses speak of evaluated 
coal prices prior to Mr. Hoag 
being deposed from the Procurement 
Department. 

MR. PERLIS: Right, because 
that was our understanding but 
mte te the man who everyone has 
told me te the one who did me 
smdy, and mte te what's in me 
Uble. I'm asking him to expUin 
whether me evaliuted coal price 
in mte smdy te anyming more 
than the sum of what's suted in 
me top of me Uble, delivered 
coal cost plus S02 cost. 

MR. REGULINSKI: I was 
wondering if you were going back 
to the previotu depositions 
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(Record read.) 

That was one of me uses. I would not say 
exclusive. 
Can you tell me what other uses, useages 

were made of the load forecast? 
I just didn't want my response to be 

exclusive. There could be others but I 
don't recall what mey are. 

Looking at Uble* 1 to 4 in the smdy, was 
it used at all in producing mose numbers? 
It would definitefy not have been used for 

Uble 1. More than likely was used 
assocuted wim ubles 2, 3 and 4. 
How migh»4t have been used for ubles 2, 

3 and 4? 
It would be used to arrive at me numbers 

for those ubles based on the generation. 
So ubles 2, 3 and 4 show that the 

delivered coal cost plus the S02 cost for 
different pounds of S02 coal. 

Does the load forecast affect me S02 
cost, me allowance cost mat you would 
have used or just me delivered coal cost? 
It does not affect me S02 cost. 
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clarified, thank you. 
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Just for purposes of mte smdy, me 
evaluated coal price that appears in thte 
smdy, te it simpfy me sum of the 
delivered coal cost plus me S02 cost? 
If delivered on mat Uble includes 

ttanq>orUtion, yes, but otherwise, you 
have to include transporution also. 
So delivered coal cost itself has two 

componenu; one te transporution and one 
te me mine cost? 
Mm-hmm. 
And in what sense does me load forecast 

affect eimer component of me deUvered 
coal cost? 

MR. REGULINSKI: May I have 
me question re-read, please? 

. . . 
(Record read.) 

. . . 
MR. REGULINSKI: Perhaps it 

helps to review what was me 
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either in that question. 
MR. SIEGFRIED: Excuse me. 

Mr. Perlte. Thte te Stiun, with 
me suff. T just wanted to let 
you know mere te anomer 
gentleman with me suff, Mr. Ray 
Sttom te here as weU. He's wim 
me Commission sUff also. 

MR. PERLIS: Thank you. 
. . . 

(Record read.) 
. . . 

In Ubles 2, 3 and 4, me - I was 
inconect in saying that me load forecast 
would impact mose Ubles. That te 
delivered cost, plus S02, plus 
ttansporution only. 
Delivered cost meaning FOB mine, plus 

ttanqiorution, plus S02 cosu? 
Conect. 
And the load forecast, now that you've 

re-assessed the question, did not affect 
the entries in me smdy for me delivered 
coal cost ttansporution and S02 cost? 
Conect. 
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(Record read.) 
. . . 

It does uke into account native load, and 
it does grow at an escaUted rate. 
In fact, during me last 12 monms of 

1996, did me load grow for C.E.I, at all 
or did it contract, do you know? 
I do not know mat. 
Did you Uke into account at aU the 

emergence of competition in bom the 
reuU and wholesale markeu in preparing 
the 19% smdy? 
No, I did not. 
Why not? 
I didn't feel that it was necessary to do 

mat for our planning smdy, for mte 
supplemenul smdy. 
Are you familiar with FERC Order 888? 
I have heard of it. 
Have you heard of me Mega-NOPER that 

preceded it that had been publtehed before 
your October smdy was submitted? 
Yes, I had heard of it. 
So you were aware at the time mat 
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So men te it me case men that me load 
forecast reaify only affected uble 5 
which was the projected bank? 
Yes. 
And there were no omer Uble* attached to 

the smdy. Were there omer factual 
Ubles mat were prepared by you in the 
course of preparing mte smdy mat were 
not appended to me smdy, and not 
submitted to me Commission? 
I do not beUeve so. 
Now wim reapect to me load forecast, you 

said that that - I think we earUer in 
thte deposition, you suted mat mat was 
based on thcservice territory and me 
native load of me utiUfy. 
Yes. 
Does mat load forecast and merefore, me 

emission allowance bank on which it's 
based, does that Uke into account 
possible changes in me size of native 
load in me fumre, or does it assume a 
fixed native load or one mat grows at a 
constant escaUted rate? 
Could you read that again, please? 
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you were preparing mte smdy, mat FERC 
was going to propose rales that would 
provide much more opportunify for 
wholesale power competition? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection on 
two grounds. One te relevance and 
two te characterization. The 
wimess has indicated that he had 
heard about me Mega-NOPER and he 
had heard about the Rule 888. 

BY MR. PERLIS: 
Q I'U resute the question. When you say 

you had heard about mem, did you 
understand that mat was going to have any 
affect on me wholesale power market that 
C.E.I, would confront? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Furmer 
objection on relevance. Wimout 
waiving me objection, I'll let 
me wimess answer. 

. . . 
(Record read.) 

. . . 
A Again, if you're ulking wholesale power 

sales, our smdy dealt with native load. 
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That te not wholesale power sales. 
But by native load then, you mean the 

demand that consumere within your service 
territory pUce upon the system for power? 
Conect. 
And so you assume that that te entirely 

satisfied out of system generation? 
For the purposes of the smdy, yes. 
And do you believe that during the period 

of 1997 mrough 1999, that an increasing 
percenuge of the consumer load might be 
satisfied out of power purchased from 
other suppliers' generation facilities? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Relevance. Without waiving the 
objection, I'll let me wimess 
answer. 

That could or could not happen. 
Are you aware of any developmenu mat 

might cause it to happen? Any factors 
that would tend to increase the 
imporution of power by Centerior to 
satisfy iu native load? 
No. 
Would Centerior be obUgated to import 
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be entirely purchased power but it could 
be increasing percenuges of purchasing 
power versus generated power? 
Yes. 
And those percenuges could vary over 

time? 
Conect. 
With the emergence of - do you agree mat 

mere's been - that there te now emerging 
a much more vibrant wholesale power 
market? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Relevance. Wimout waiving me 
objection, the wimess can answer. 

At times, mere te, ye*. 
Does that provide perhaps opportunities 

for C.E.I, to seU power in me wholesale 
market more often man it may have in me 
past? 
We have power traders and power marketers 

that are out mere trying to seU our 
power on a day to day baate. 
And in doing a 20 year emiasion aUowance 

bank forecast, why did you not underuke 
some anafyste of what me likely effecu 
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power if it could do so at cheaper costs 
than it could do so by generating from iu 
own uniu? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Cm we 
clarify obligated for reuU 
ciutomers? Obligated for 
wholesale customers? 

Yes. For iu reuU customers, for its 
native load, if Centerior te able to 
satisfy mat native load more cheaply by 
buying power from others, te it generally 
obligated to try to do that, in lieu of 
running iu own generation uniu? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 
to relevance. Wimout waiving the 
objection, I'U let me wimess 
answer. 

It te our policy to provide me power to 
our customers at me cheapest least cost 
possible. 

If mat's generation plus purchase 
power or generation only, whichever way. 
that's me way we do it. 
Or purchase power onfy, in some cases. 

WeU, never - you're saying it will never 
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of competition both in me wholesale and 
reuU markeu would be? 
Again, our smdy addresses native load 

system requiremenu onfy. Wholesale power 
sales are not included, unless mey are 
known and contracted and signed at me 
time and in place. 
In your capacify of reviewing and working 

wim the wholesale power marketing people 
in me company, do you get me sense mat 
me company beUeve* that me wholesale 
power market te going to be more active 
for C.E.I, over the next 20 years? 
Potentully. 
What about at the retaU level? Do you 

foresee mat mere may be retail 
competition for your native load customers 
in me next 20 years? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
scope and relevance. Wimout 
waiving the objection, I'U let 
the wimess answer. 

There may be. 
Are you familiar with efforu made by a 

number of omer states to open up meir 
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markets, reuil markets to competition? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Same 

objection. Wimout waiving, let 
the wimess answer. 

On a gross baste, I am, yes. 
Are you aware mat Federal legteUtion te 

expected to be inttoduced and seriously 
debated thte year? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objectioii. 
That would give an impetus to retail 

competition? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 

No, I am not aware of mat. 
If reuU competition does come for Ohio 

as weU as omer neighboring sutes, I 
assume Centerior would be able to try to 
sell power to omer customers' native 
load, omer utilities' native load? 

MR. REGULINSKI: I'll have a 
continuing objection to reuU 
competition, so I won't have to 
continue to interropt, but me 
record will note a continuing 
objection to mte line of 
questioning as inelevant. 
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planu? 
MR. REGULINSKI: May I have 

that question again, please? 

(Record read.) 

MR. REGULINSKI: I'll note 
for me record mat not only did 
me Examiner grant a motion for 
protective order on me "95 
Environmenul CompUance Plan but 
also granted a motion for 
protective order on me analytical 
memodology, underlying d a u and 
smdies and altenutives and 
scenarios and coiKlusions of each 
for the May 30, 1996 long term 
forecast repon. 

And while I have again 
permitted substantial leeway into 
questions that are reUted to the 
long term forecast repon, which 
includes not only load growth 
forecasu, but ateo includes how 
me company wiU meet mat load 

PAGE 50 
(1 
(2 
( 3 
( 4 
(5 
(6 
[7] 
(8 
( 9 
[10 
(11 
(12 
[131 
[14 
[15 
[16 
[17 
[18 
[19 
(20 
(21 
(22 
[231 
[241 
[25] 

A 

Q 

A 
0 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 
A 
Q 

Without waiving mat objection. 
I'll let me wimess answer. 

As Mr. Kovach suted earUer, if you're 
going to come pUy on my baseball field. 
I'm going to come pUy on your basebaU 
field. 
And when you go to pUy on mese basebaU 

fields, are you going to be pUying 
basically on cost and service? 

I would mink that might be me -
Do you mmk me least cost suppliers of 

power are likely to have an upper hand in , 
the competitive marketplace? 
I would think so. 
When you-undertook your smdy, did you 

underuke any evaluation as to whemer or 
not me Centerior planu were below 
average in cost compared to omer regional 
electric generation facUities? 
No, I did not. 
You did not see me need to do that? 
No. 
Now in underuking the load forecast, does 

Centerior consider possible retirement or 
reduction in utilization of particular 
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growm for generation planning. I 
don't beUeve it's appropriate and 
me Examiner I beUeve also agrees 
it's not appropriate and so I 
would ask that the attomey wrap 
up hte 1996 LTFR questions and I 
would object to thte question but 
permit the wimess to answer. 

MR. PERLIS: Just for me 
record, counsel would like to 
remind Mr. Regulinski that our 
view, of course, te rather 
different of paragraph 7 of the 
Order, but the wimess has been 
instructed to answer me question. 

MR. REGULINSKI: I 
understand. 

THEWITNF^SS: May I please 
ask for it to be re-read? 

(Record read.) 

The utilization or reduction or retirement 
of planu te not an input to me load 
forecast. The load forecast - mose 
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might be outpuu from it, but the load 
forecast te not dependent upon our cunent 
generation. 
The emission allowance bank mat's 

projected in table 5, doe* that depend 
upon me degree of system utilization of 
each of me pUnU wimin me Centerior 
system? 
Yes. 
Did you underuke a smdy in preparing me 

allowance bank in number 5? Do you 
prepare any analyste of the company's 
plans with respect to general - the 
utilization of generating facilities? 
Table 5 reflecu any changes that were 

raade at the time of the smdy to 
Centerior's generation and then those 
would be reflected in mte uble as a 
difference compared to me "95 uble. 
Does me allowance bank forecast. 

therefore, not uke into account the 
company's announced plans to reduce 
utilization of several of me coal fired 
uniu? 
Table 5 does reflect the announcement for 
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And how did you decide what me toul 
consumption or output of electricify was 
going to be during each of mose years? 
That comes from me load forecast. 
So te there anyming omer man me load 

forecast that was relied upon in producing 
Uble 5? 
I guess I don't understand what you're 

driving at or -
Does the load forecast conuin an ouqiut 

of system electricify production? 
The load forecast, no. 
So where does mat come from? You Uke 

me number of kilowatt hours to be 
consumed a* your load and what do you do 
to that to come up wim me emission 
allowance? 
It's run mrough a production costing 

model. 
Who did the runs on me production cost 

model? 
Personnel in my area. 
And how many runs did mey do to come up 

wim the emission allowance bank? 
I reaUy don't know how many ran* they 

PAGE 54 
[1] 
[2] Q 
( 3 
[4 A 
[ 5 
(6 
(7 
(8 
( 9 
(10 Q 
[11 
[12 
(13 
[14 A 
[15 
[1«J1 Q 
[17 
(18 
[19 
(20 
[21 
[22 A 
[23 
[24 
[25] 

the changes at AshubuU and FjistUke. 
Which changes are mose you're referring 

to? 
In the fall of last year, we 

decommissioned two uniu at Ashubula C 
plant, and we momballed a mird unit at C 
plant, and there's potential cycUng 
activify at EastUke for weekends for one 
unit. 

And aU mose effects were incorporated 
into the load forecast output and the 
emission aUowance bank forecast in 
Uble 5? 
Reflected in mte Uble but again, mose 

have nomiaLto do wim me toad forecast. 
So you took the load forecast - in making 

Uble 5, you took me load forecast and 
then you factored in ceruin - what etee 
did you factor in men besides me load 
forecast to come up wim the Uble 5 
emission aUowance bank? How did you -
You have your starting year allowances. 

you have your carry over from the previotu 
year, subttact out your consumption for 
that calendar year. 
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did. 
Did mey do extensive sensitivify anafyste 

on any particular factors that would 
affect me size of the emission allowance 
bank? 
The sensitivify mat was done was me 

various sulfur levete as indicated through 
Ubles 2, 3 and 4. 
Other man me sulfur levete, for each — 

mey tiid me sulfur levete, so in other 
words - weU, actualfy, it's a good -

MR. REGULINSKI: Mr. Perlte, 
we've been going at it for two and 
a half hours. I* mte a good 
time, or do you want to keep going 
before a break? 

MR. PERLIS: I'm happy to 
Uke a break if me wimeas wanu 
one. 

MR. REGULINSKI: U t * Uke a 
five minute break. 

MR. PERLIS: That's fine. 

(Shon recess had.) 
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Mr. Hoag, let's continue if we might. 
All right. 
I'd Uke to remm to the manner in which 

you constructed uble 5 in the smdy. 
Again, I'm not asking for me 

specific numbers but the memodology that 
was used in constructing me Uble. 

You say you took the load forecast 
output for system demand for kilowatt 
hours, te that conect? And men you ran 
some modete. 

Could you expUin in a little bit 
more deuU what you did to the ouqiut 
from the load forecast to come up wim me 
column of emission allowances mat we see 
in Uble 5? 
Okay. To get me projected system EA 

bank, you surt wim initial allocation 
for each year. You subttact from mat 
your allowances or your S02 generated 
which te equivalent to EA's. 

One ton of S02 te equal to one 
allowance. The S02 generated or me EA's 
consumed te the output from a production 
costing model which utilizes me load 
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monthly energy mat will be consumed, or 
generated. 

The production costing model telte 
you how that energy te going to be 
dispatched mroughout the month. 
Okay. We'U get to the diqiatching, but I 

just want to focus on what you caUed 
originally the load duration curve. 

Does that constet of any judgment or 
adjustments made in your office to the 
load forecast? 
No, it does not. 
So you get thte monmiy peak energy 

generated, and then you have to determine 
from which planu that generation te going 
to come, and the reason you have - the 
wimess te shaking hte head yes - and te 
me reason you have to determine that so 
mat you can men determine which planu 
wiU be operating and what meir emissions 
wiU be when they're so operating? 
Would you read that back, please? 

(Record read.) 
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duration curve to come up wim specific 
generation for each plant, and men it 
gives you specific sulfur consumed. 
Thank you. For my help, I'd Uke to break 

that down into pieces. 
MR. PERLIS: Could I ask me 

court reponer to read back 
starting wim me output of me 
production costing model? 

(Record read.) 

When you speak of the load duration curve. 
I Uke it mat te me consumer demand in 
kilowatt hoHss over time that was me 
output from the load forecast? 
Yes. 
Are any adjustmenu made to me load 

forecast as approved by me Commission to 
come up with a load duration curve, or you 
just Uke the numbers out of me load 
forecast and it's one unique load duration 
curve? 
The load forecast gives you me - I 

believe it's the monmfy peak and me 
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A 

I'm not sure I fuUy understand the 
question. 
ShaU I try to rephrase it? 
Please. 
I'm not as artful here m me terminology 

as you are, so please bear wim me and 
we'U get it right. I'U try to get it 
right. 

You said before that you utUize the 
load duration curve in me production 
costing model to come up wim specific 
generation for each plant. 
Conect. 
Why - what do you do when you get the 

specific generation from each plant to 
produce thte table? 
The plants in me model are dispatched 

hour by hour. That telte you how much 
coal te bumed. 

You have your assumption for what 
value of sulfur coal te being used. That 
allows you to say for that generation, you 
consumed so many tons of coal at a certain 
sulfur level, and men you can back mto 
what the amount of S02 generated te for 
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Q 

A 

the month. 
And then you add up the toul S02 

generated, and you determine how many 
allowances would'therefore be consumed in 
that period of time by me company? 
Conect. 
Okay. Now in applying these production 

costing modete to determine which 
generating facUities are gomg to run. 
that's what you mean by a diq>atch model. 
conect? 
Conect. 
Now mte dispatch model, te thte a 

dispatch model that makes predictions for 
20 years, or te it son of a cunent 
dispatch model that telte you what would 
happen today imder certain circumstances? 
Thte model te a model that we use mat 

wiU do for the next 20 years. It can 
look ahead 20, 30, 40 years. 
What are me major factors in the 

production costing model mat determine 
which generating facilify te going to be 
dispatched? 
There are several. Number one, being fuel 
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Q 

PROMOD for me right to use me model? 
I believe it's a lease, yes. 
Do you make modifications to PROMOD that 

are only Centerior specific or do you uke 
PROMOD me way it te provided to all the 
other utilities and use it as received? 
Use it as received, but me PROMOD input. 

it has to be customized to your corporate 
situation. 

And among me inputt would be fuel prices. 
including transporution, allowance 
prices, ouuge schedules, and wholesale 
power sales? 
Those are some of mem, yes. 
Are mere any other major inpuu that you 

have to customize? 
Their program, the instruction manual te 

three volumes about mat mick. 
(Indicating.) 
I'm asking in general terms, I'm asking in 

general terms what are me major factors. 
the major inpuu that have significant 
effecu. If you were to give a Itet of 
the top ten, you've given me four here, 
what else would be on me Itet? 
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price which includes the ttansporution. 
allowance price, ouUge scheduling, any 
wholesale power sales that you might have. 
Those are me big ones mat I can mink of 
right now. 
Let's sun wim me last one, wholesale 

power sales. 
Before I do mat, me production 

costing model which you are referring to. 
te mte a proprietary model of a mird 
party? 
Yes, it te. 
And would mat be PROMOD? 
Conect. 
And that'ajpelled for me court reporter. 

P-R-O-M-O-D, aU caps? 
Right. 
And does Centerior lease me model so to 

speak to do - does Centerior run me 
model itself or does it rely on me third 
parties to run the - proprietor of PROMOD 
to run me model? 
We run the model. 
And you do mat under some sort of fee 

anangement, where you pay the owner of 
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I would mink mose four would be 
sufficient. 
Okay. Let's stan wim wholesale power 

sales, if we might. When you nude or when 
your department made me inpuu for 
wholesale power sales, who decided what 
me wholesale power sales were going to be 
as an input into me model? 
Again, if mere was no existing sale on 

contract mat was not already included in 
me load forecast, we would have included 
it, but there were not any. 
I don't understand me response. Let me 

ask it in piece* again. Are you saying 
mat whatever wholesale sales mere were 
Uken into account in me load forecast? 
That's conect. 
And mere were some wholesale sales Uken 

into account in me load forecaat? 
For which mere are long term contracu. 

yes. 
And those are different wholesale 

conttacu man may have existed back for 
the January, "95 smdy? 
They could be. I don't know specifically. 
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Going forward now for the 20 year pUnning 
horizon, do you assume any changes in the 
wholesale power conttacu going forward 
for the 20 years, ~br do you just Uke me 
conttacu that were in place as of mat 
time? 
I took the conttacu in place as of mat 

time, and as I said before, me smdy. 
dealt men wim strictly system native 
load. 
WeU, when you say the smdy dealt with. 

by that you mean that me way in which you 
provided inpuu into the production 
costing model just used me native 
forecasting load and made no adjustments 
for increases or decreases in wholesale 
sales in me future mat were not already 
committed in contract? 
Conect. 
Okay. Did you do any sensitivify analyste 

that would have indicated what would have 
happened if you assumed a five or a ten 
percent increase in wholesale sales? 
No, I did not. 
Or wholesale purchases? Did you do any 
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So if you do the planning from the five 
year increments, whatever the first five 
years te, you just assume that that wiU 
be replicated in each of me next five 
year segmenu that make up me 20 year 
period roughly? 
Approximatefy. It's not exactly five for 

five. 
With respect to allowance prices, in what 

sense are aUowances prices an input into 
the generation production costing model? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Pardon me. 
Mr. PerUs. Have you given any 
consideration on hiring an expert 
on PROMOD to asstet you in 
development of your case? 

MR. PERLIS: I don't believe 
I have to answer that question. 

MR. REGin^INSKI: We could 
spend me rest of me day here 
expUining how PROMOD works to you 
or you could hire yourself an 
expert who could sit down and 
expUm for a fee how PROMOD works 
and how utilities work PROMOD. 
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sensitivity analyste of changes in 
wholesale purchases? 
No. 
So in effect, you made no real adjustmenu 

of your own for wholesale power sale* as 
an input into me production costing 
model. You took what you got from me 
load forecast? 
Conect. 
Outage scheduUng, expUin what you mean 

by the input for outage scheduling. 
On an annual baste, aU of our turban 

generators, boiler equipment need 
maintenance, bom short term and long 
term. We .plan mat on a four year cycUng 
or five year or three year maintenance 
cycle. 

So in a calendar year, you might have 
a specific maintenance cycle coming up. 
That aU has to be input for I beUeve we 
do a five year pUnning horizon for 
q>ecific ouuge schedules. After that, it 
just goes mto a cycle mode mat thte unit 
te going to have mree weeks mte year. 
three weeks five years from now. 
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MR. PERLIS: I'm asking thte 
gentleman how he approached me 
utiUzation of PROMOD in preparing 
me smdy and me ou^ut in 
Uble 5. 

MR. REGULINSKI: And if you 
had mte expert, these questions 
would Uke a lot shorter time. 
You don't know me first thing 
about PROMOD, you don't know the 
first ming about system dispatch 
and that's apparent from your 
questions. 

Now if you had an expert 
instead of wasting our time with a 
court reporter expUining to you 
what PROMOD te, how it works, what 
dispatch te, what a generation 
ouuge te -

MR. PERLIS: I think I didn't 
Uke very much time on wholesale 
power sales. I'm not going to 
Uke very much time on the other 
ftwtors. There are onfy two more 
to go. 
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Now in allowance prices, Mr. Hoag, could 
you expUin to me how generally the 
production costing model take* allowance 
prices into account as an input? 
Allowances for every - we enter the 

forecast that I create into the daubase. 
and then for every allowance that's 
generated, it's charged that forecasted 
rate for that year. 
And me purpose for that te that you're 

trying to get an all-in or an excltisive or 
what you might caU an evaluated price? 
Conect. 
For fuel and the allowance and so that 

fuel price would be ttansporution and me 
mine moum cosu, and men you add me 
allowances? 
Conect. 
And men you come up with an all-in cost 

of nmning each of the particular 
generation uniu, and me production 
costing model te supposed to schedule them 
so that the least cost one would run fint 
and men going up to me next highest cost 
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(Record read.) 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 
to relevance. Wimout waiving me 
objection, let the wimess expUin 
how PROMOD works to me attomey. 

If any plant has an existing fuel 
conttact, just like mese were for 
AshubuU and EastUke, the same 
memodology te used to come up with the 
delivered cost, plus S02 mere as was used 
fo r -
And in order to use the PROMOD model, you 

have regularly or periodicaify revised 
estimates of what me fuel cosu are for 
aU of your generating facilities? 
Yes. 
With reelect to me fuel prices for 

EastUke and AshubuU, do you know from 
what date those prices were forecast when 
used m your 1996 smdy? 
No, I do not. 
Going forward into me future for me 20 

year period, you're relying on then me 
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one, etc.? 
Conect. 
Now as you do mat, what do you assume the 

allowance cost te for a unit of fuel 
consumed at EastUke and at AshubuU when 
you nm your PROMOD model? 
I guess I don't understand me question. 
Do you assume mat the allowance price te 

the projected market cost of aUowances or 
do you assume some other baste of 
allowance co*U? 
The allowance cost te what wa* in the 

allowance forecast supplied for me smdy 
which I beUeve te uble 1, yes. 
Okay. And. men for me fuel prices, te it 

ateo - it says that you just use the fuel 
price* mat are in me projections in mte 
smdy, as well? 
That te conect. 
And what about for me other Centerior 

uniu mat aren't in me smdy mat are in 
me PROMOD model? What do you uae for 
their fuel prices? 

MR. REGULINSKI: May I have 
that queation again, please? 
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fuel prices and the allowance prices that 
are forecasted in me smdy for EastUke 
and AshubuU? 
Conect. 
So men if I sum up men, at least with 

mese four major factors, if we're looking 
at the adjustmenu that are made, the 
judgment, if you wiU, that's imparted by 
you and your office to me PROMOD model. 
you don't do anything on the wholesale 
power sales; you uke the outage 
scheduling that the company has developed 
for a myriad of purpose* in the use of 
PROMOD, and you just use me aUowance and 
me fuel prices for EastUke and AahubuU 
mat are in me smdy mat you got from 
either yourself, in the case of allowance 
price, and in me case of fuel price*, in 
me case of Mr. Lang supplying mem to 
you? 

MR. REGULINSKI: May I have 
that question re-read, please? 

(Record read.) 
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Yes. 
Now does the PROMOD - did your 

development of uble 5 wim the use of the 
PROMOD modetuke into account any changes 
in pUnt utilization other man from mese 
factors? Any sort of, let's say, any 
projection of any reduced utiUzation of 
any particuUr plant? 
As I sUted earlier, uble 5 did include 

the September shutdowns of the two uniu 
at AshubuU C plant, me mothballing of a 
third plant and the weekend cycling of an 
EastUke unit. 
And those were aU changes from what might 

have been assumed for PROMOD back when me 
1995 smdy was done? 
Conect. 
Looking forward 20 years, doe* it make -

are there any efforu made to project any 
other simiUr changes in plant 
utilization, cycling, shutdowns, etc.? 
I do not believe so, but I cannot 

specifically recaU. 
MR. REGULINSKI: I would ateo 

note for me record, that again. 
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help you to have me sealed 
portion? 

On page 4 of me smdy, it Ulks in the 
middle of me bottom paragraph, mat the 
Centerior's plans are to be one in which 
it uses both coal and/or emission 
allowances at mese units so mat it may 
reserve aUowances based on a rate of 2.4 
to 3.8 pounds of S02 per MM BTU so I would 
have to say mat Uble 5 goes back to 
probably a coal in me range of 2.4 to 
3.8. 
Doesn't me PROMOD model have to have used 

a specific pounds per MM BTU? 
It probably did, and I'm saying I can't 

definitefy teU you which one of mose two 
it used. 
Do you mink it's - unformnately, I 

can't find mte ciution but I recaU 
seeing that it was 2.5 pounds per MM BTU 
at EastUke. Is mat possible mat mat 
was the number mat was used? 
I would not want to hazard a guess. 
Is there any reason to believe that what 

you used was me mix of fractions of 2.5, 
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thte question appears to go for 
the long term forecast report 
which inchides not onfy the 
company's forecasu of load but 
also inchides a plan and method to 
meet meir loads u«ng local 
generation, power purchases. 
cycling and omer aapecu so these 
matters are and have been reviewed 
by me Commianon, and me 
company's long term forecast 
repon and that me Examiner fulfy . 
recognizing that, granted a 
protective order so we wouldn't 
havfijp waste our time discussing 
mese matters in deposition. 

MR. PERLIS: Thank you. 
Mr. Reguliiuki. 

[19] BY MR. PERLIS: | 
[20] Q 
[21] 
[22] 
[23] 
[24] 
[25] 

Now with respect to me fuel and allowance 
prices, when you ran the PROMOD model to 
come up wim uble 5, what did you assume 
was me composition of fuel at the 
EastUke plant? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Would it 
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3.6 and 6.0 coal mat appeared in OVCC-27 
that was referenced in Mr. Kovach's 
deposition? 
I highly doubt that because the OVCC 

document number 27 was prepared weU after 
the smdy. 
But at thte time, you're not sure exactly 

what the pounds of S02 per MM BTU were 
that you assumed for purposes at EastUke 
in rannmg me PROMOD model? 
Of whemer Uble 5 was -
Yeah. 
- between me differential of 2.5 to 3.8? 

No, I can't teU that off me top of my 
head. 
But that number would be avaiUble to you 

somewhere in your records? 
I would imagine it would be. 
And the same ming goes for AshubuU. 

You'd be able to determine firom your 
records what me exact pound* of S02 per 
MM BTU were assumed for purposes of that? 
I mink I could, yes. 
Now you would agree mat it wUl make a 

difference whemer you use 2.5 or 3.8 for 
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number 29 from the OVCC 
Intenogatories. 

Would you uke a moment to look at that 
question and answer? 
Okay. 
Do you remember preparing mte? 
Yes, I do. 
Thank you. Does mte response indicate 

mat me actual cost of your aUowances te 
a small fraction of me evaluated cost of 
allowances that you used for purpose* of 
mte smdy? 
The evaluated cost we used for the smdy 

te market price, okay, plus escaUtors and 
adders and whatever omer conditions I 
figure that the market te going to go 
through or gyrations it's going to go 
through. 
Don't you say in your answer here mat the 

average cost baste of allowances consumed 
during 1997 through 1999 should be weU 
below five dolUrs per allowance? 
Yes, I do, and that reUtes to what we 

charge our customers on a monthly basis as 
pan of our EFC process, electric fuel 
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uniu and that te passed mrough the EFC 1 
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[6] A I cannot specificalfy sute which portions | 
[7] of it are passed mrough. 1 
[ 8] Q WeU, te it generaUy me case mat the | 
[9] 
[10] 
[11] 
[12] 
[13] 
[14] 
[15] 
[16] 
[17] 
[18] 
[19] 
[20] 
[21] 
[22] 
[23] 
[24] 

delivered fuel cost -
MR. REGULINSKI: We wiU 

stipuUte for the record mat 
under Ohio Uw, acquisition and 
delivery cost of fuel is recovered 
from our customers, under Ohio 
Uw. 

MR. PERLIS: Cunently. On a 
cunent baste? 

MR. REGULINSKI: It's done on 
a semianniul baste. There's 
reconcilution adjustmenu based 
upon whether or not me numbers 
that are projected are actuate. 
It's an entire process. We wiU 
stipuUte to that process. 

[25] BY MR. PERLIS: 
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cUuse. That's me weighted average cost 
of the inventory you're seeing mere. 
$1.94. 
So you only charge your customers eimer 

$1.94 or five doUars. You don't charge 
them the ninefy dolUrs that you estimated 
as the '97 allowance cost, do you? 
Conect. We charge mem me $1.94, me 

weighted average cost of me inventory at 
that monm. 
And when you change your fuel decision 

from 6.0 to 2.5 or 3.8, are you able to 
pass mrough me entire fuel price, me 
deUvered fuel price to your customers on 
a cunent baate? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
The paas mrough of fuel cosu te 
not a part of mte proceeding. 
It's part of me electtonic fuel 
component proceeding as mte 
wimess has testified but 
recognizing mat, recognizing me 
objection to relevance, we wUl 
not waive me objection, and let 
me wimess answer. 
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So te it the case men, Mr. Hoag, that for 
charging your customers for the allowances 
that you use up in 97 mrough "99, you're 
onfy collecting five dollars from mem but 
you're able to collect me fuU amount of 
me delivered cost of coal dtfierettce 
between the lower sulfur and me higher 
sulfur coal? 
We are charging the customer me weighted 

average inventory which te $1.94 and since 
I didnt project any purchases, I said it 
would be less than five doUars. 
Fine. 
A* far as me fuel goes, as I said, we are 

aUowed to pa*s mrough me eo*t of me 
fuel to the customer mrough me EFC 
mechanism. 
So by passing mrough mat difference. 

aren't you obtaining aUowances mat you 
wUl uae in me future ramer than me 
one* that you're charging to your 
customers today at me lower five dollar 
or less than five doUar cost? 

MR. REGULINSKI: May we have 
that question re-read, please? 
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. . . 
(Record read.) 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
We're comparing apples and oranges 
here. You're comparing fuel costs 
to weighted average inventory 
emission allowances. Can you 
resute the question, please? 

10] BY MR. PERLIS: | 
11] Q 
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I'm asking whether you evaliute the effect 
of your program as being the incurring of 
cosu today that you can fully recover 
from your rate payors for the benefit of 
acquiring allowances mat wiU not be used 
until the fumre? 
Would you re-read it, please? 

(Record read.) 

I'm going to have to go back to what I 
said before and mat te, you know, we 
charge the customer on me weighted 
average inventory baste and me fuel flows 
mrough the fuel cUuse adjustment 
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A 
Q 

A 

Q 

A 
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A 

switching would be to purchase them in me 
open market? 
Yes, you can do mat. 
Which individtute in the company make the 

decision as to whemer me corapany wiU 
purchase allowances? 
I make the recommendation to management to 

purchase. However, with thte plan that we 
have Uid out, I see no need to purchase 
right now. 
What about omer purchasing decisions that 

have been made in the past? You've made 
those recommendations for the decisions to 
purchase? 
Conect. 
Okay. And what sources of information 

have you considered in doing so, when you 
have decided to purchase aUowances? 
The consumption of me planu over a 

ceruin timeframe showed me that at the 
end of the year, we would not 
significantfy meet our reserve, emergency 
sutus that we set up of 60,000, and other 
cases where Fuel Procurement has gone out 
and purchased coate whereby I had to 
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proceedings, and if in the process we bank 
allowances, men mat happens, yes. 
Does me company have a set of criteria to 

guide it in determining how much it should 
try to bank, or how it should evaluate 
what the cost and benefit of a bank in 
increasing the bank would be or do you 
just automatically, do you have such a 
criteria? 

We are using me '92 plan, me "95 plan 
and the "96 plan updated as mat te what 
we want to do, mat Uble 5. That te our 
new goal mat we're shooting for. 
Under what criteria did you determine that 

it was imponant to have the bank run out 
in 2012, ramer than 2008? 
We are trying as part of our Environmenul 

Corapliance Plan to push any advanced 
technology options such like a scrabber or 
any new technology that comes along 
between now and then as far into the 
future as we possibly can. We are trying 
to limit capital qiending. 
Isn't it trae that another way of 

obuining allowances other than me fuel 
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account for me differential between what 
mey were supposed to be buying according 
to the plan, and what mey actually 
bought. 
But again, I come back to me criteria 

men te simply me plan. There's no 
independent criteria to determine what the 
appropriate bank level te above the 
margin? 

Do you have any criteria that telte 
you you'd like to have the bank at 100,000 
ramer than 200,000 or 200,000 ramer man 
100,000 aUowances? 
No. 
Do you have any criteria by which you 

measure what me cost to me company te of 
having a bank mat's 50,000 aUowances 
larger in phase two man it would be under 
an alternate sttategy? 
No, other man me expiration of the bank 

being fiuther out in time, which fulfilte 
a management objective. 
Do you recognize mat for me increased 

cosu of fiiel consumption of the lower 
sulfur coal, in the cunent years when you 
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make the fuel switch that mat cost has a 
carrying cost to it in terms of when the 
benefit wiU be realized in phase two? 
I don't follow your question. 
Do you underuke - do you ever factor in 

the time value of money or the company's 
cost of capiul in determining whether or 
not it te a good idea to purchase the 
allowance* today for use m the future? 
That's what your levelized at ten percent 

does. It's accounu for me company's 
cost of capiul. 
How does it do mat? Would you expUin 

that leveUzed ten percent line 
generically? You don't have to do it by 
reference to mese numbers. 
That's Uking me net present value of all 

those cakniUtions, aU mose cosu. 
bringing them back to today's value at a 
ten percent rate. 
My question was when you make a purchasing 

decision for allowances, do you Uke into 
account the cost of money, time value of 
money, me cost of capital, however you 
phrase it, do you uke into account mat 
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allowances, does it consider the time 
value of money in the time period between 
when you purchase the allowances, and when 
you might use them in phase two? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Relevance. Wimout waiving the 
objection, you can answer me 
question. 

Again, I'd like to resute mat our 
purchase* have been few, and merefore. 
they have been for consumption in that 
year in order to mainuin our reserve 
levete, and in view of that, I don't 
foresee purchasing now to hold for the 
future. 
And how do you evaluate whether it would 

be cost effective to purchase allowances 
today for use in phase two? Does me 
company evaluate whemer it would be cost 
effective to purchase aUowances today or 
at any time for use in phase two? 
I have not, no. 
Have you ever considered purchasing any 

options or entering into any forward 
conttacu for delivery of allowances in 
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cost -
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 

- when you purchase allowances? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 

The purpose of mte proceeding te 
to determine whemer me projected 
system bank of emission aUowances 
over the 20 year pUnning horizon 
te reasonable and appropriate and 
supported by the evidence. 

Likewise, me different cosu 
that could be incuned for 
different fuel levete over a 20 
year planning horizon. 

JSie issue m mte proceedmg 
te not me cosu inchiding 
carrying coste when Mr. Hoag makes 
an individual purchase decision. 
But rather, whemer to project it. 
me emission allowance bank te 
appropriate. Given mat 
objection, can you rephrase me 
question? 

[24 BY MR. PERLIS: | 
[25] Q When me company evahute* purchasing of 
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me ftimre? 
I have considered some of mose type of 

ttansactions. 
And when you consider mat, how do you 

evaluate what me cosu and benefiu of 
such a ttansaction would be? 
I do it on an economic baste. 
Could you eiqiUin what the type of 

economic calcuUtion te mat you make? 
I might do a net present value analyste. 

That's the main one that I use. 
In which you would look at when the cost 

te incuned and determine what the present 
valtte of that cost te? 
Right. 
And what about me use of the allowance? 

When you make that determination, how 
do you factor that in? 
I don't understand what you mean. 
If you were to do a forward conttact. 

you - strike that. 
Has me company had opportunities to 

purchase aUowaikce* for use in future 
years? 
I have not solicited for that. I have not 
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asked for it. I really don't even 
entertain the brokers when mey caU me 
and ulk to me about it. 
But if you wanted to, you're aware that 

there are brokers out mere who would be 
interested in trying to anange sales of 
fumre year allowances to you? 
After being in thte market for four years, 

I would sure hope to know that there are 
brokers mat would seU me allowances m 
any year I want. 
And are mere people selling allowances 

for use in future years? 
There are some, yes. 
And are there some that are doing mte on 

a forward baste, where you don't have to 
pay for the aUowances today but can pay 
for them in the future? 
Yes. 
C.E.I, has never underuken such a 

ttansaction, has it? 
No. 
Earlier, you sUted that the EVA forecast 

of emission allowance prices did not show 
the drop in actual prices that occuned. 

PAGE 111 1 
[1] 
[2] 
[3] 
[4] 
[5] 
[6] 
[7] 
[8] 
[9] 
[10] 
[11] 
[12] 
[13] 
[14] 
[15] 
[16] 
[17] 
[18] 
[19] 
[20] 
[21] 
[22] 
[23] 
[24] 
[25] 

Q But it te least cost only in the sense of 
determining what the cost of allowances 
that you use in me fiimre will be. 
conect? 

A It's least cost in me delivered fuel cost 
plus allowances, plus ttanq>orUtion over 
me 20 year planning horizon. 

Q Should C.E.I, be piuchaaing allowances 
whenever me cost of purchase te less than 
what the future value you're projecting 
will be for those allowances? 

A I can't answer mat yes or no because it 
depends upon what the cost te out in me 
future, and we have a rather heffy 
carrying charge of ten percent on our cost 
of capiul and money. 

Q So you do factor in me ten percent cost 
of capiul in making decisions as to 
whether or not you would purchase 
aUowances? 

A Ye*. 
Q You don't factor mat ten percent in for 

purposes of doing the assessment of fuel 
switching in years "97 mrough "99. 

A That's not a cost on me allowance. 
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Conect. 
In '95 and '96. When that happened, why 

did Centerior not consider purchasing 
allowances of what would have seemed lower 
than the projected forecast price for 
allowances? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection as 
to relevance. Wimout waivmg me 
objection, if me wimess can 
answer. 

Again, after reviewing our bank and me 
bank levete, and our plan, I didn't lee 
the need to go out and spend additional 
corporate fund* in order to bank more 
allowance*. 
Then why is mere a need to do the fuel 

switching to bank additional allowances? 
That's not the purpose of me 

Environmenul CompUance Plan, to bank 
allowances. 

The purpose of me Environmenul 
CompUance Plan te to comply wim me 
reguUtions and do it as a least cost 
methodology and because of 3.8 being least 
cost, mat gives us that bank. 
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1 
So in other words, you don't view as 

comparable economic decisions fuel 
switching today, and obuining allowances 
that you can use in the future, and 
purchasing the aUowances today for use in 
me future? 
Would you re-read that, please? 

(Record read.) 

I gues* I'd ask you to eUborate on mat 
because I'm stiU confused by what you're 
looking for or wanting. 
If the company has two option*, one te to 

fuel switch and obtain additional phase 
two allowances, and me omer te not to 
fuel switch and to buy me allowances in 
me market today for use in me future. 
how do you decide which of mose two te a 
better economic option? 
We haven't done that analyste because we 

are going for me fuel switching. Again, 
by my analyste and my bank, we don't need 
to go out and purchase. So therefore, I 
don't really consider mat an option at 
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thte point Ul time. 
Why do you need to incur the additional 

cost today of ftiel switching to create the 
bank in the fumre? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
We have not testified that there's 
additional cost. If you make a 
cUrification between deUvered 
cost and evaluated cost. 

Additional delivered cost. 
Yeah, I'U go back to the 20 year planning 

horizon. The levelized cost of me 20 
year level showed 3.8 te the smaller 
amount, and again, to fulfiU a management 
objective to defer the capiul cost as far 
into the fumre as possible. 
To defer the capiul cost. By that, you 

mean cost mat would not be passed mrough 
cunentiy as a cost of service? 
I'm saying the capiul cost that would be 

assocuted with any new technology that 
was insulled in the plant in fumre 
years. 
Or the capiul cost assocuted wim 

purchasing allowances today for use in me 
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a five minute break, if you Uke. 
MR. PERLIS: No, I would like 

to just go on. I'd like to finteh 
as soon as I can. Of course, if 
the wimess needs a break. 

THE WITNESS: No, keep going. 
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Could you please teU me, as best you can, 
what you view as me difference between 
the decision to buy an allowance today for 
use in the future te from the decision to 
incur higher delivered fiiel cosu today to 
obuin additional allowances in your bank. 
It's not a decision between mose two. 

It's a decision of the least cost to the 
ctutomer over me 20 year planning 
horizon. 
Have you compared me least cost of the 

fuel switch to a purchase of allowances in 
your smdy? 
No, because we don't feel we need to 

purchase allowances. 
But then how can you make a judgment as to 

whether it's least cost or not as between 
purchasing allowance*, or engage in the 

PAGE 114 
1 
2 

( 3 
[ 4 
[ 5 
[ 6 
(7 
[8 

9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 

[17 
[18 
[19 
[20 
[21 
[22 
[23 
[24 
[25 
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Q 
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Q 

future, mat would be a capiul cost also. 
wouldn't it? 
I'm not sure how our accounting group 

would handle mat. 
WeU, do you agree mat me higher me 

deUvered cost - that the greater the 
difference in delivered cost between me 
lower sulfur coal and the higher sulfur 
coal, the less desirable te a fuel awitch? 

Say that again, please? 
Do you agree that me greater me 

difference between me deUvered cost of 
coal, me higher - at me lower sulfur 
compared to me higher sulfur coal, me 
greater maL.difference, me less 
desirable it te to fuel switeh? 

MR. REGULINSKI: A 
clarification. You're talking 
about at deUvered price* again? 

Ye*, yes. 
If the spread te great, you would want 

to - I hate to do mte to you, would you 
resute mat again, please? 
I mink we'll just go on. 

MR. REGULINSKI: We can Uke 
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fuel switch? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 

I believe thte te - we've gone 
mrough thte several times. You 
keep circUng back around to thte. 

I think we've been mrough 
thte before. Without waiving the 
objection, me wimess can answer. 

Again, our plan was to assess me least 
cost of mese options, aU right? 
So you did not - me company has not 

considered comparing whemer or not it te 
least cost to fitel switch versus 
purchasing allowances? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Asked and answered. We've done 
that one. 

MR. PERLIS: Could we please 
let him answer that? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Once again. 
once again, but mte te the last 
time for mte question. 

No, I did not. 
You did not consider whether it was least 

cost to purchase aUowances rather man to 
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fuel switch? 
Conect. 
Now if you do buy allowances for fumre 

use, would you consider there to be a risk 
mat it might mm out to have been a bad 
investment because of price voUtilify in 
allowances? 
Wim any purchase, you have voUtilify and 

risk. 
Is that - does that ateo apply to the 

fuel switch? Is there voUtilify and risk 
that affecu the 20 year benefits for fuel 
switching? 
According to my last sutement, I would 

have to say yes, that there te. 
And yet, the company isn't considering 

buying allowances in pan because of that 
risk, but you're willing to consider doing 
the 20 year fuel switch? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
That's argumenutive. 

MR. PERLIS: I'U sttike me 
question. 

Before you said that one of me reasons 
you don't want to purchase allowances te 
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He's indicated he doesn't know. 
MR. PERLIS: I'U resute it. 

My question's different. 
Have you had occasion to inquire as to the 

tteatment of the emission allowance 
prices? 
I've had no need to inquire because of our 

pUn suting mat we were going to bank 
allowance* in phase one for use in phase 
two. 
So in your emission allowance capacify, if 

you determine that you could get 
allowances today more cheaply than what 
you project into cost in me fiiture, would 
you consider purchasing the aUowances 
today? 

MR. REGULINSKI: I'm sony, 
read mat question back again. 
please. 

. . . 
(Record read.) 

. . . 
Again, if I'm going to have a surpltu bank 

one, I don't see a need to purchase 
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because of the high cost of capital to me 
company; te that conect? 
Conect. 
Is there a sense in which capiul te 

scarce at the company, and mat mat 
factors into your consideration? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
relevance. I mink we've had 
testimony from Mr. Stead on thte 
very issue earlier from 
Mr. Weissman. 

MR. PERLIS: Mr. Hoag te the 
Manager of Emission AUowances in 
making mose decisions. 

MR. REGULINSKI: Wimout 
waiving me objection, if the 
wimess can answer me question. 

Agam, I wiU sUte I do not know whemer 
an allowance purchase would be a capiul 
or an OM expense at mte point in time. 
You've never had occasion to inquire as to 

that critical fact in your emission 
allowance management function? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
Objection. That's argumenutive. 
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allowances. 
Do you agree mat prices of allowance* are 

somewhat voUtile? 
You have voUtilify in any market. Thte 

has experienced up and down swings m 
mat. 
In percentage terms, te it any more or 

less than for fuel cosu? 
That, I can't teU you. 
And in terms of the reliabilify of me 

forecast, do you try to track how reluble 
your forecasu are year to year? 
I have not specificalfy tracked it, no. 

but I believe it to be close. 
Given mose unceruinties, why did me 

company not present sensitivify analyste 
wim req>ect to emission allowance prices 
and delivered fuel cosu? 
In regards to allowancea, I mink my 

forecast te close enough that it doesn't 
need to be, and as far as fuel cosu, we 
are doing sensitivify when we evaluate the 
different sulfur cosU for using different 
fuel cosu, but I did not do a sensitivify 
around each one of them, and based on my 
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Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 
A 
Q 
A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 
A 

experience, I didn't think it was 
necessary. 
In 1997, has Centerior purchased any 

allowances? 
No. 
Have you been - did Centerior participate 

by making a bid in me auction in 1997? 
No. 
Did C.E.I, submit a bid in any prior 

year's auction? 
Yes. 
Did you do one in 1996? 
I beUeve we bid in "96, yes. 
Did you receive any aUowances? 
No. 
Is that because your price was below the 

market clearing price? 
That's obvious. 
Have you ever purchased any allowances at 

the auction? 
Yes. 
Do you recall what year that was? 
WeU, if I didn't get any in "96,1 didn't 

get any in "93, probably '94 and I'm not 
sure if I got any in the '95 one or not 
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back in -
MR. REGULI1«KI: July of '95. 
MR. PERLIS: '95, right. 
MR. REGULINSKI: I can hand 

thte to me -
I'm reading from the '96 order because I 

can't find my '95 one but it's me same 
seven criteria. 

Criteria No. 6 te a consideration of 
me impact of reduced consumption of Ohio 
coal and the resulting impact on 
Centerior's customers. 

Could you, please, describe for me if 
you wUl, me nature of the anafyste that 
you undertook to determine me 
consideration of me impact of reduced 
consumption of Ohio coal? 
Okay, obviousfy you and I are reading it 

differentiy becauae I don't read it mat 
way. 

I read it as "and the reaulting 
impact on Centerior customers." I don't 
separate the two or make the dutinction. 
I see. Just to clarify me wimess's 

answer, you view item No. 6 as principally 
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but that's all documented mrough me EPA. 
Q Would you say that the company has made a 

deliberate decision not to purchase 
allowances for fumre use? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
asked and answered. Again, one 
more time. 

A I think I've suted several times mat 
we've made the decision to only purchase 
on an as needed baste for qiecific 
situations. 

And omer than that, wim our bank 
level growing, we're not going to plan to 
purchase. 

WK.. PERLIS: I'd like to Uke 
just a couple minute break, and 
see if I have any omer questions. 

(Shon recess had.) 

BY MR. PERLIS: 
Q I'm looking now at me seven criteria that 

the Commission asked me smdy to address 
in iu order of, if I remember, November 
12, 1996 - not that one, it's the order 
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A 
Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

focussed on impact on Centerior's 
customers? 
That te definitely, yes. 
Okay. In what way might reduced 

consumption of Ohio coal affect 
Centerior's customers? 
WeU, agam we're not loridng so much at 

me reduced consumption at Ohio coal as we 
are looking at me least cost to Centerior 
customers. 

What memodology of me procuring 
coal, maintaining compUance with me 
reguUtions and at me least cost to our 
customers. 
And did you consider or underuke any 

analyste of what might hapfen in the Ohio 
coal market in conducting mte *mdy? 
Again, we looked at it onfy from our 

customers' viewpoint. We do not. 
Right, and how did you reach any 

conchuions that you reached about me 
impact on your Centerior customers? 
We reached me conclusion* by again, going 

back to Uble* 2, 3 and 4, and looking at 
the 20 year levelized coat that that te 
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the least cost for our customers. 
And does that levelized cost assume that 

there's going to be any change in the Ohio 
market for coal? ~Does it Uke the 
exteting Ohio coal market a* a given 
forever? 
As far as me Ohio coal market goes, I can 

only q>eak to what I pick up every now and 
then in the different joumate or 
periodicate. 
I'm not - excuse me. 
Let me finteh, please. 
I'm sorry. I apologize. 
Such that when I read those joumate and 

articles, I see mat Ohio Valley Coal 
Company te selling coal to other Ohio 
utiUties, and therefore, I don't see that 
if thte particular conttact with Ohio 
Valley Coal te lost, mat it would put 
mem out of business. 
Of course, that wasn't my question. My 

question was what did you - not what 
do you see when you're reading the papers. 
but what did you do for preparing me 
repon, me Supplemenul Fuel Switching 
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I'll Stan a new different way. In your 
reading, did you notice mat any exteting 
Ohio coal conttacu were cancelled or 
terminated and repUced by me Ohio Valley 
Coal Company's coal? 
I don't recall seeing that in any of the 

articles that I read or reviewed. 
Hypotheticaify, if the Ohio VaUey Coal 

Company coal was repUcing coal that would 
omerwise have come from Ohio mines, would 
the affect of your fuel switch men have a 
net affect on Ohio coal mine production? 
I mink you're asking me to evaluate 

something that's two or three items down 
the line and away from our plan and I 
don't want to hazard a guess on mat. 
Okay. Let's go on to item No. 5, 

unceruinties concerning Centerior's 
anticipated need and price of allowances 
in future year*. 

Speakmg again of me smdy itself. 
how specificalfy did the smdy evaluate 
me unceruinties? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Can we have 
Uble 5? Do you have it handy? 
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Smdy, to evaluate, if anything, what 
would happen to the Ohio coal market? 
Again, getting back to No. 6 that we read 

it differentiy, I address it as frora me 
standpoint of Centerior's customers. 
And so omer man the analyste that's set 

fonh in son of the comparison of those 
columns in Uble 2, you did not analyze 
the potential impact on me Ohio coat 
market and any colUteral consequences 
mat that might have? 
Again, we didn't read No. 6 me way you're 

reading it, and that's not the way we 
approached it. So, no, I can't give you a 
tespotue o n . ^ t . 
In yottt reading, as you've noted that the 

Ohio Valley Coal Company may have entered 
into certain additional sale* of coal for 
the phase one period, are you aware of 
whose coal was being displaced when me 
Ohio VaUey Coal Company entered into 
these conttacu? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Could you 
clarify that queation, by who*e 
coal te being displaced? 

PAGE 128 
(1 
(2 
(3 
(4 
(5 
( 6 
[7] A 
( 8 
(9 
(10 
(11 
(12 
(13 
[14] Q 
(15 
[!<» 
[17 
[18 
[19 
[20 
[21 
[22 
[23 
[24 
[25] 

Or Uble 1 I guess. Do you have 
the confidential - mese are the 
non-confidential. Do you need 
to see me prices? 

THE WITNF.SS: No, no. 
MR. REGULINSKI: I'm sony. 

WeU, the second half of that, the price 
of me allowance* te Uble 1. The 
uncertainfy conceming Centerior's 
anticipated need, mat come* out of the 
production costing model, and it shows our 
bank growing mrough phase one; declining 
during phase two. 
You didn't do any sensitivify analyste 

conceming Centerior's anticipated need 
under different assumption* for me PROMOD 
model, did you? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
A*ked and answered. 

MR. PERLIS: I mink in the 
context of answering q>ecifically 
whether or not he evaluated these 
unceruinties, in light of me 
wimess's previous answer, I think 
a follow up te permitted. WiU 
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you instruct him to please answer? 
MR. REGULINSKI: I thought we 

were concluding. SUly me. If 
the wimesrcan answer me 
question. 

Again, our bank baUnce te growing through 
phase one. The unceruinfy as to need 
during phase one, we have our need covered 
for compliance purpose*. 

And in phase two, we are Uking mat 
surplus and using it for when we are not 
complying in phaae two. 
And do you read No. 5 as unceruinfy only 

applying to anticipated need or ateo to 
uncerumfy about price of allowances in 
future years? 
I read them together. 
So would you please teU me how me smdy 

identifies uncertainties in emission 
allowance prices in future years? 
I developed the forecast. That forecast 

was used in the planning modete. No, I 
did not do sensitivities around it. I 
didn't feel it was necessary. 

I felt me forecast based on my 
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A 

Q 
A 

Q 

Q 

know whether the prices are out of line 
at aU wim what you had forecasted me 
prices to be at mte time? 
I would say mose price* compared to my 

smdy forecast, the prices are high. 
A n d -
Which a higher allowance price make* a 

higher sulfiir coal even lea* attractive. 
Did you anticipate those higher prices 

when you did your 1996 forecast? 
MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 

Objection. 
Okay. I'd just like to look at a couple 

of me anawer* to Intenogatories. Number 
1. 

MR. REGULINSKI: I'm pUcing 
before the wimes* a set of the 
Intenogatories which he'U have 
before him during meae questions. 
a let of the Intenogatorie* and 
Centerior'* ttsponae mereto. 

BY MR. PERLIS: | 
Q Do I understand me process that you 

followed in making your allowance forecast 
would first be to determine me probable 
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Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

experience wa* good enough, so I did not 
do any sensitivities around mat. 
And in me less man one year time since 

you undertook mat projection of emission 
allowance prices, have emission allowance 
prices pretfy much ttacked what your 
projection was? 
I would say mat mere has been a small 

perturbation in me market mat was not 
anticipated, but other than that, it's 
been very close. 
And what do you mink may have accounted 

for that smaU perturbation, do you have 
any idea? 
I would have to say from what I know of 

the emi**ion allowance market, it's your 
client going out and trying to pursue 
allowance* in me November, December 
timeframe. 
What about the 1997 auction conducted by 

EPA, did mat represent a perturbation, as 
weU? 
I reaUy haven't smdied me auction 

results aU mat much yet. 
Do you know whemer me - so you don't 
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A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 
Q 

A 

Q 

market price for cunent vintage 
aUowances? 
That'* pan of it, yes. 
And then the next pan of it would be to 

determine an inflation and escaUtion 
factor to apply to me cunent vinuge 
allowances for determining future years' 
allowance prices? 
That's conect. 
Is there anyming etee, or do you wteh to 

expand on me way in which you conducted 
me allowance forecast beyond mat, or 
does mat pretfy much capture it? 
No, mat capture* it. 
What te the difference between the 

inflation factor and the escaUtion 
factor? Is mere a difference? 
The inflation factor te a corporate 

esublished number a* what we see as 
inflation for me next year* in our 
economic modete and eacaUtion refers to 
what I feel me market te - the aUowance 
market te going to do with me allowances 
if no inflation were imposed upon it. 
So the inflation te me purefy general 
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economy wide inflation and the escaUtion 
factor te an emission allowance market in 
real dolUrs -
Conect. 
- factor. And what are the factors mat 

you consider in determining me 
escaUtion, the real market increase? 
Basically, my knowledge in the market. 

reviewing different documents that I have 
in my possession such a* the RDI smdy. 
and EPRI, E-P-R-I smdy, along wim me 
fact that in 2000, the permitted level or 
the allocation level drops from 2.5 down 
to 1.2. Taking aU that into account, I 
developed an escaUtion rate. 
Is it pretfy much a constant escaUtion 

rate throughout the 20 year period? 
In my forecast, I generaUy tend to 

probably do near term pretfy close and 
then as I get out, I do increase m 
escaUtion a littie bit just because of 
the time difference, but it's not that 
Urge a difference. 
Mm-hmm. 
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And was that price above or below where 
you projected in the 1995 smdy? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection, 
relevance. Without waiving the 
objection, go ahead and answer. 

I can't remember if it was above or below. 
Okay. Have you considered at all whether 

new environmenul reguUtions now being 
proposed in Washington might affect the 
ttend in future market price* for emission 
allowances? 
No, I have not. 
Do you mink mat me proposed emission 

restrictions on smaU particuUte matter 
might affect eventual strategies for that 
type of pollution and therefore, have a 
colUteral affect on the demand for sulfur 
dioxide emisnon allowances? 
If those types of proposed reguUtions are 

nearing going into me Federal Regteter, 
our Environmenul Department advises us 
and men we stan planning appropriately. 
So to date, no, I have not done anything 
with particuUtes. 
Question No. 4, if you wUl. Take a 
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(At mte time, Ms. Mooney left 
the deposition.) 

. . . 
And in me Ust mree years, has mere 

been any escaUtion at aU in emis*ion 
allowance price*? 
I would say yes. 
So starting from me beginning of that 

three year period to today, mere's been 
an escaUtion in emiasion allowance 
prices? 
Okay, if we stan at calendar "97 and go 

back mree years, mat puu us at calendar 
"94, conect? 

If my memory serves me conectiy, I 
thmk througE* calendar "94, me price of 
allowances dropped slowfy, and men when 
we hit me auction of "95, mey dropped 
dramatically, and men by me end of -
let me uke that back, that was '96. 

By me end of '96, the "96 auction. 
the prices dropped drastically and then by 
the end of '96, me prices were right back 
up to where mey were at the beginning of 
"96 wimin two or three dolUrs. 
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minute to just read it. 
Okay. 
CaU your attention to the last sentence 

there, me second paragraph of me 
response. "To me extent - " and I quote 
now - "To the extent that unceruinties 
affect mte bank projection and iu 
implications for Centerior's anticipated 
need for aUowance*, Centerior wiU buy 
aUowance* at me market price as needed 
to achieve least cost compliance." 

What sttategy te mte that you're 
describing to buy allowance* at market 
price*? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Objection. 
We've gone over mte *mff before. 
We wUl let mte que*tion go and 
try to answer, but I remind you. 
Mr. Perlte, mat we've gone 
mrough me purchasing of EA's to 
some great extent, and whether or 
not Centerior te going to be 
purchasing EA's or not and why 
they are or are not. We've gone 
through thte in great deUU. 
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BY MR. PERLIS: 
Q Let me rephrase the question then. By 

thte, do you mean that you wiU continue 
the policy that you've described earlier 
in mte deposition? That you'U purchase 
allowance* on a year by year baste as you 
need them to keep your reserve level at 
60,000 or whatever it te? 

MR. REGULINSKI: WeU, the 
record wUI reflect what the 
wimess has said previousfy. Wim 
that objection, we wUl aUow the 
wime«s to respond. 

A In my opinion, mte reflecu two things. 
It reflecu, yes, mat we wiU buy to 
mainuin our bank level, but it also 
indicates mat we wiU buy aUowances in 
conjunction wim fuel, whichever te me 
least cost to our customers, or buy 
allowances to supplement a fuel purchase 
such that the coal vendor doesn't have to 
supply the allowances, if he doesn't want 
to. 

Q Okay. Question No. 8. You were here 
earlier today when I was inquiring of 
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was prepared? 
For the terms of that contract, it te my 

understanding mat, yes. In other words. 
when that contract expires in 1997, that 
men we switch to the EVA fuel price 
forecast at that point in time so, yes, up 
until September of "97, of mte year and 
mrough whatever iu contract date te, we 
would use me OVCC contract. 

And what were the EVA forecasu based 
upon, to the best of your knowledge? 
I don't know what the EVA price forecast 

was based on. 
Do you know if they provided you with a 

q>ot forecast for the fourm quaner of 
"97 and for any portion of "98? 
No, I do not. I do not know. 
Given mat me company te pursuing a 

sttategy of purchasing onfy at me spot 
market for 1998, and for me fourm 
quarter of 1997, do you not mink it would 
be very important to know what me 
forecast - whemer you had forecasu of 
bid prices in that period? 
No, I don't mink so. 
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Mr. Kovach about thte response and he 
defened to you. 

"The coal price forecast - " I'm 
quoting now - "The coal price forecast 
used in the Supplemenul Fuel Switching 
Smdy was developed based upon C.E.I.'s 
long term coal supply conttact prices in 
place on the date me forecast was 
prepared." 

Were mere any such long term coal 
supply conttact price* in pUce on me 
date that the forecast was prepared for 
EaatUke and AahubuU? 
The onfy long term contract I know that 

was in pUcejt mat time te the cunent 
Ohio VaUey Coal Corporation contract. 
Was your coal price forecast based upon 

mat contract? 
Again, it's not my coal price forecast. 

It comes from me Fuel Department under 
Mr. Kovach. 
Wa* Centerior'* fuel price forecast 

included in the Supplemenul Fuel 
Switching Smdy based \̂ >on the Ohio Valley 
Coal conttact in place when me forecast 
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Why not? 
Because you're ulking about a spot 

market, and I'm Ulking about a 20 year 
long range plan. 
So that the EVA - that me coal price 

forecast in me Supplemenul Fuel 
Switching Smdy te a long term coal 
forecast, looking at more long term prices 
than te the spot market mat you've 
entered now? 
I beUeve that's troe. 

MR. REGULINSKI: May I have 
mat question and answer re-read. 
please? 

. . . 
(Record read.) 

Okay. Looking at me next paragraph m 
your response to No. 8,1 quote, "The 
tranqiorution price forecast was 
developed baaed upon me raU rates in 
pUce on the date iht forecaat wa* 
prepared. Then me raU rate* are 
escaUted at an annual eacaUtion rate per 
me temu of me raU agreement." Close 
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quote. 
The reference to raU rates in place 

here, does that refer exclusively to the 
raU rate* for me ieaaed engine* and cars 
that we discussed earUer wim Mr. Kovach 
thte morning? 

A I do not have knowledge of mat. I do not 
know. 

Q Mr. Kovach said he wasn't sure and said 
that I should ask you since you prepared 
the smdy. 

A I prepared me smdy, but he does the fuel 
price forecast. 

Q You don't provide any mdependent analyste 
or review of me ttansporution price 
forecast or the delivered coal price 
forecast? 

A No, that's not my area of expertise and I 
don't have knowledge in mat area, as I 
said before. 

Q Who in the company do you think knows what 
the ttansporution price forecast was 
based upon? 

A Who do I think knows? It would eimer be 
Mr. Kovach, Mr. Stead. That would be my 
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potentul allowance deal, but I have not 
publtehed anyming to the company. 

Q But there was something publtehed for 
purposes of evaluating the fourm quarter 
bids or a document? 

A I don't know if it was specificaUy for 
mat, or I just updated it in October as 
general purposes as to the way the market 
had been moving. I can't remember which 
of those two reasons why. 

Q Would that have been a 20 year forecast or 
just for '97? 

A No. When I do it, I do it -
Q For 20 years? 
A Yes. 
Q Thte may be one of the last two questions. 

When you have evaluated high sulfur coal 
prices at the 6.0 level in me smdy, are 
you relying on any coal prices being 
charged or expected to be charged by 
producers omer than the Ohio Valley Coal 
Company? 

(Record read.) 
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Q 

A 

Q 
A 
Q 
A 

Q 

A 
Q 

A 

Q 

A 

two guesses. 
I see. Mr. Kovach, what role, did you 

pUy as me Emission Allowance Manager in 
helping Centerior evaluate the '97 fourm 
quaner bids? 
Can I ask you a question? You addressed 

me as Mr. Kovach. 
I'm sorry, Mr. Hoag. 
Same question q>pUe*? 
Yes, a different answer I hope. 
I suppfy mem wim my emission allowance 

price forecast and men mey roU that 
into their anafyste. 
And wa* that me *ame emisnon allowance 

price forecaa.aa utiUzed in the 1996 
smdy? 
Probabfy not. 
So it waa an updated forecast that you 

provided? 
Ye*. Sometime in October, I provided it 

but I don't know if it waa before or after 
meir anaiyate. 
Ha* that forecast been aubsequentiy 

updated since October? 
For my use only on evaluation of a 
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A That's a yes and no answer. Again, we use 
me cunent Ohio VaUey contract through 
iu termination, and then we go with a 6 
pound sulfur coal that would be indicative 
of Ohio coal. 

Q And mat's based on me EVA estimate? 
A That's conect. 
Q But you don't know whemer the EVA 

estimate looks at other producers of Ohio 
coal? 

A No, I don't. 
Q When I was questioning Mr. Kovach, he 

mentioned mat he mought mere might be 
guidelines that me company has with 
respect to emission allowance banking. 

A There are guidetines that were presented 
by EVA in meir anafyste they did for us 
in "94. I am following those but mere's 
no approved corporate guide for mem. 

I mean mey have not been ultimately 
shown to upper management for approval. 

Q Can you give me just a rough idea what the 
nature of these guideline* are, what mey 
guide you in? 

MR. REGULINSKI: Wimout 
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Q 
A 

Q 

A 
Q 

A 

Q 

A 

revealing any confidential 
proprietary information from EVA, 
please. 

Right. 
It Uys out a couple formulas for buying 

and selling allowances; what criteria we 
should use in evaluating mose purchases 
or sales. 
When you say generally, you've been trying 

to follow those as guidelines in your 
decisions to purchase or seU emission 
allowances -
Conect. 
I Uke it those guidelines are not 

dependent on a specific emission allowance 
price forecast mat may be in pUce at a 
given point in time? 
It's been quite a while since I refened 

back to them. I wouldn't want to hazard a 
guess. 
You didn't evaluate how those guidelines 

might be applied for purposes of the 
Supplemenul Fuel Switching Smdy, did 
you? 
(Indicating no.) 
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STATE OF OHIO, ) CER TIFICATE 
) 

COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA ) 
I, Ellen A. Hancik, a Notary PubUc 

within and for the Sute aforesaid, duly 
comraissioned and qualified, do hereby certify 
that the above-named RICHARD HOAG, was by me. 
before me giving of hte deposition, first 
duly swom to testify me trom, me whole 
troth, and nothing but me trom; mat me 
deposition as above set fonh was reduced to 
writing by me by means of stenotype, and was 
Uter ttanscribed into typewriting under my 
direction; that said deposition wa* Uken in 
all reapecu pursuant to me stipuUtions of 
counsel herein contained, and was completed 
without adjoumment; mat the foregoing te the 
deposition given at said time and place by said 
RICHARD HOAG; that I am not a reUtive or 
attorney of eimer parfy or omerwise interested 
in me event of mte action. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my 
hand and seal of office, at Cleveland, Ohio, mte 
9m day of April, A.D., 1997. 

Ellen A. Hancik, RPR, Notary Public 
My commission expires: 2/10/98 
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MR. PERLIS: Okay. I don't 
mink I have any further 
queation*. 

. . . 

RICHARD HOAG 
(Deposition concluded. 
Signature not waived.) 

. . . 
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